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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENEEEEAGRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. HUI Sai Chung, aged 75, is the Chairman and a co-founder of the Group.

He is responsible for formulating and overseeing the implementation of the
Group's business strategy. He is also responsible for the marketing and sales
functions of the Group. He has more than 52 years’ experience in the plastics

industry.

Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong, aged 73, is the Deputy Chairman, Managing Director
and a co-founder of the Group. He is responsible for the overall operations
and administration of the Group. He has more than 52 years' experience in the
plastics industry and he was awarded the Associateship (Plastic Industry) by The

Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries.

Mr. NG Chi Ming, aged 57, is the Technology Development Director of Greater
China Department and Operations Director of Colorants Business of the Group.
He is responsible for developing of plastics colouration, compounding technology
and key accounts in the Greater China market. He holds a Higher Diploma in
Textile Chemistry from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University's predecessor). He also holds a Master of Engineering Management
degree from the University of Technology, Sydney. He joined the Group in 1988
and left in 1995. He re-joined the Group in early 1998 and has over 33 years'

experience in plastic colouration and plastic injection moulding techniques.

Mr. HUI Yan Kuen, aged 45, is the Southern China General Manager of Ngai
Hing Hong Plastic Materials (Hong Kong) Limited, Guangzhou Ngai Hing
Hong Plastic Materials Ltd. and Chongging Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials
Ltd. and is responsible for sales and marketing of the Group's plastic materials
trading business. He holds a Bachelor degree in Civil Engineering from Queen’s
University, Ontario, Canada and also holds a Master degree of Business and
Administration from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.
He joined the Group in 2004 and has over |7 years' experience in business
management, sales & marketing. Mr. HUI Yan Kuen is the son of Mr. HUI Sai
Chung (who is the Chairman of the Company) and the brother of Mr. HUI Yan
Kit (who is the senior management of the subsidiary of the Company) and Mr.

HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey (who is the Director of the Company).
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)
Mr. HUI Man Wai, aged 52, is the Business Development Manager of Dongguan

Coltec Plastic Trading Company Limited and is responsible for market
exploration and business development of Colour Masterbatches and Functional
Masterbatches for plastic industries in Southern and South Western China. He
holds a Master degree of Business and Administration (Executive) from City
University of Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 1997 and has over 25 years'
experience in business management, sales & marketing. Mr. HUI Man Wai is
the son of Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong (who is the Deputy Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company).

Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey, aged 48, is the General Manager of Dongguan
Ngai Hing Plastic Materials Limited and NHH Coltec Limited and is responsible
for sales and marketing of Colour Masterbatches and Functional Masterbatches
for plastic industries in Hong Kong, Guangdong and other cities in Southern
China. He holds a Bachelor degree with honors in Arts (Major in Economics)
from Queen'’s University, Ontario, Canada. He joined the Group in 2004 and has
over 22 years' experience in business management, sales & marketing. Mr. HUI
Yan Lung, Geoffrey is the son of Mr. HUI Sai Chung (who is the Chairman of the
Company) and the brother of Mr. HUI Yan Kit (who is the senior management
of the subsidiary of the Company) and Mr. HUI Yan Kuen (who is the Director
of the Company).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul, aged 71, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since Ist April 2003. He is also the chairman of
each of the Audit Committee, the Corporate Governance Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.
Mr. Ho is the managing partner of Paul W.C. Ho & Company, Certified Public
Accountants (Practising). He holds a Bachelor degree in Social Sciences and is
an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, United Kingdom and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Ho is currently an independent non-executive
director of China Star Entertainment Limited (stock code: 326), a company is
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange").
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENEEEEAGRE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. CHING Yu Lung, aged 52, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since 9th February 2009. He is also the member
of each of the Audit Committee, the Corporate Governance Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and also the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Ching currently serves as the Chief Financial Officer of a company
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange").
He also serves as the Independent Non-executive Director of each of Hopson
Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 754) and Shenzhen Investment
Holdings Bay Area Development Company Limited (formerly known as
“Hopewell Highway Infrastructure Limited”, stock code: 737), both of them are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ching was an independent
non-executive director of Termbray Industries International (Holdings) Limited
(stock code: 93) from November 2016 to April 2022 and also AMVIG Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2300) from March 2020 to April 2021 respectively, both of
them are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ching obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong and an Executive Master degree in Business
Administration from Tsinghua University in 1992 and 2006, respectively. He is
a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and member of American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Ching has more than 29 years of

experience in auditing, corporate finance and accounting.

Mr. YU Chi Kwong, aged 54, has been an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company since Ist April 2020. He is also a member of each of the
Audit Committee, the Corporate Governance Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Yu is the
Business Manager of an international insurance company in Hong Kong. He holds
a Bachelor degree of Science with Honours in Applied Chemistry from Hong
Kong Baptist University and a Master degree of Business Administration from the
University of South Australia. He is also a Fellow Chartered Financial Practitioner
of the Asia Pacific Financial Services Association. Mr. Yu started the career in
plastics industry and had accumulated more than 20 years' experiences in the
industry, which included holding managerial positions in various multinational
companies for plastic materials sales and product marketing in Hong Kong and
Mainland China.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Madam LIU Sau Lai, aged 64, is the assistant to Chairman and she is responsible
for credit control of the Group. She holds a Bachelor of Business Administration
degree from Hong Kong Metropolitan University (Formerly “The Open
University of Hong Kong™). She joined the Group in 1977 and she has more than

37 years' experience in plastic materials trading.

Mr. NG Tat Ching, aged 67, is a Director and President of Ngai Hing
Engineering Plastic Materials Limited, Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Hong Kong)
Limited, Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Dongguan) Co., Ltd. and Ngai Hing
Engineering Plastic Materials (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., and is responsible for the
overall business operations of the above mentioned group of companies. Mr.
NG holds a Bachelor degree in Chemistry (Major) and Statistics (Minor) from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He joined the Group as a co-founder and
an executive director of the above mentioned group of companies in 1997, and
has over 41 years' experience in plastic industries globally. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. NG has held several key positions in various multinational companies
for engineering plastic materials sales and product marketing in Asia Pacific

regions.

Mr. CHAN Ka Ho, aged 49, is the Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary of the Group. He holds a Bachelor degree in Business Administration
in Accounting and Finance from The University of Hong Kong. He also holds a
joint Master of Science degree in Mathematics for Finance and Actuarial Science
from City University of Hong Kong and University of Paris-Dauphine, France.
He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
("FCCA") and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“FCPA"™).
He is also a Chartered Financial Analyst charterholder (“CFA") and a Certified
Financial Risk Manager (“FRM"), and he holds the Sustainability and Climate Risk
("SCR") certificate. He has over 26 years' experience in auditing, finance and
accounting and is responsible for the financial, treasury, information technology,

administration and human resources management of the Group.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Mr. HUI Yan Kit, aged 49, is the General Manager of Shanghai Ngai Hing Plastic

Materials Co., Limited and is responsible for sales and marketing of Colour
Masterbatches and Functional Masterbatches for plastic industries in Shanghai
and other cities in Eastern China. He holds a Bachelor degree in Arts from
University of Toronto. He joined the Group in 1998 and has over 24 years'
experience in business management, sales & marketing. Mr. HUI Yan Kit is the
son of Mr. HUI Sai Chung (who is the Chairman of the Company) and the
brother of Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey and Mr. HUI Yan Kuen (both are the
Directors of the Company).
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHE

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

| hereby announce the audited results of Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
(“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “the Group”) for the year
ended 30th June 2022. The Group recorded an audited consolidated turnover
of HK$1,738,775,000 (2021: HK$1,971,074,000) and profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company of HK$56,598,000 (2021:
holders of the Company of HK$89,865,000). Earnings per share for the year
were HK15.33 cents (202 1: Earnings per share HK24.34 cents).

loss attributable to equity

The Board of Directors recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK2.0
cents (2021: a final dividend of HKI.0 cent and a special dividend of HK3.0
cents) per share. Together with the interim dividend of HKI.5 cents (2021: an
interim dividend of HKI1.0 cent and a special dividend of HKI.0 cent) per share
already paid, respectively, the total dividend payment for the year under review
is HK3.5 cents per share (2021: HK6.0 cents).

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Review

The global landscape in 2021/22 was complex and volatile, with geopolitical
tensions and a weak overall market and economy. In the first half of 2022,
affected by supply risk concerns brought by the situation in Russia and Ukraine,
international crude oil prices continued to rise, further pushing up plastic raw
material prices. International shipping and supply chains have not yet recovered
to pre-pandemic levels and the ongoing COVID-19 epidemic has also hindered

economic recovery.

Due to the uncertain economic environment, customers remained cautious
about placing orders and adopted low inventory strategies, which affected the
overall sales volume of the Group. For the year ended 30th June 2022, the
Group's total turnover was HK$1,738,775,000 (2021: HK$1,971,074,000), a

decrease of | 1.8% over the previous year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Business Review (Continued)

During the year under review, the Group's overall gross profit decreased by
12.7% year-on-year to HK$303,134,000 (202 1: HK$347,217,000), mainly due to
the decline in overall sales volume. The gross profit margin decreased slightly by
0.2 percentage points from the same period last year to 17.4%. Profit attributable
to equity holders of the Company was HK$56,598,000 (2021: HK$89,865,000),
the decrease was primarily due to the fall in turnover. Basic earnings per share
were HK15.33 cents (2021: HK24.34 cents).

To reward shareholders for their unwavering support for the Group, the Board
of Directors has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK2.0 cents
per share (2021: a final dividend of HKI.0 cent per share and a special dividend
of HK3.0 cents per share).

During the year under review, the turnover of the engineering plastic business
increased by 8.5% year-on-year to HK$285,249,000 (2021: HK$262,923,000).
The gross profit margin fell modestly by |.6 percentage points, and profit
before income tax increased by 19.1% year-on-year to HK$46,339,000 (2021:
HK$38,912,000). The continued high prices of raw material have led some
customers to actively seek alternatives. As engineering plastics are tailored for
customers' needs, they can be used to replace certain raw materials as well
as to improve product performance, production capacity and efficiency. The
pandemic has raised public awareness of infection prevention and hygiene,
creating new opportunities for the Group. As such, the Group has flexibly
adjusted its business scope, actively expanded its customer base and cooperated
with local manufacturers to launch anti-epidemic products, which enabled it to
secure orders from new local customers. At the same time, more companies are
adopting flexible work-from-home arrangements. The change in people’s living
and working patterns has stimulated demand for general household appliances
such as kitchenware, thus orders for household appliances and high-end

kitchenware remained stable.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Business Review (Continued)

The Group's production and operation activities were partly affected by the anti-
epidemic policy in Mainland China during the year, and its production capacity
was not fully released. Turnover of the colorant, pigment and compounded
plastic resin business decreased by 5.2% year-on-year to HK$355,172,000 (2021:
HK$374,736,000). The gross profit margin also decreased by |.2 percentage
points. Moreover, the strong US dollar pushed up procurement costs, which in
turn resulted in a decline in profit before income tax of 32.3% to HK$20, 106,000
(2021: HK$29,719,000). The colorant, pigment and compounded plastic
resin business has, however, built a stable customer base in sectors such as
automotive applications, food packaging and construction materials. Although
the completion area of residential properties in Mainland China declined when
compared with last year and the demand for construction materials softened, the
Group believes that high-end sanitary products still have development potential,
hence it will continue to develop related markets going forward so as to secure

more orders with higher gross profit margins.

Turnover from the plastic trading business declined by 17.6% year-on-year to
HK$1,098,354,000 (2021: HK$1,333,415,000), mainly due to the slowdown
in Mainland China's economic growth in the first half of 2022, the slump in
demand for raw materials from the traditional automobile and construction
material industries, and the delay in international shipping during the year. As a
result, customers adopted a prudent ordering strategy which has affected the
Group's sales volume and led to a decline in turnover. The gross profit margin
was basically similar to the same period last year. In addition, the Group has
implemented a more cautious inventory provision estimation in view of recent
economic uncertainties. As a result, profit before income tax decreased by
56.4% to HK$23,308,000 (202 I: HK$53,484,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Prospects

The global economy remained uncertain in the second half of 2022. With many
countries in Europe and the US entering the interest rate hike cycle and the
US dollar continuing to strengthen, the market is concerned about a possible
slowdown in economic recovery as a result of anti-inflation measures, while the
ongoing war between Russia and Ukraine has intensified geopolitical risks. In
Mainland China, economic growth slowed down in the first half year as a result
of the pandemic. However, with a rise in vaccination rates and the improving
pandemic situation, the overall economy is expected to pick up starting from
the end of this year or early next year. The Group will continue to keep a close

watch on market changes.

The current international shipping situation is much smoother than last year, but
has not yet returned to its normal, pre-pandemic state, and freight rates also
continue to hover at high levels. In the past two years, surging international oil
prices have kept plastic material prices high. This, coupled with factors such as
shipping delays, has caused customers to increase their inventory levels. The
Group has also noticed that an increasing number of customers are adopting
a more conservative approach to placing orders under the current challenging
operating environment. However, the Group had made preparations in the
first half year and adopted flexible strategies to more effectively manage its
production, operations, logistics, supply chain and financial management. It has
also worked closely with customers and suppliers and ensured stable business

development by taking a prudent approach.

Over the past two years, the Group has been actively expanding into new
customer segments and, as a result, has obtained orders from end-customers for
products with higher added-value and high margins such as premium kitchenware
and smart devices. While recent raw material prices have fallen slightly, the
Group is aware that customers are still looking for alternatives and it believes
that engineering plastics can replace more and wider array of raw materials in
the future. The Group will continue to explore other business opportunities
drawing on its wealth of experience. Believing that sustainable materials will
be one of the future trends, it has stepped up efforts in conducting projects
pertaining to environmentally friendly plastic materials, in the hope of providing

customers with products that can meet market expectations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Prospects (Continued)

It is the support of the management team and customers, as well as the
diligence and contributions of all staff members, that has allowed the Group to
overcome various challenges amid the pandemic. | would like to express my
sincere gratitude to aforementioned parties. As always, led by a professional
management team, the Group will continue to execute sound, pragmatic and
aggressive business strategies and utilize its years of industry experience to stand

out in the market and bring long-term returns to shareholders.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated cashflow
and banking facilities provided by its principal bankers. As at 30th June 2022, the
Group has available aggregate banking facilities of approximately HK$570,548,000
of which approximately HK$382,814,000 have been utilised and were secured
by corporate guarantees issued by the Company and legal charges on certain
leasehold land and buildings, investment properties and restricted bank deposits
in Mainland China and Hong Kong owned by the Group (see Notes |5, 16, 17,
and 24 to the consolidated financial statements). The Group's cash and cash
equivalents as at 30th June 2022 amounted to approximately HK$178,926,000.
The Group's gearing ratio as at 30th June 2022 was approximately 62.8%,
based on the total bank borrowings of approximately HK$392,827,000 and the
shareholders’ funds of approximately HK$625,259,000.

Details of the Group's capital commitments and the Company's contingent
liabilities are disclosed in Notes 31 and 3.1(d) to the consolidated financial

statements respectively.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group's borrowings and cash balances are primarily denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. The Group's purchases were principally
denominated in US dollars. The Group closely monitors currency fluctuations
and manages its exchange risk by entering into forward exchange contracts from

time to time.
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At 30th June 2022, the maximum notional amount for the outstanding
settlement committed by the Group in respect of forward contracts in order
to manage the Group's exposure in foreign currencies from its operations is as

follows:

oW 7/
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EMPLOYEE INFORMATION
As at 30th June 2022, the Group had approximately 618 full-time employees.

The Group's emolument policies are formulated on the performance of
individual employees and are reviewed annually. The Group has an incentive
scheme which is geared to the profit of the Group and the performance of
its employees, as an incentive to motivate its employees to increase their
contribution to the Group. The Group also provides social or medical insurance
coverage, and provident fund scheme (as the case may be) to its employees

depending on the location of such employees.

APPRECIATION

I, on behalf of the Board, would like to take this opportunity to express my
gratitude to the Group's customers, suppliers and shareholders for their unfailing
support, my fellow directors, executives and staff for their hard work in the past
year. The Group will, as always, with prudence use its best endeavour to strive
for its long-term development and the best interest of the shareholders aiming

at attaining more promising results in the coming year.

HUI Sai Chung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29th September 2022
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements
for the year ended 30th June 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 34 to the consolidated

financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by segment is set out in

Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group's business and the analysis of the Group's
performance for the year ended 30th June 2022 as well as prospects of the
Group's business are provided in the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 9 to |5
of this Annual Report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
There are a number of factors affecting the results and business operations of
the Group, some of which are inherent in the market and some are due to

external environment. Major risks and uncertainties are summarised as follows:

(i) Volatility of economic climate in Mainland China and Hong Kong, which is

closely related to consumption thereto.

In order to mitigate the impact of a weakening economy of Mainland
China, the Group is continuing to expand the overseas markets; and
continues to take a cautious approach in steering the Group forward, and

recognises the need to sustain sales momentum.

(i) Credit risk in the event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their

obligations.

The Group maintains a defined credit policy. An ageing analysis of trade
debtors is prepared on a regular basis and is closely monitored to minimise

any credit risk associated with receivables.

The Group's other financial risks and uncertainties are set out in Note 3 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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BUSINESS REVIEWV (Continued)

Particulars of Important Events
No important events affecting the Group have occurred since the end of the

financial year.

Financial Key Performance Indicators

Certain financial key performance indicators which complement and supplement
the financial disclosures are set out in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Notes
to the Consolidated Financial Statements” on pages 9 to |5 and 70 to 190,
respectively, of this Annual Report.

Environmental Policies and Performance, and Compliance with Relevant Laws
and Regulations

The Group takes its corporate social responsibility to heart, and is fully
committed to making a difference for its staff, the community and the common
good. During the year there are a wide range of activities and campaigns held to

treasure the staff, community and the environment.

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Company's subsidiaries in
Hong Kong and Mainland China while the Company itself was incorporated in
Bermuda and is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). During the year ended 30th June 2022 and up to the date of this
Directors’ Report, the Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations

in the above-mentioned jurisdictions.

Relationships with its Key Stakeholders Including Employees, Customers and
Suppliers
() Employees
Recognising that human resources are one of the greatest assets of the
Group, the Group provides a variety of benefits, talent trainings and

development for employees.

(i) Customers
It is the Group's mission to satisfy different customers’ needs and
continues to contribute to the wellbeing of the public by providing plastic
materials which suit the customers’ requirements, which include their

social responsibility and sustainability.
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BUSINESS REVIEVV (Continued)

Relationships with its Key Stakeholders Including Employees, Customers and

Suppliers (Continued)

(i) Key suppliers
The Group has developed long-standing relationships with a number of
suppliers and taken great care to ensure that they share our belief in good
quality and ethics. The Group prudently select suppliers and requires all of

them to comply with our social and environmental responsibility guidelines.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income

statement on page 62.

The Directors have declared an interim dividend of HKI.5 cents per ordinary
share, totalling HK$5,538,000, which was paid on | Ith April 2022.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK2.0 cents per
ordinary share, totalling HK$7,384,000.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the
year are set out in Notes 27 and 37 to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set

out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in Note

26 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30th June 2022, the reserves of the Company available for distribution,
comprising the contributed surplus and retained earnings, amounted to
approximately HK$72,851,000 (202 1: HK83,193,000).

Under The Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), a company may
not declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus,
if there are reasonable grounds for believing that (i) the company is, or would
after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or (ii)
the realisable value of the company's assets would thereby be less than the

aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium account.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Bye-laws and
there was no restrictions against such rights under the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing

shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on page 191.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company's

listed securities during the year.
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SHARE OPTIONS
On 22nd November 2012, the Company has adopted a share option scheme

(the “Scheme”) and terminated the share option scheme adopted by the
Company on 5th December 2002. Under the terms of the Scheme, the
Directors may, at their discretion, invite eligible participants to take up Share
Options to subscribe for the shares of the Company subject to the terms and

conditions stipulated therein.

Details of the Scheme are as follows:

(1) Purpose
The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Group to grant Share Options
to eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to

the Group.

(i) Eligible participants
Any employee (whether full time or part time, including any executive
director but excluding any non-executive director) of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries; and the persons to whom the Directors may extend an
offer to take up Share Options as referred to in paragraph (2) of Appendix
Il of the circular issued by the Company on [8th October 2012.

(i) Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of shares, which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding Share Options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to time. No
Share Option may be granted under the Scheme if such limit is exceeded.
The total number of shares available for issue under the Scheme as at the
date of the annual report is 36,920,000, which is 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as of that date.

The maximum entitlement for any one qualifying participant is that the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the Share
Options granted to each qualifying participant under the Scheme and any
other option schemes (including exercised and outstanding Share Options)
in any |2-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares

in issue.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

(v)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

Option period

In respect of any particular Share Option, such period the Board of
Directors (the “Board”) may in its absolute discretion determine, save that
such period shall not expire more than 10 years from the date on which a

Share Option is granted and accepted by the grantee.

Amount payable on application or acceptance
An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance for
a period of 21 days from the date of grant. A nominal consideration of

HK$ | is payable on acceptance of the grant of a Share Option.

Subscription price

The exercise price in respect of any particular option shall be (i) the
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange
daily quotations sheet on the date of offer for the grant of a Share Option,
(i) the average price of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer for the grant of a Share Option or (iii) the

nominal value of the share (whichever is the greater).

The remaining life of the Scheme
The Board of Directors shall be entitled at any time within 10 years
between 22nd November 2012 and 21st November 2022 to offer the

grant of an option to any qualifying participants.

No Share Options have been granted since the adoption of the Scheme.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2022 are set out

in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

No interest has been capitalised by the Group during the year.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year were:

Mr. HUI Sai Chung (Chairman)

Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong (Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. NG Chi Ming

Mr. HUI Yan Kuen

Mr. HUI Man Wai

Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey

Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul*

Mr. CHING Yu Lung*

Mr. YU Chi Kwong*

* Independent Non-executive Directors

All of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the

Company's Bye-laws.

Mr. HUI Sai Chung, Mr. HUI Man Wai and Mr. YU Chi Kwong retire by rotation
in accordance with clause 87 of the Company's Bye-laws and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election.

In order to comply with the code provision A.4.3 as set out in Appendix 4 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules™), separate resolution should be set out for shareholders of the Company
to approve the further appointment of Mr. YU Chi Kwong as Independent Non-

executive Directors at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term

subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

The fundamental policy of the Group’s remuneration and incentive scheme
is to link total compensation for senior management with the achievement of
annual and long-term performance goals. By providing total compensation at
competitive industry levels, the Group seeks to attract, motivate and retain
key executives essential to its long-term success. Senior management incentive
scheme includes an equity component that is designed to align the long-term
interest of management with those of shareholders. The remuneration package
comprises of annual directorship fees, salaries, discretionary bonuses and

incentive scheme.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are compensated with the aim
to fairly represent their efforts and time dedicated to the Board and various
committee meetings. The remuneration package represents annual directorship

fees.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the employer within one year without

payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
Subject to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), every Director

is entitled under the Company's Articles of Association to be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against all costs, charges, expenses, losses and
liabilities which he or she may sustain or incur in or about the execution or
discharge of his or her duties. To the extent permitted by such Ordinance, the
Company has taken out insurance against the liability and costs associated with
defending any proceedings which may be brought against directors of companies

in the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 30th June 2022, the interest and short positions of each Director and

chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company

and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities

and Futures Ordinance (“SFO™)), as recorded in the register maintained by

the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code") contained in

the Listing Rules were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company at 30th June 2022

Report of the Directors
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Number of shares of the Company beneficially held

BBz ARARNEE

Personal interests  Corporate interests Family interests ~ Other interests
Name of Directors Espg fBARER EEER ZRER Hitg s
Mr. HUI Sai Chung TSk E Long Positions #f & 20,137,600 202,721,500 (a) — —
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong FEE R Long Positions #7A& 19,850,400 198,803,500 (b) —
Mr. HUI Yan Kuen SFAREE Long Positions 47 A& - - — (0)
Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey TAEEE Long Positions 1A — — — (d)
Mr. HUI Man Wai FNEEE Long Positions #1 & 250,000 — — (e)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
(Continued)

Notes:

(@

(b)

(d)

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit Limited (“Good Benefit”), a
company in which Ever Win Limited (“Ever Win") holds a 45.1% interest (note (e)).
In addition, 6,000,000 shares are held by Ever Win directly.

50,001 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Ever Win are held by Mr.
HUI Sai Chung. Mr. HUI Sai Chung and his spouse further own 33,957 and 5
class A non-convertible redeemable preferred shares of no par value in Ever Win

respectively.

196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit, a company in which
Evergrow Company Limited (“Evergrow”) holds a 45.1% interest (note (e)). In
addition, 2,082,000 shares are held by Evergrow directly.

50,000 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Evergrow are held by
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong. Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong further owns 30,823 class A non-
convertible redeemable preferred shares of no par value in Evergrow.

196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit, a company in which Ever
Win holds a 45.1% interest (note (e)). In addition, 6,000,000 shares are held by
Ever Win directly. 333 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Ever Win are
held by Mr. HUI Yan Kuen.

196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit, a company in which Ever
Win holds a 45.1% interest (note (e)). In addition, 6,000,000 shares are held by
Ever Win directly. 333 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Ever Win are
held by Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey.

RETHERDF

EEREETRAERAAQT
5 ELF{a AR Bt 5 B A AR
BEE R AR

(4&)

P EE -

(@)

(®)

(©

(d)

ZER A R 2 196,721,5000% J5 8 Good
Benefit Limited ([ Good Benefit |) #5745  Ever
Win Limited ([ Ever Win |)# & Good Benefit
B2+ RE— (M (e)) ° ttoh -
6,000,000 &A% 15 B Ever Win B 8 ©

Ever WnE B EEIMTZ ERBEHG
50,001 IR FFH IR A H5 7 APt IELE &
RERBS D RIS Ever Win AREMR
BT A] H AR A& B8 S AR 19 33,957 AR I 5

i e

ZE R R 2 196,721,5008% T B Good
Benefit# A ° Evergrow Company Limited
([Evergrow]) ¥ % Good BenefitE 5
2P+ I — (i) wa
2,082,000 &% {5 B8 Evergrow B4 A ©

Evergrow & iR E {E | il 7t 2 & 8 A% 1
50,000 B EFEE L AR » AR AL
S A Evergrow ARBEETA LiRA]
8 B8 S R 17 30,823 A%

ZERAD P 2 196,721,500 8% 5 B Good
Benefit3# 48 ° Ever Win#8 Good Benefit
BoZO+RE - Ee) - it
AN+ 6,000,000 B% A% 15 B Ever Win H # 3%
B o Ever Win BREE | itz E@BRGD
3BMEHFTAESRERE ©

ZERAD P 2 196,721,500 8% 5 B Good
Benefit# 48 ° Ever Win#8 Good Benefit
Bzt R Ee)- bt
AN+ 6,000,000 B% B% 1 B Ever Win B # 3%
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS EERESTHRABREAT
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, N HE AR EE R AR
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE BHEEER,/BKXR
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (&)
(Continued)
(e)  The beneficial interests of the Directors in the share capital of Good Benefit, which (e) EETEGood Benefit(RZE=—F XA
held 196,721,500 shares of the Company as at 30th June 2022, are as follows: =+ HEHBFARQF 196,721,500 8% 17 ) %
A2 BT
Number Percentage
of shares of holding
BRHEHE BEREIL
Mr. HUI Sai Chung FRitH IR S A4 4510 45.1%
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong FFEL . 5 A4 4510 45.1%
Mr. HUI Man Wai FFNIE A 360 3.6%
Others Hith 620 6.2%
10,000 100.0%

As at 30th June 2022, the following Directors owned interests in non-voting RZEZZFANA=+H  THESH
deferred shares in Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited, which are subject to ERHEBBRERMERAFERERERL
an option granted to Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited to acquire the f& D HE% - Maz A A2 &% T Ngai Hing
said non-voting deferred shares. (International) Company Limited AJ 88 £

AR RRIR IR D 2 BB AHE -

Number of non-voting

deferred shares held

RERREREEROHE
Personal interests Other interests
B HitfEm
Mr. HUI Sai Chung ST RS A4 200,000 50,000 (i)
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong T S A 200,000 50,000 (ii)
Notes: 5
0) These shares are held by Ever Win. () ZE WD B Ever WinF5FE ©
(i) These shares are held by Evergrow. (i ZERMDHEvergrow A ©
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Report of the Directors
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
(Continued)

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee shares in the
subsidiaries of the Company held by certain Directors of the Company in trust
for the Group as at 30th June 2022, none of the Directors and chief executives
have any beneficial or non-beneficial interests in the share capital of the
Company and associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Options” above:

(a) at no time during the year was the Company, its holding company or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
or chief executives of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body

corporate; and

(b) none of the Directors, chief executives, their spouses or children under
the age of 18 had been granted any right to subscribe for shares in or

debentures of the Company, or exercised any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

At 30th June 2022, the register of substantial shareholders required to be kept
under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that the Company had not
been notified of any substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions, being
5% or more of the Company's issued share capital, other than those of the

Directors and chief executives as disclosed above.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or

existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the Group’s major

suppliers are as follows:

The largest supplier 22%

Five largest suppliers combined 63%

The aggregate percentage of sales attributable to the Group's five largest
customers is less than 30% of the Group's total sales for the year ended 30th
June 2022 and therefore no additional disclosure with regard to the major

customers is made.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company's share capital)

had an interest in the major suppliers noted above.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee provides an important link between the Board of
Directors and the Company's auditor in matters coming within the scope of the
group audit. It also reviews the effectiveness of the external audit and of internal
controls and risk evaluation. The Audit Committee comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul, Mr. CHING Yu Lung
and Mr. YU Chi Kwong. The Audit Committee has reviewed with management
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed
internal controls and financial reporting matters including a review of the annual

financial statements for the year ended 30th June 2022 with the Directors.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the total issued share capital of the

Company was held by the public as at the date of this report.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who

retires and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

HUI Sai Chung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29th September 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate governance
practices and procedures which serve as an important element of risk
management throughout the growth and expansion of the Company. The
Company emphasises on maintaining and carrying out sound, solid and effective

corporate governance principles and structures.

The Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions as set out
in Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report to the
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (the "CG Code") throughout the year ended

30th June 2022, except for the deviation as mentioned below.

According to the code provision A2.l1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer (chief executive for CG Code) should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. Up to the date of this
annual report, the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the
Company has not appointed any individual to be the chief executive. The roles
of the chief executive have been performed collectively by all the executive
Directors, including the chairman, of the Company. The Board considers that
this arrangement allows contributions from all executive Directors with different
expertise and is beneficial to the continuity of the Company's policies and
strategies. Going forward, the Board will periodically review the effectiveness of
this arrangement and considers appointing an individual as chief executive when

it thinks appropriate.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of

the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transaction. The Company has made specific enquiries to all Directors and all
Directors confirmed they have complied with the required standard of dealings

set out therein during the year.
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Corporate Governance Report
EERELRSE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board, number of Board meetings and Directors’
attendance

The Company's Board has a balance of skills and experience and a balanced
composition of executive and non-executive Directors. Save as disclosed in the
biographies of the Directors on pages 4 to 6 to the annual report, there is no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship between Board
members. The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on an ad-hoc
basis, as required by business needs. During the year, the Board held a total
of three regular board meetings, three ad-hoc board meeting and one general

meeting. The composition of the Board and attendance of the Directors are set

EEE
ESRAR  EFRRRRESHRERR

ARRNESF S EEHENRITMER
MEFRITEFTHEIFRTEZTNEATR
FOE BRARFREIZCANERRE
BErREEEIN  EFTENE 2HIEEM
B m% - RESHMEKR MEE 2
& -BEFEUEHMREXHHER AR
SRTARTEZ -NFR EFgaH
BITZREHEEERRE  ZABHIES

out below: EERLABERAE  -BEFSHERRE
FihERENT
No. of No. of
No. of ad-hoc general
regular meetings meetings
meetings Attendance #%7l  Attendance B3R Attendance
Attendants ) flgRy HERE SR8 EHEA® ASR¥ HEREY
Executive Directors: HITEE .
Mr. HUI Sai Chung (Chairman) THIREE(EE) 3 3 3 3
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong TR
(Deputy Chairman and Managing Director) (5| F/E# Z EHAEHE) 3 3 3 3 I \
Mr. NG Chi Ming RERAKE 3 3 3 3 | \
Mr. HUI Yan Kuen SFARLE 3 3 3 3 | 0
Mr. HUI Man Wai AR 3 3 3 3 | \
Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey AEABRSRAE 3 3 3 3 | \
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUFHTEE:
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul RSk 3 3 3 0 | \
Mr. CHING Yu Lung IRIEER 3 3 3 0 | \
Mr. YU Chi Kwong RERLE 3 3 3 0 | \

4
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Composition of the Board, number of Board meetings and Directors’
attendance (Continued)

The balanced board composition ensured strong independence exists across
the Board and has met Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules to have at least one-
third of its members comprising independent non-executive Directors. At least
one of the independent non-executive Directors has appropriate professional
qualifications, accounting or financial management expertise. The biographies
of the Directors are set out on pages 4 to 6 to the annual report, which

demonstrates a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and qualifications.

The independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term

subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from the three
independent non-executive Directors in according with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Board has assessed their independence and concluded that all the
independent non-executive Directors are independent within the definition of

the Listing Rules.

Role and Function
The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to the executive
Directors and senior management, while reserve certain key matters for its

approval. The principal functions of the Board are:

®  to establish the strategic direction for the development of the Company

and set the objectives of the management;

® to approve annual budgets, major funding proposal and investment

proposals;
®  to decide on matters such as annual and interim results, major transactions,

directors appointment, and dividend and accounting policies; and

®  to oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls,

risk management, financial reporting and compliance.

-
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Corporate Governance Report
EERELRSE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The members of the Board are responsible for preparing the financial statements
of the Company and of the Group. The financial statements are prepared on
a going concern basis and give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 30th June 2022, and of the Group’s profit
and cash flows for the year then ended. In preparing the financial statements
for the year ended 30th June 2022, the members of the Board have selected
appropriate accounting policies and, apart from those new and amended
accounting policies as disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30th June 2022, have applied them consistently
with previous financial periods. Judgments and estimates that have been made

are prudent and reasonable.

During the year ended 30th June 2022, the management provided all members
of the Board with monthly updates in accordance with the code provision C.1.2
of the CG Code.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditor are set out on pages 59 to
61.

Continuing Professional Development

All Directors, namely, Mr. HUI Sai Chung, Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong,, Mr. NG
Chi Ming, Mr. HUI Yan Kuen, Mr. HUI Man Wai, Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey,
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul, Mr. CHING Yu Lung and Mr. YU Chi Kwong have
participated in continuous professional development by engaging in business
activities beneficial to the Company in their respective fields, including attending
seminar, workshops, conference and courses offered by professional bodies and
self-studying, to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills so as to ensure

that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Continuing Professional Development (Continued)

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable training to all
Directors for their continuous professional development. During the year
ended 30th June 2022 and up to the date of this annual report, the Company
has arranged to provide the Directors with briefing on the amendments to the

Listing Rules and self-studying materials.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the liabilities
of the Directors that may arise out the corporate activities, which has been
complied with the CG Code. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual

basis.

Director’s Nomination Policy
The Director's nomination policy of the Company was adopted by the Board
and became effective on Ist January 2019 and the nomination committee of the

Company (the “Nomination Committee”) is responsible for execution.

Director Nomination Process

The Nomination Committee utilises various methods for identifying director
candidates, including recommendations from Board members, management,
and headhunters. The Nomination Committee may also put forward director
candidates who are not nominated by Board members. In addition, the
Nomination Committee will consider director candidates properly submitted
by shareholders of the Company through formal procedures set out in the
Company’s Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as a

Director.

For filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations for the Board's consideration and approval. For proposing
director candidates to stand for election at a general meeting, the Nomination
Committee shall make nominations to the Board for its consideration and

recommendation.

All director candidates, including incumbents and candidates nominated by
shareholders of the Company are evaluated by the Nomination Committee
based upon the Director's qualifications. While director candidates will be
evaluated on the same criteria, the Nomination Committee retains the discretion
to establish the relative weighting of such criteria, which may vary based on the
composition, skill sets, and experiences of the collective Board rather than on

the individual candidate.
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EERELRSE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Director Nomination Process (Continued)

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to the
recommendation of director candidates by the Nomination Committee to stand
for election at any general meeting. The Board will take such recommendations
under advisement and is responsible for designating the director candidates to
be elected at the annual general meeting of the Company and electing Directors

to fill Board vacancies.

Procedure for Appointment of New Director

Director candidates will be asked to submit the necessary personal information
in a prescribed form, together with their written consent to be appointed as a
Director and to the public disclosure of their personal data on any documents
or the relevant websites for the purpose of or in relation to their standing for

election as a Director.

The Nomination Committee shall, upon receipt of the proposal on appointment
of new Director and the biographical information (or relevant details) of the
director candidate, evaluate such director candidate based on the criteria as
set out below to determine whether such director candidate is qualified for

directorship.

If the process yields one or more desirable director candidates, the Nomination
Committee shall rank them by order of preference based on the needs of the

Company and reference check of each director candidate (where applicable).

For any person that is nominated by a shareholder of the Company for
election as a Director at the general meeting of the Company, the Nomination
Committee shall evaluate such director candidate based on the criteria as set out
below to determine whether such director candidate is qualified for directorship
and where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall make
recommendation to shareholders of the Company in respect of the proposed

election of Director at the general meeting (where applicable).

A director candidate is allowed to withdraw his/her candidature at any time
before the general meeting by serving a notice in writing to the company

secretary of the Company.
Until the issue of the shareholder circular, the nominated persons shall not

assume that they have been proposed by the Board to stand for election at the

general meeting.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Procedure for Re-appointment of Director at General Meeting

The Nomination Committee shall review the overall contribution and service
to the Company of the retiring Directors including their attendance of Board
meetings and, where applicable, general meetings, and the level of participation

and performance on the Board.

The Nomination Committee shall also review and determine whether the

retiring Directors continue to meet the criteria as set out below.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall then make recommendation
to the shareholders of the Company in respect of the proposed re-election of

Directors at the general meeting.

Director Selection Criteria
The Nomination Committee considers the following qualifications are at a
minimum to be required of a director candidate in recommending to the Board

potential new Director, or the continued service of existing Director:
(@)  the highest personal and professional ethics and integrity;

(b)  proven achievement and competence in the nominee's field and the ability

to exercise sound business judgment;

(c) qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and

experience that are complementary to those of the existing Board;

(d) the ability to assist and support management and make significant

contributions to the Company's success;

(e) the contribution on diversity of the Board and any measurable objectives
adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving diversity on the
Board:

() an understanding of the fiduciary responsibilities that is required of a
member of the Board and the commitment of time and energy necessary

to diligently carry out those responsibilities; and

(g) meet the “independence” criteria as required under the Listing Rules and
the composition of the Board is in conformity with the provisions of the

Listing Rules from time to time (where applicable).
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EERELRSE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Director Selection Criteria (Continued)

Other than the foregoing, there are no stated minimum criteria for director
candidate, although the Nomination Committee may also consider such other
factors as it may deem to be in the best interests of the Company and the

shareholders of the Company.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Composition

The Nomination Committee was established on 26th March 2012 with written
terms of reference in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange.
The Nomination Committee consists of all independent non-executive Directors
and an executive Director. The composition and attendance record of the

Nomination Committee are as follows:

EE2H)
EETREN(F)
B EXFTE  BEIREE BRI

EZRAAERANEARARARARR
REMNGZZEBER  ERERAXREE
FREATEI 2REFTE -

REREE

AR
REEEEN T —FE=A=+ AR
IR P E R E K - REEA
CTHEEBYFRTEER —ARTES
AL - AR R FREMT

Number of

meetings
attended/Total Attendance
HESBRE percentage
Attendants HEE S BRE =
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) AELEEE(ZEEEFE) 212 100%
Mr. CHING Yu Lung TEIARE S A 212 100%
Mr. YU Chi Kwong REHTE 2/2 100%
Mr. HUI Sai Chung FTH IR & 202 100%

Role and Function HERBE

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board (including the skills, knowledge and experience) on a
regular basis and make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes; identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of, individuals
nominated for directorships; assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; and making recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors. The Nomination Committee would review
the Board’s composition from time to time where Board diversity would be
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and education background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,

knowledge and length of services.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Role and Function (Continued)

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year to assess the structure,
size and composition of the Board. The Nomination Committee held two
meetings during the year ended 30th June 2022 to review the structure, size and

composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board.

The Nomination Committee also reviewed and considered that the following
key features or mechanisms under the Company's governance structure are
effective in ensuring that independent views and input are provided to the
Board:

i In assessing the suitability of Director candidates, the Nomination
Committee will review their profiles, including their qualification and time
commitment, having regard to the Board's composition, the Directors’ skill
matrix, the list of selection criteria approved by the Board, the director

nomination policy and the board diversity policy.

. Independent non-executive Directors receive fixed fee(s) for their roles as

members of the Board and Board Committee(s) as appropriate.

®  The Nomination Committee reviews annually each Director's time
commitment to the Company's business. Directors’ attendance records in
the year are disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report contained in
this Annual Report.

. Independent non-executive Directors' independence is assessed upon
appointment, annually, and at any other time where the circumstances

warrant reconsideration.

® The Company provides guidance to Directors on avoiding conflicts of
interest and on the circumstances under which appropriate action(s) shall

be taken by a Director in conflict.

. To facilitate proper discharge of their duties, all Directors are entitled to
seek advice from the Group's company secretary or the in-house legal
team as well as from independent professional advisers at the Company's

expense.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Board Diversity Policy
The Board has updated a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) in
July 2022 which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the Company
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of

diversity on the Board.

In designing the Board's composition, Board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of

service.

The Board has reviewed the current composition and is committed to achieve
gender diversity on the Board by maintaining an appropriate level of female
members on the Board and to provide the Company with a good balance and
diversity of skills and experience appropriate to the requirements of its business.
The Board plans to appoint at least one female Director by 31st December
2024. The Board will continue to review its composition from time to time

taking into consideration specific needs for the Group's business.

Independence

The Board includes a balanced composition of executive, non-executive and
independent non-executive Directors so that there is a strong element of
independence in the Board. The independent non-executive Directors shall be

of sufficient caliber and stature for their views to carry weight.

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« REITHERDF

REZES (@)

EEEMES TBE
EEEREN T —FLAEFEEe
MESTIRE(EEERE S TR
%) BRINEEERE S TILEEN
ik o

REDAFENIEER  ARARES
EREMADRZ AR EIRIKBR
FEFAREERNAR IR -EFEM
BREHURAES BRA - HEZBA
BRATBGRERIBREFERESZ T
feigss -

EEBEFGZERN  EFEXEZT
fee itz @ mETEE - BRETRR
Rl F8 - XENHEER EEK
B~ BRE -~ ABIA RIS ER -

EEECRIBEAMNKBAEASARBAR
EFERFEEKRFNLEKRBENERE
FeMnEe YRHEVEA QB ED
PBHBE RS T ERENER EF8
AER—ZZE_mFE+_A=+—HAEm®
ELURUEE EFQQUERLE
BMEKFTETHRITEXNEES -

3t
EERPHTEE  FNTES - LARE
STHBITEENAEBRFIE - AR
BERARBRENBIM - BUFNTE
FRABTSABREE  HERAAY
27 -



NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Gender and age

The Company is committed to maintaining an environment of respect for people
regardless of their gender in all business dealings and achieving a workplace
environment free of harassment and discrimination on the basis of gender,
physical or mental state, race, nationality, religion, age or family status. The same
principle is applied to the selection of potential candidates for appointment to
the Board.

Skills and experience

The Board members should possess a balance of skills appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Group, including the independent non-
executive Directors possessing professional accounting and other qualifications.
The Directors have a mix of finance, academic and management backgrounds
that taken together provide the Group with considerable experience in a range
of activities including varied industries, education, government, investment and

the professions.

Measurable Objectives
[ The Company should comply with the requirements on board composition

under the Listing Rules from time to time.

2. The number of independent non-executive Directors should be not less
than three and one-third of the Board.

3. At least one of the independent non-executive Directors must have
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial

management expertise.

4. At least one Director should be the professional or have intensive

experience of the industry on which the business of the Group is.

Having reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and the Board's composition, the
Nomination Committee considered that the requirements of the Board Diversity

Policy had been met.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Composition

The Company has formulated written terms of reference which were revised
on Ist January 2019 for the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee™) in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange. The

Audit Committee consists of all independent non-executive Directors. The

BEREES

AR
RRABRIBEE P2 BEFTREE 2 AR A
MEZZES((BERZES D ZRERE
ER-ZE-NE-—HA—BEH  -ERZEE
CHEBBYIFNTESMEK - BREE

composition and attendance record of the Audit Committee are as follows: GZEK R FLENT
Number of
meetings
attended/Total Attendance
HEERRE percentage
Attendants HE & SR HE =
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) — AEESLE(ZEESEE) 3/3 100%
Mr. CHING Yu Lung e 33 100%
Mr. YU Chi Kwong REHTE 3/3 100%
Role and Function AERBE

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the objectivity and
credibility of financial reporting, risk management and internal control procedures
as well as to maintain an appropriate relationship with the external auditor of

the Company.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are aligned with the
recommendations set out in “A Guide for Effective Audit Committees” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Listing Rules. Given

below are the main duties of the Audit Committee:

(@) to consider the appointment of the external auditor and any questions of

its resignation or dismissal;

(b) to discuss with the external auditor before the audit commences, the

nature and scope of the audit;
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

Role and Function (Continued)
(c) to review the half-year and annual financial statements before submission
to the Board, focusing particularly on:
(i)  any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(i) major judgmental areas;
(i) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv) the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(v)  compliance with accounting standards;

(vi) compliance with Listing Rules and legal requirements in relation to

financial reporting; and
(d) to discuss problems and reservations arising from the audits, and any

matters the external auditor may wish to discuss (in the absence of

management where necessary).

For the year ended 30th June 2022, the Audit Committee met three times, in
particular, to review and discuss the followings:

®  the auditing and financial reporting matters;

®  the appointment of external auditor;

° the establishment of internal control system; and

®  theinterim results and the annual financial statements.

Each member of the Audit Committee has unrestricted access to the auditors

and all senior staff of the Group.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Composition

The Company has formulated written terms of reference which were revised
on 26th March 2012 for the remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) in accordance with the requirements of the Stock
Exchange. The Remuneration Committee consists of three independent non-
executive Directors and an executive Director. The composition and attendance

record of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

FMEES

M

R BB IREE A AT 2 3R E T E 2 AN A A)
WEFMZEe((FTMEE S ) 2 BiEHE
ERZZ—ZF=ZA=+BEH - F
ZEEH-UBIFNITEET R LT
EEEK FTHEE G BRI FLH
R

Number of

meetings
attended/Total Attendance
Hjﬁg%;ﬂﬁ Percentage
Attendants HEE SR E HE=
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) AREEEE(ZESFE) 212 100%
Mr. CHING Yu Lung ke 22 100%
Mr. YU Chi Kwong RENRFEE 212 100%
Mr. HUI Sai Chung R RS A 212 100%

Role and Function

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal and transparent
procedures for developing remuneration policies and making recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages of the individual executive
Directors and senior management. This includes benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation payable for loss
or termination of their offices or appointment. It takes into consideration on
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and

responsibilities of Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year to assess the
performance and review the annual salaries and bonus of the senior executives.
The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year ended 30th
June 2022 to review the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
and the remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior management of

the Group.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration of employees (including the Directors and Senior
Management) of the Group are generally structured by reference to market
terms and individual merits, which is reviewed on a regular basis. The Group also
provides various other benefits to designated staff, including discretionary bonus,
social insurance or medical insurance, share option scheme, continuing education
and training programmes. The Group also launched key performance indicators
assessment scheme and annual bonus scheme to boost individual performance

and operational efficiency.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the nature of the audit and non-audit services provided by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, and the relevant fee paid

and payable by the Company for such services are as follows:
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HK$’000
FER
Audit services for the Group RAEERME  EZRE 2,094
Non-audit services including: FEBERRBEIE
— review of interim results —EHFEEE 276
— taxation services for the Group —RAREBRMH 7 HIBRS 328
— agreed upon procedures on the Group's —AEBEEFEBELMIETIRF
annual results announcement 24
— review of Hong Kong Occupational Retirement Schemes — BB ERKEE
Ordinance (“ORSQO") Il
Total #ER 2,733
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Composition

A corporate governance committee of the Company (the “Corporate
Governance Committee”) was established on 26th March 2012 with written
terms of reference in accordance with the CG Code. The Corporate
Governance Committee consists of all independent non-executive Directors.
The composition and attendance record of the Corporate Governance

Committee are as follows:

TEEREZEER

M
ARRMGEELZEG(IEEREE
gRZE—=F= A=+ ARETH
BENBESERY - PEEREZESH
DB IFNITESRMEN - HEKRKLER

WwEINT

\//

Number of
meetings
attended/Total Attendance
HESBRE percentage
Attendants HEE S BRE HE=
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) — AIEE%4E(ZEESEL/E) 212 100%
Mr. CHING Yu Lung RINBESL & 212 100%
Mr. YU Chi Kwong REREE 212 100%
Role and Function AGRBE
The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for developing and TEELZETARERIBINAEED

reviewing the policies and practices on corporate governance of the Group and
making recommendations to the Board; reviewing and monitoring the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior management;
reviewing and monitoring the Group's policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; developing, reviewing and monitoring
the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors; and reviewing the Group's compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report of the Company.

The Corporate Governance Committee meets at least once a year to review the
corporate governance functions. The Corporate Governance Committee held
two meetings during the year ended 30th June 2022 to review the corporate
governance policy in the Group and recommend the training arrangement on

corporate governance to the employees of the Group.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and reviewing their effectiveness. The Group
has formulated and adopted a risk management process which includes risk
identification, risk evaluation, risk mitigation, risk monitoring and reporting. At
least on an annual basis, the management of the Company identifies risks that
would adversely affect the achievement of the Group's objectives, and assesses
and prioritises the identified risks according to a set of standard criteria. Risk
mitigation plans are then established for those risks considered to be significant,

which include regular reporting to the Audit Committee and the Board.

The management of the Company has established a set of comprehensive policies,
standards and procedures in areas of operational, financial and risk controls
for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition; for maintaining
proper accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial information
to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against the likelihood of the
occurrence of fraud and errors. In addition, the Group has established internal
control protocols and control self-assessment process on major operations.

Assessment results are submitted to the Board for ongoing monitoring purpose.

Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages the risk associated

with its businesses and operations. The system comprises the following phases:

. Identification: identify ownership of risks, business objectives and risks that

could affect the achievement of objectives;

. Analysis and Assessment: analyse the likelihood and impact of risks and

evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly; and

. Risk Response and Monitoring: consider the risk exposures, ensure
effective communication to the Board and monitor the residual risks on an

ongoing basis.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which enables the Group
to achieve objectives regarding the effectiveness and efficiency of operations,
reliability of financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and

regulations. The components of the framework are shown as follows:

. Control environment: a set of standards, processes and structures that

provide the basis for carrying out internal control across the Group;

. Risk assessment: a dynamic and iterative process for identifying and
analysing risks to achieve the Group's objectives, forming a basis for

determining how risks should be managed;

. Control activities: actions established by policies and procedures to ensure
that management's directives to mitigate risks for the achievement of

objectives are carried out;

. Information and communication: internal and external communications
to provide the Group with the information needed to carry out the daily

controls: and

0 Monitoring: ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain whether each

component of the internal control system is present and functioning.

For the purpose of enhancing the risk management and internal control systems,
the Company has engaged an external consultant to assist the Board and
the Audit Committee in ongoing monitoring and in performing the internal
audit functions for the Group. Deficiencies in the design and implementation
of internal controls are identified and recommendations are proposed for
improvement. Significant internal control deficiencies are reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board on a timely basis to ensure prompt remediation

actions are taken.

The Board has reviewed and considered the Group's risk management and
internal control systems were effective and adequate during the year. The
risk management and internal control systems of the Group are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material

misstatement or loss.
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WHISTLE BLOWING POLICY

The Group is committed to achieving and maintaining the highest standards of
openness, probity and accountability. The Company has formulated the Whistle
Blowing Policy in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange. It
was approved and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company, with the
authority and responsibility being delegated to the Audit Committee. Details
of the Whistle Blowing Policy of the Company are disclosed on the Company's

corporate website https://www.nhh.com.hk.

External parties may raise concerns about the relevant matter against the

Company by using below channel:

Email: auditcommittee@nhh.com.hk

ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

The Group is committed to achieving the highest standards of business
conduct and has zero tolerance for corruption and related malpractice. The
Company has formulated the Anti-Corruption Policy and it was approved
and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company in accordance with
the requirements of the Stock Exchange. Details of the Anti-Corruption
Policy of the Company are disclosed on the Company's corporate website

https://www.nhh.com.hk.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHAN Ka Ho (“Mr. Chan") was appointed as the company secretary of the
Company on Ist January 2007. In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Chan possesses
the necessary qualifications and experiences, and is capable of performing
the functions of a company secretary. Mr. Chan is the secretary of the Board
and various Board committees including Audit Committee, Remuneration

Committee, Corporate Governance Committee and Nomination Committee.

During the year ended 30th June 2022, Mr. Chan has complied with Rule 3.29 of

the Listing Rules by taking no less than |5 hours of relevant professional training.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure and
comprehensive and transparent reporting of its performance and activities.
Enquiries and suggestions from shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) or investors are welcomed, and enquiries from Shareholders
may be put to the Board through the following channels to the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary"):

by mail to the Company’s head office at Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory
Center, 10 Wo Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong;

2. by telephone at telephone number +852 2693 1663;
3. by fax at fax number +852 2694 0877; or
4. by email at info@nhh.com.hk.

Annual and interim reports are printed and sent to all shareholders.
Announcements are posted on the Company's website https://www.nhh.com.
hk. Constantly being updated in a timely manner, the website also contains

additional information on the Group's business activities.

The Company encourages its shareholders to attend general meetings to ensure
a high level of accountability and to stay informed of the Group's strategy and

goals.

The Company keeps shareholders informed of the procedure for voting by
poll in all circulars to shareholders which are from time to time despatched to
shareholders together with notices of general meetings of the Company. The
Company has taken steps to ensure compliance with the requirements about
voting by poll contained in the Listing Rules and the constitutional documents
of the Company. The Board attends the Annual General Meetings to answer
shareholders’ questions. Poll results are published on the website of the Stock

Exchange and are posted on the Company's website shortly after the meetings.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT (Continued)

According to the Company's bye-laws, members holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-
one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions of
Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person (the “Candidate”) for election as a
Director at a general meeting, he/she shall deposit a written notice (the “Notice”)
at the Company's head office in Hong Kong at Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory
Centre, 10 Wo Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong. The
Notice (i) must include the personal information of the Candidate as required
by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and his/her contact details; and (i) must be
signed by the Shareholder concerned including the information/documents to
verify the identity of the Shareholder and signed by the Candidate indicating his/
her willingness to be elected and consent of publication of his/her personal data.
The period for lodgement of the Notice shall commence on the day after the
dispatch of the notice of general meeting and end no later than seven days prior
to the date of such general meeting. In order to ensure the Shareholders have
sufficient time to receive and consider the proposal of election of the Candidate
as a Director without adjourning the general meeting, Shareholders are urged to
submit and lodge the Notice as soon as practicable, say at least fifteen business

days prior to the date of the general meeting appointed for such election.

The Board has established a shareholders communication policy on 26th March
2012 and will review it on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness to comply
with the code provision E.|.4 of the CG Code.
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EERERHRE

DIVIDEND POLICY
The dividend policy of the Company (the “Dividend Policy”) was adopted by the

Board and became effective on Ist January 2019.

The Dividend Policy is to ensure that the Board maintains an appropriate
procedure on declaring and recommending the dividend payment of the
Company. The Board endeavors to strike a balance between the Company's
shareholders’ interests and prudent capital management with a sustainable
dividend policy.

The declaration and recommendation of dividends is subject to the decision of
the Board after considering the Company's ability to pay dividends, which will
depend upon, among other things:

® the Group's financial results;

®  the Group's cashflow, liquidity and capital requirements;

®  the Group's debt to equity ratios and the debt level;
®  the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Group;
® the Group's shareholders’ interests;

®  the Group's current and future business operations, conditions, cycle and

strategies;
° the general market conditions;
®  the shareholders’ and the investors' expectation and industry’'s norm;

. any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by the

Group's lenders;
. statutory and regulatory restrictions;
. past dividend records; and

. any other factors the Board may deem relevant.
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DIVIDEND POLICY (Continued)

The Board has complete discretion on whether to pay a dividend and the form
to pay, subject to any restrictions under the Companies Act of Bermuda and the
Bye-laws of the Company. Any final dividends declared by the Company must
be approved by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company at
an annual general meeting and must not exceed the amount recommended by
the Board. The Board may also consider declaring special dividends from time to
time, in addition to the interim and/or final dividends. There is no assurance that

dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any given period.

The Company shall review and reassess the Dividend Policy and its effectiveness
from time to time. Any revisions to the Dividend Policy shall be considered and

approved by the Board.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group"), which are set out on pages 62 to

190, comprise:

®  the consolidated balance sheet as at 30th June 2022;

®  the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

® the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then
ended;

®  the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

®  the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

® the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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OPINION (Continued)

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30th June 2022, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code"), and we have fulfilled our other

ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is those matters that, in our professional judgment, was of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. This matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,

and we do not provide a separate opinion on this matter.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is provision for inventories.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER (Continued)

EEETEEE)

Key Audit Matter HRETEE

Provision for inventories FREEE

Refer to Notes 2.11, 4(e) and 21 of the consolidated financial statements BRMGE LM T 211 - 4(e) K21

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net value, being estimated BETEAAN A E#RFEREP 2BE

selling price less estimated selling costs. As at 30th June 2022, the Group's %@JE\E A BBFEDRBETHENRSE

balance of net inventories was HK$43,468,000. FRIBRATHEXHMEE - RZT=-=
FRA=+H BEEENHFEFEAR

The estimation of provision for inventories involves significant management
judgement, which is determined with reference to the price per latest sales
transaction, ageing analysis and the estimated net realisable value for obsolete

and/or slow-moving inventories.

We focused on the evaluation of management’s assessment on the provision
for inventories because this assessment is subject to estimation uncertainty.
The inherent risk in relation to the assessment relates to the complexity of the
methods and subjectivity of significant assumption used, significant judgements
involved in selecting data and the carrying values of these inventories are

financially significant to the Group.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER (Continued) REETER@
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter BMNEFNAEEBERESEE
Provision for inventories (Continued) FEEE (&)

In assessing the reasonableness of management's provision for inventories, we HAHEEEHFERENMHESEY -
performed the following procedures: BMBITHREF B

We obtained an understanding on the management's internal control and
assessment process of estimating the provision allowance of obsolete and
slow-moving inventories, net realisable values including how management
gathered source of inventory data and adopted the assumption
for provision allowance. We assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and

level of other inherent risk factors;

We evaluated the Group's inventory provision policy with reference to

the requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;

We assessed the reasonableness of methodology and assumptions
applied to estimate inventories provision by inquiring management
and other relevant employees and comparing against historical sales,
reviewing utilisation pattern and historical key inventory ratios (e.g.

inventory turnover days) and data;

We tested inventories movements to validate the accuracy of the
inventories ageing report, which was the key report used by management

to determine the provision for slow-moving inventories;

In relation to management's assessment of inventories' net realisable
values, we compared the selling prices used in the assessment to actual

selling prices subsequent to year end; and

We performed a recalculation of the inventory provision based on the
net realisabale value and ageing profile of the inventories as at 30th June
2022.

We found the assumptions adopted and judgement applied by management

were supported by the available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual report
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be

materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We

have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial

reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic

decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional

judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control.

-
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions

and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including

any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh

the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s

report is Ng Hiu Tung.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29th September 2022
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Consolidated Income Statement

e ER

For the year ended 30th June 2022
BE—F - —FNNA=1HIFE

2022 2021
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
ik FTET TET
Revenue from contracts with customers BEPEH e 5 1,738,775 1,971,074
Cost of sales SHE B 8 (1,435,641) (1,623,857)
Gross profit il 303,134 347,217
Other income HAb A 6 6,797 7,219
Other losses, net Hith &8 — 58 7 (249) (2279)
Distribution costs DA 8 (88,273) (86,125)
(Provision for)/reversal of loss allowance on g 5 EUGRE B (BE),/
trade receivables B[ 3.1 (535) 430
Administrative expenses TR 8 (124,375) (136,050)
Operating profit KR 96,499 130,412
Finance income B s 898 1,137
Finance costs BB E R (8,470) (9,952)
Finance costs, net MBER - F8 9 (7,572) (8,815)
Profit before income tax B B4 B 88,927 121,597
Income tax expense MIESZ 10 (22,483) (25,178)
Profit for the year RERH 66,444 96,419
Attributable to: AT AT RE -
Equity holders of the Company NG ES 56,598 89,865
Non-controlling interests eI 9,846 6,554
66,444 96,419
Earnings per share for profit attributable to equity AN /€ A T AR 3R FEAE 5 A
holders of the Company during the year 2 GREF
(expressed in HK cent per share) (LABEED)
— Basic and diluted —EAN S 12 15.33 24.34
The above consolidated income statement should be read in conjunction with Lt AR S WS 7% B BE BT BT 5 — OF B AE o

the accompanying notes.

z/ NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« REITHERDF
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
FaadilaER

For the year ended 30th June 2022

P E—FENA=THIFFE

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Profit for the year RE % F 96419
Other comprehensive income: Hith 2 EIE -
[tem that will not be reclassified subsequently RETSHETHEE
to income statement: Wk IBEE -
Fair value gain of financial asset at fair value RARBEAEM
though other comprehensive income FHBENMBEEESL
("FVOCI™) NABERS 717 363
[tem that may be reclassified subsequently BEARETSBEE

to income statement: WesK 2 IEE -

Currency translation differences M =R 44 41,242
Other comprehensive income for the year REHMEE KR 761 41,605
Total comprehensive income for the year REPHMK LT 67,205 138,024
Total comprehensive income attributable to: PHBREEREER

— Equity holders of the Company —RNAEIRE 57,148 130,479
— Non-controlling interests — FEFEHIRE 10,057 7,545
67,205 138,024

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

bR A & O Uk ER R MR BB PN B o — 15D
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
HBoBEEREAER

As at 30th June 2022

R-E-ZZF~A=1H

2022 2021
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
ik FTHET FAET
ASSETS aE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BEREE 15 111,503 113,126
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 30,826 27,107
Investment properties WEME 17 155,160 155,013
Intangible assets mEAE 18 = —
Financial asset at fair value through other BRAREBEFTAEM
comprehensive income PHEHWENIBEE 19 2,943 2226
Deferred income tax assets REBIEEE 29 9,090 8,132
Deposits and prepayments for property, ME - BB RREEEE
plant and equipment and renovation costs BERRERZS 4,118 3,458
313,640 309,062
Current assets RBEE
Inventories EE 21 413,468 238,324
Trade and bills receivables 2 F R R EWERE 22 233,142 276,823
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits Hfth fEUYRR - BT
Migs 48,824 32,240
Income tax recoverable EIRLEE TR 861 784
Restricted bank deposits R HI M RITFER 24 38,797 38,344
Cash and cash equivalents RekBFeEHE 24 178,926 206,579
914,018 793,094
Total assets naE 1,227,658 1,102,156
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable to the AR RREGRAE K B
Company’s equity holders
Share capital A% AN 26 36,920 36,920
Share premium A% A B 26 62,466 62,466
Other reserves Hith 27 61,281 60,731
Retained earnings R 4 A 27 464,592 428,300
625,259 588,417
Non-controlling interests FRIEFI S 33,787 31,727
Total equity QB 659,046 620,144

.
-
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
ReBEERER

As at 30th June 2022

REZF=ZZF NA=1H

2022 2021
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
=3 T T
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Deferred income tax liabilities RERIBEE 29 6,261 4496
Lease liabilities HEasE 16 8,201 4014
Provision for reinstatement costs 1E1E R N B 884 23
15,346 8,533
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and bills payables B I RN RN ENRE 25 87,336 78,252
Other payables, deposits received and accruals HMEMNRK - e lET2
LIERE R 51,506 57,655
Lease liabilities HEAE 16 5013 4784
Bank borrowings wITIEE 28 392,827 319,708
Derivative financial instruments TEesMI A 23 296 23
Income tax payable e IR 16,288 13,057
553,266 473,479
Total liabilities HWEE 568,612 482,012
Total equity and liabilities BEZREE 1,227,658 1,102,156

|_|_

AR & B E R B R E HBE MY — 5150

o

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the

i

accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 70 to 190 were approved by the FI0EIVOENMBHRREHETEN =

Board of Directors on 29th September 2022 and were signed on its behalf E_FRAAZTAERE  URRES
B%E

HUI Sai Chung HUI Kwok Kwong

B it ER FFE K

Director Director

2 EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 30th June 2022
BE—F - —FNNA=1HIFE

Attributable to the Company's equity holders
AARREEN

Other reserves

AR

Financial

assets at

fair value
through

other
comprehensive

income reserve

BAR Exchange
BlETA fluctuation Non-
Share Share Capital Revaluation Afh2E reserve Retained controling
capital premium resrve resene  WEMET E% eamings interests Total
Rx  BEEE AAfh  ERER AERE KERE  REEN  HEER it
HK$1000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$1000 HK$'000
ThR T TR T TR T Tin T TR
At lst uly 2020 WZZ-RELA-H 36920 62,466 (3119 9640 121 12385 345819 519 490321
Comprehensive income 2EhE
Profit fo the year RERH - - - - - = 89,865 6554 96419
Other comprehensive income Aft2ERE
Currency translation differences EizE - - - - - 40353 - 889 414
Fair value gai of fnancia asset at VOOl BAABE ARMRENE
HREEL DABRYE - = = = %l = = 102 ®
Total comprehensive income PEUEER - - - - 2! 40353 89,865 7545 138024
Transactions with owners LAY
Capital inection from non-controling FitlRR A
sharcholders (Note 39) (Pt 3s) = S = = = = = 26% 26%
20002021 iterim dividends paid ¥f-32%/232-5§
hERE = = = = = = (7364 = (7384
Dividends paid to non-controllng interests ~ FISEIEHIER X RS = = = = = = = (71) (373)
Total transactions with owners HFEEI R R - - - - - - (7.384) (1o (8401)
At 30th June 2021 RZZ=-%7A=1H 36920 62466 (3.119) 9640 1472 5738 48300 31727 620,144
NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED « RE{THRADF



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FaESSPR

For the year ended 30th June 2022

BE T —FNA=1THIFFE

Autributable to the Company's equity holders

ARRREEB

Other reserves

SRt

Financial
assets at
fair value
through
other
comprehensive
income reserve
BOA Exchange
EETA fluctuation Non-
Share Share Capital -~ Revaluation Afp2E reserve Retained controlling

capital premium reserve reseve  WEHEE Ed earnings interests Total
R R&if EAxGf EftRR EEGE RaaE REEH  EEHER g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn T Thn T Thn Tin T TEn T

At st July 2021 AZE--E+A-R 36920 62466 (3119) 9,640 1472 52,738 428,300 37 620,144
Comprehensive income tEkE
Profit for the year HERN - - - - - - 56598 9846 46,444
Other comprehensive income Efb2EdE
Currency translation differences EXEE - - - - - i - 10 4
Fair value gan of financial asset at VOCI - BRAA B AL 2 ENE
KRR DABEYNE - - - - 5l6 - - i m
Total comprehensive income 2ENEEE - - - - 516 4 56,598 10,057 67,205
Transactions with owners BFEEZRE
20202021 fvel dvidends paid ¥f-22%3/32-%§
~HkE = = = = = = (14768) = (14768)
202112022 interim dividend paid $HZR2-/Z3CFR
hEkE = = = = = = (5539) = (5539)
Dividends paid to non-controling interests 3R HIER R MRS - - - - - - - (7997) (71.997)
Total transactions with owners RfiREz 2588 - - - - - - (20306) (7997) (28,303)
At 30th June 2022 i 7 o 36,920 62,466 (3119 9,640 1,988 52,772 44,59 33781 659,046
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in FatARE B B 3% FE SR RE P PR 5 — OF B
conjunction with the accompanying notes. iH °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GABEERER

For the year ended 30th June 2022

R —F - —FNA=1HILFE

2022 2021
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
ik FTET FAET
Cash flows from operating activities REXBZRER
Cash (used in)/generated from operations REEB(ER) EE
Z2H® 30(a) (22,785) 178,214
Hong Kong profits tax paid EHBFBENEH (830) (2,293)
Mainland China income tax paid BB B i pTIS R (17,692) (14,907)
Interest received AR 445 1,096
Net cash (used in)/generated from REEBH(ER) EEZ
operating activities FHEE (40,862) 162,110
Cash flows from investing activities REEBZREN
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE  BEREE (14,129) (12,127)
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEME - BERZE
plant and equipment PR3 30(b) — 25
Prepayments for property, M - BE REREENR
plant and equipment (3,899) (3,352)
Net cash used in investing activities REXBRERAZFH® (18,028) (15,454)

=
o

c NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« REITHERDF



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
ReReRER

For the year ended 30th June 2022

B2 T - —FNA=1HIFFE

2022 2021
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
ik FTET TET
Cash flows from financing activities @E%ﬁzfﬁ G
Proceeds from bank loans FTIERITEN 583,778 591,701
Repayment of bank loans 1;3@@&17?%& (575,841) (636,246)
Increase/(decrease) in trust receipt loans B E RS CRd) 65,182 (6,771)
Capital injections from non-controlling EEHIER 2 TE
interests 35 — 2,696
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests XA PRSI R 2 R E (7,997) (3,713)
Dividends paid XARE (20,306) (7,261)
Interest paid ERFE (8,470) (9,952)
Repayment of principal elements of BREEEBELASEY
lease liabilities (5,038) (4,734)
Net cash generated from/(used in) MEXEKEE/(ER)Z
financing activities FHRe 31,308 (74,280)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RekBReEH2OHL) /180
cash equivalents (27,582) 72,376
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FUzBEeRkREERE
of the year 24 206,579 126,094
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEEXRE R 71) 8,109
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year ~FARZE & RIB & EHHE 24 178,926 206,579

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction LR & IR & 7R 2 5% B SRR M B 5T — OF B2

with the accompanying notes. A o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IIF

B IFMRMEE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacturing and
trading of plastic materials, pigments, colorants, compounded plastic resins

and engineering plastic products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 1|, Bermuda.

The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HK$"), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on
29th September 2022.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issues by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
investment properties, financial asset at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial liabilities (including derivative
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, which are carried at

fair value.

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« REITHERDF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.

(a)  Effect of adopting new standards, amendments to standards

and interpretation

The Group has applied the following new standards,
amendments to standards and interpretation for the first time

for the annual perioding beginning on Ist July 2021:

Amendments to Hong Kong Accounting
Standard (“HKAS") 39, HKFRS 4,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16

HEBGTERNEIR BEFB®HR F
EEAF AR - BAWHRE LR
FT7H - BAMBHREERE IR K
BAMBHREERE 16 5RHER]

Amendments to HKFRS 16
HEBVBMEERZE 6 5RMIERT

—_— =

TS RE

The adoption of the above new standards, amendments to
standards and interpretation did not have any impact on the
amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to

significantly affect the current or future periods.

| REERFE-F

AR I ERARMIEE

2 FESHBE#SE@)

2.1

B BX
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MBHmAFEERETHRES
HEE - ENFEEEEERE
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EEHE - p RS E R HE K
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Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B S ER AR B X

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESTHHEEEm@)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2] HEEEE

(b) KTBERMEILIFR
BBZE-F-—F+AH
—HEAYBFRER
A BT R R 21 E R 69
AT A B SR TR

(b)  The following new standards and amendments to standards
have been issued but are not effective for the annual
period beginning st July 2021 and have not been early
adopted:

Annual Improvements Project

B BHREEI(EFTA)

HKFRS 3, HKAS 16 and HKAS 37

BAGEUEIRUBETA) -
BAGEAE 16 R(ERTA) R
BAGREAE 37 RUEFTA)

Amendments to HKAS 37
BRBEFIERE 37 RAMEE]

Amendments to Accounting Guideline 5
HEETE5IE S RAERT

HKFRS 17
BRAMBHRERNS 175

Amendments to HKFRS |7
HEBPBMEERSE 1 755MERT

Amendments to HKAS | and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2

HEBSHERE | K REBHB
HREEBEBREE2HAEET

f—
ﬁ; NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« REITHERDF
2

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020"

EEMBHREEN T \FE_T_TENFEUE'

Narrow-scope amendments'

EREBERENERT

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract'
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Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations'
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Insurance Contracts?
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Amendments to HKFRS |72
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Disclosure of Accounting Policies?
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)  The following new standards and amendments to standards
have been issued but are not effective for the annual
period beginning st July 2021 and have not been early
adopted: (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS |
HEBGERE | RAERT

Amendments to HKAS 8
HEBGFERSE SRS FEHhEIER?

Amendments to HKAS |2

a single transaction?

B RPELZEENBBERBETHA?

HWEBEHERAE 2 ROET

Amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5
HEBRERESWHER]

AN K
DER?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

gz 2 25— 1

AR I ERARMIEE

FTESHBERE @)

2] MHmREE(E

()

Definition of Accounting Estimates?

and its Associate or Joint Venture?

HEBYBRELNE 105 R
BEGFHERISE 28 RAEET

) Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist January

2022

@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist January
2023

® To be determined

The Group has completed an assessment of the impact of the
new standards and amendments to standards on its results of
operations and financial position. However, none of the above
new standards and amendments to standards is expected to

have a significant effect on the financial statements.
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Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current?
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Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from

Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification by the Borrower

of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause?
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Sales or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B S ER AR B X

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation

(@)

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the

date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by

the group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and balance sheet

respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(@)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration

transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

o fair values of the assets transferred;

. liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired

business;

®  equity interests issued by the Group;

* fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a

contingent consideration arrangement; and

. fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the

subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with limited
exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable

assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B S ER AR B X

. amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired

entity, and

. acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest

in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain

purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to
their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount
rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the
rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and conditions.
Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are
subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair

value recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

®)

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interest
that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with
equity owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest
results in an adjustment between the carrying amounts of
the controlling and no-controlling interests to reflect their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and
any consideration paid or received is recognised in a separate

reserve within equity attributable to owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account
for an investment because of a loss of control, joint control
or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity
is remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category

of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

2

RS B IS ER AR B EE

FTESHBERE @)

2.2

HEHRE (E)

()

RS

REBEBRTBHKREE
Bl IEIERERER S
RIERAEEERESR
AW%%O%%%%E

k%EZ%EﬁWE
ﬁﬁvﬂﬁﬁﬁfxﬁ
ff B 2~ A 2 48 BE 42
oo RIS T B
mEAMDMHE KK
f‘iZF'ﬁZEﬂ%%EEAZIK
NEEA ANRIGERTD
H)IB 3L RERR -

v
K X

N
/|

fisd 7N 5 (8] (A 2 2K 22 ) 4
RERTENMIFLES
—EREGREARNE
ARETZEE RER
WAEMREERZAT
BEFE AEEE
E@EEFAWE%E
R BLEBARYER

ENRR - AEDERY
BEENRBEZ  H
AFERVKKEE -
gEoh - RRIREM 2@
W EREZERE W
WAEMESRE  RBOAR
SECERELERBHE
ERBENARNAR-
LA BE B R R AT E E A
2EHREERANEEE
MoBEEEREER
FA & 7 Bt % R 45 2E AP
ﬂ%/&#%’%%x

— R o

ANNUAL REPORT FEIR%E 21 /22

©)



=3

@ 3
sl
A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B S ER AR B X

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
(b)  Changes in ownership interests (Continued)

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is
reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained,
only a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to

profit or loss where appropriate.

2.3 Segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the Executive Directors of the Company that

make strategic decisions.

2.4 Foreign currency translation
(a)  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the

Company's functional and the Group's presentation currency.

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-
measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the

consolidated profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)  Transactions and balances (Continued)

(©

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
are presented in the consolidated income statement within
“finance income” or “finance costs". All other foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in the consolidated income

statement within “other losses, net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was determined. Translation
differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example,
translation differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities
such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss
and translation differences on non-monetary assets such as
equities classified as fair value through other comprehensive

income are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as

follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance

sheet;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B S ER AR B X

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)  Group companies (Continued)

(i) income and expenses for each profit or loss account are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in

which case income and expenses are translated at the

rate on the dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in

consolidated other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the

foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. Exchange

differences arising are recognised in equity.

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint
control over a jointly controlled entity that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that

operation attributable to the equity holders of the Company

are reclassified to consolidated profit and loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal
(Continued)

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the
Group losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are reattributed to non-controlling interests and

are not recognised in consolidated profit and loss.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to

the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income

statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their residual

values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

- Buildings 40 to 50 years

- Leasehold improvements Shorter of the
unexpired lease

term or 5 years

- Machinery and equipment 8 years
- Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 5 years
- Motor vehicles 5 years
- Tools and moulds 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. An asset’s
carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated

recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount of the relevant assets and are

recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.

If an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property
carried at fair value, it is reclassified as investment property. The
difference between the fair value and the carrying amount of the
property at the date of transfer is recognised in revaluation reserve.
Subsequent changes in the fair value of the investment property are
recognised in the income statement as part of other gains/losses. If
an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value at the date of

reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group. It
also includes properties that are being constructed or developed
for future use as investment properties. Land held under operating
leases are accounted for as investment properties when the rest of
the definition of an investment property is met. In such cases, the
operating leases concerned are accounted for as if they were finance
leases. Investment property is initially measured at cost, including

related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.

After initial recognition, investment properties are carried at fair
value, representing open market value determined at each reporting
date by external valuers. Fair value is based on valuations carried
out by external valuers. Changes in fair values are recorded in the
consolidated profit or loss as valuation gain or loss in “other losses,

net”.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated profit or loss during the financial

period in which they are incurred.

Gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is determined by
comparing the proceeds and the carrying amount of the investment

property and is recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Intangible assets - Technical know-how

2.8

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

Technical know-how comprises the acquired rights to use certain
technologies for the manufacture of plastic products. Acquired
technical know-how is capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred
to acquire and bring to use. These costs are amortised over their

estimated useful lives of five years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet available
for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the

impairment at each reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets

(@)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following

measurement categories:

— those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income or through profit

or loss), and

- those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity's business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the

cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income.
For investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the Group has made
an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value through other

comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when

its business model for managing those assets changes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B S ER AR B X

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

®)

(©

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

Recognition and derecogntion

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or

loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are

solely payment of principal and interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B IS ER AR B EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESTHHEEEm@)

POLICIES (Continued)
2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

29 HBEEE)

(c) Measurement (Continued) (c) FEE)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group's business model for managing the asset and the cash

flow characteristics of the asset.

= Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss
and presented in “other losses, net” together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses
are presented as separate line item in the consolidated

income statement.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at
fair value. Where the Group's management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in
OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains
and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of
the investment. Dividends from such investments continue
to be recognised in consolidated income statement as “other
losses, net” when the Group's right to receive payments is

established.

EFETA

BB TR ZREFTERN
RRAEEEEEEN
ﬁﬁ@/}m%%‘@ﬂl‘]%ﬁ%
B o

— B BER
BAHBEERE(E
RRARE RF B
FOR B EIREBEK
AitE - 2 EHH
BEELENF B
AfFERERFEE
FTARBHA o B
HERELENTM
KRk BEEER
BRER LER
PE 3 W BB R
[Efh B 18 — F 58
2% BE/BEBILE
fREWmERPLAE
BIEE 27

RIETA

REBHRBEAAEBE
AREMmARBERE-

WAEEEEEEER
Hib 2w 25
REARBERZEE
B BUEBIRERT
el ARBEKRRNE
BEFIEZE
7N 55 B B 7 MEURR B
HENE  ZFKRE
B AR BB N B R
RIEAMEE —FE] -

Bixme- &

ANNUAL REPORT FEIR%E 21 /22

%)



=3

=
8
v

\

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B S ER AR B X

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(©

(d)

Measurement (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in “other losses,
net” in consolidated income statement as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on
equity investments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not reported separately from other

changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk. For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the

receivables.

2.10 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a

derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured

at their fair values. The method of recognising the resulting gains or

losses depends on whether the derivative is designated and qualified

as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being

hedged. Assets and liabilities are classified as current if expected to

be settled within twelve months; otherwise, they are classified as

non-current.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

2.12

2.13

As the Group's derivative financial instruments do not qualify for
hedge accounting, changes in the fair value of these derivative
financial instruments are recognised immediately in the consolidated

profit or loss within “other losses, net”.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost
of finished goods comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less

applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-

current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method, less loss allowance.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks
and bank overdrafts, if any. In the consolidated balance sheet, bank

overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IIF

2

B IFMRMEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.

Financial liabilities (including trade and bills payables) are initially
measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised

cost, using the effective interest method.

2.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs, net of tax,
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown

in equity as a deduction from the proceeds.

2.16 Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest

method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least

|2 months after the end of the reporting period.

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss

in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable

on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable

income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred

tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to

unused tax losses.

(@)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable
that a tax authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The
Group meausres its tax balances wither based on the most
likely amount or the expected value, depending on which
method provides a better predication of the resolution of the

uncertainty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B S ER AR B X

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

®)

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the

deferred income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment property
that is measured at fair value is determined assuming the

property will be recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those

temporary differences and losses.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available

against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(®)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax
bases of investments in foreign operations where the company
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise

the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case,
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity, respectively.

AR I ERARMIEE

2 FESHBE#SE@)

2.17 BRI REZZH (&)

()

FERTEH (E)

fied 75 62 [ B S 4% %Uﬁé‘@
TRERERM -

%%@ﬂ%T@%ﬂﬁ
HEREE - BT g5 E
INEBZIRERmMER
ﬁ%ZﬁZﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ
RIELEHRBRBEREE -

i A 0K € R BA 1T AR I A
EHHAEERREM
B 1§ 1 IR AT B IR 4 AR
B REA B HEE - Al
EEVBEERAGA
THEHEFE - WERE
BAEATEARITRRNA
Bk ABRRFEEE
BE REEREER
BEMBEBHEAE  AE
HRBAEERABEAN
EiKEH -

B ER R 3 RE B T X 18 %
PR HEBANHA
2EREHEERER
ﬁﬁumﬁﬁﬁﬂoﬂﬁ
ﬂT MEW %ﬂ

E

\

ANNUAL REPORT FE#RE 21 /22



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B S ER AR B X

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits

(@)

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

Pension obligations

The Group participates in several defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes. A defined contribution scheme
is a pension plan under which the Group pays contributions
to publicly or privately administered pension plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has
no further legal or constructive obligations to pay further

contributions once the contributions have been paid.

The Group participates in the mandatory provident fund
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong. Under the
MPF Scheme, the Group and its relevant employees makes
monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employee’s
relevant income with a maximum of HK$ 1,500 per month,
as appropriate, as defined in the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Ordinance. The contributions are fully and

immediately vested in the employees.

The Group also contributes to certain defined contribution
schemes for its employees in Mainland China. Contributions
are made by the Group on a monthly basis to those state-
sponsored retirement plans based on a percentage of the
relevant income of the relevant employees. The Group has no
further obligations for the actual payment of pensions beyond
its contributions. The state-sponsored retirement plans are
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to

retired employees.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(@)

®)

(©

Pension obligations (Continued)

Contributions made are recognised as employee benefits
expenses when they are due and are not reduced by
contribution forfeited by those relevant employees who leave
the scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a

cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leaves are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liabilities for annual leaves as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are

not recognised until the time of leave.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan (the “Share Option Scheme”). The fair
value of the employee services received in exchange for
the grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to
the fair value of the options granted, including any market
performance conditions; excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance vesting conditions; and including

the impact of any non-vesting conditions.

AR I ERARMIEE

2 FESHBE#SE@)

2.18 EESEF(4E)

(@)

()

(©

RIK#AEE)
HAEENKRRRE
ERAMAX - BTAH
2HEBHNARERG
FmMEEMMENHRK
A D o FEAT IR IR
B RRKABDRK
NHMERREE -

1B R BRA
BEFHRZENNEER
EZFAERER - At E
EHEEREEBRHER
BmERZFRE T&
- BEZHRBED R
BRETERR EERE
BIEAMREBAL -

KRG B EEZ BB &
7

AEBMEEUNREN
B B £ 3R B 5t 3 (T R8 A
RETE D URERB
PR 2 PR R B R
BRARBEDERRH
X RAXBBNZEM
RhBEREZARLER
BEE ETEELH
MG EGEGSE BXET
B E A AR5 M I T 5
KB ZAIITHRGMN T
BRI TR

ANNUAL REPORT FE#RE 21 /22



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IIF

2

B IFMRMEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c)  Share-based compensation (Continued)

Non-market performance and service conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options that are expected
to vest. The total expense is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the specified
performance and service conditions are to be satisfied. At
each balance sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to vest based on the
non-market vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision of original estimates, if any, in the income statement,

with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)

and share premium when the options are exercised.

Under the terms of the existing Share Option Scheme of the
Group, the Directors may, at their discretion, invite eligible
participants to take up share options to subscribe for the
shares of the Company subject to the terms and conditions
stipulated therein. No share options were granted or exercised
during the year. As at 30th June 2022 and 2021, there is no

share option outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESTHHEEEm@)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued) 2.18 IESHEF (&)

(d)  Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a
liability when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered by employees and
a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Liabilities of
bonus plan are expected to be settled within twelve months
and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when

they are settled.

2.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not

recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any

one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision

due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IIF

2

B IFMRMEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by

the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.
However, for leases of real estate for which the group is a lessee,
it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and

instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do
not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the
leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be

used as security for borrowing purposes.

As a lessee

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of

the following lease payments:

* fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less

any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate;

®  amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual

value guarantees;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Leases (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)

® the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is

reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

. payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease

term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension

options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be determined, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value

in a similar economic environment with similar terms and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

. where possible, uses recent third-party financing received
by the individual lease as s starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third party financing was

received;

. uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest
rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group,

which does not have recent third party financing; and

. makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country,

currency and security.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B S ER AR B X

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESTHTHEEEm@)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Leases (Continued) 220 HE (/&)

As a lessee (Continued)

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost.
The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining

balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

®  the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

® any lease payments made at or before the commencement

date less any lease incentives received;

. any initial direct costs; and

° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-

of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset's useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit
or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of twelve
months or less. Low-value assets comprise IT-equipment and small

items of office furniture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Leases (Continued)

2.21

222

As a lessor

Lease income from operating leases where the group is a lessor is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as
expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The
respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on
their nature. The group did not need to make any adjustments to
the accounting for assets held as lessor as a result of adopting the

new leasing standard.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions. Government
grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the

costs that they are intended to compensate.

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring a promised good to a customer, which
is when the customer obtains control of a good, has the ability
to direct the use of, and obtain substantially all of the remaining
benefits from that good. If the control of the goods and services is
transferred over a period of time, the Group recognises revenue by
reference to the extent of progress toward completion in fulfilling its

performance obligations during the entire contract period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B S ER AR B X

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Revenue recognition (Continued)

2.23

For the amounts of revenue recognised for goods transferred
and services provided, the Group recognises any unconditional
rights to consideration separately as a receivable and the rest as a
contract asset, and recognises provision for loss allowance of the
receivable and the contract asset based on expected credit loss;
if the consideration received or receivable exceeds the obligation
performed by the Group, a contract liability is recognised. The
Group presents a net contract asset or a net contract liability under

each contract.

The Group recognises revenue from sales of goods in the

consolidated income statement in accordance with below policies:

Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity has transferred
control over products to the customer, the customer has accepted
the products, there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customer’s acceptance of the products, the amount of sales can be
reliably measured and it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the entity. Revenue from sales is based on the price
specified in the sales contracts. Accumulated experience is used to
estimate the likelihood and provide for sales return for the goods
sold at the time of sale. A receivable is recognised when the goods
are delivered as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is required before

the payment is due.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method. When a receivable is impaired, the Group
reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount
as interest income. Interest income on impaired loans is recognised

using the original effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company'’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group's and the Company's financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders for final dividend and Board of Directors for interim
dividend.

2.25 Earnings per share
(1) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

® The profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company, excluding any costs of servicing equity other

than ordinary shares; and

. by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued during the year and

excluding treasury shares.

(i) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in

determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

° the after-income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary

shares, and

® the weighted average number of additional ordinary
shares that would have been outstanding assuming the

conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B S ER AR B X

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's
overall risk management policy focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on

the Group's financial performance.

Management regularly monitors the financial risks of the Group.
The use of financial derivatives to hedge certain risk exposures
is governed by the Group's policies approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company in order to manage those risks. The
Group does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative

purposes.

(a)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and Mainland China
with transactions mainly settled in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"),
Renminbi (“RMB") and US dollar (“USD"). Foreign exchange
risk arises when future commercial transactions or recognised
assets or liabilities are denominated in a currency that is
not the entity's functional currency. The Group is exposed
to foreign exchange risk from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to USD and RMB.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Management has a policy to require group companies to
manage their foreign exchange risk against functional currency.
[t mainly includes managing the exposures arise from sales
and purchases made by the relevant group companies in
currencies other than their own functional currencies. The
Group also manages its foreign exchange risk by performing
regular reviews of the Group's net foreign exchange exposures
and has entered into certain foreign exchange contracts to
manage foreign exchange risks. As at 30th June 2022, the
Group had certain outstanding forward foreign currency
contracts to purchase USD (2021: purchase USD), details of
which have been disclosed in Note 23. Certain of the Group's
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade and bills payables
and borrowings were also denominated in foreign currencies,
details of which have been disclosed in Notes 22, 24, 25 and
28. Since the HK$ is pegged to USD, management are of the
opinion that the exchange rate risk exposure arising from USD

is relatively insignificant.

At 30th June 2022, if HK$ had weakened/strengthened by
5% against RMB, with all other variables held constant, post-
tax profit for the year would have been HK$1,273,000 (2021:
HK$1,261,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange losses/gains on translation of foreign currency-

denominated non-derivative financial assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B S ER AR B X

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. The Group
has no significant interest-bearing assets except for the cash
at bank. The Group's exposure to changes in interest rates
is mainly attributable to its borrowings. Borrowings carry at
floating rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk
whereas those carry at fixed rates expose the Group to fair

value interest rate risk.

The Group will review whether bank borrowings bearing
fixed or floating rates should be drawn from time to time with

reference to the trend of changes in interest rates.

As at 30th June 2022, if the interest rates had been 50 basis
points higher/lower, with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been HK$589,000
(202 1: HK$836,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/
lower interest income on cash at bank net off with higher/

lower interest expense on borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(©

(@

Price risk

The Group is exposed to commodity price risk in relation to
its plastic materials which is dependent on the oil price. The
Group closely monitors the price of its raw materials in order

to determine its pricing strategies.

Credit risk

Credit risk of the Group mainly arises from cash and cash
equivalents and security investments with banks and financial
institutions, as well as credit exposures to customers such
as trade receivables and other counterparties. The carrying
amounts of these balances in the consolidated balance sheet
represents the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in

relation to its financial assets.

The Group has two types of financial assets that are subject to

the expected credit loss model:

= Trade receivables: and

- Other financial assets at amortised cost.

Substantially all of the Group’s cash at bank and the restricted
bank deposits are deposited in major financial institutions
located in Hong Kong and Mainland China, which management
believes are of high credit quality. The Group has a policy to
limit the amount of credit exposure to any financial institution
and management does not expect any losses arising from non-

performance by these counterparties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B S ER AR B X

measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables shared

credit risk characteristics.

Trade receivables are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Impairment losses
on trade receivables are presented as impairment
losses within operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against the

same line item.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment
profiles of customers and the corresponding historical
credit losses experienced. The historical loss rates
are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the receivables. With
the increased risk from the volatility of economic climate
in Mainland China and Hong Kong, the Group has
maintained a defined credit policy with tightened risk
profile and applied prudent policies to manage its credit
risk with its trade receivables that includes an ageing
analysis of trade receivables is prepared on a regular
basis and is closely monitored to minimise any credit risk

associated with receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI ImRMIEE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HREKREER@®)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3 HEEEEZEE)
(d)  Credit risk (Continued) (d) 1EEmfE(E)
(1) Trade receivables (Continued) () BIZERZE)
On that basis, the loss allowance as at 30th June 2022 EEELE B
and 30th June 2021 was determined as follows for trade E__FXNAZ=ZF
receivables: AT —FX
A=THE®MESE
W EEREET
U

Gross Expected credit

carrying loss rate Loss
amount EHEE allowance
REAE BE=E BREE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE T
As at 30th June 2022 R=-®B=Z
~A=+H
Current RAE 165,285 0.0% - 0.4% 91
Within 30 days 30 A 28,120 0.0% - 1.2% 27
31 to 60 days 31-60 H 9,378 0.0% - 3.5% 40
61 to 90 days 61-90 H 2,372 0.0% - 14.2% 53
91 to 180 days 91-180 H 4,468 0.0% - 21.9% 521
Over 180 days 8@ 180 R 4,573 0.0% - 100.0% 4,573
214,196 5,305
Gross  Expected credit
carrying loss rate Loss
amount FEHEE allowance
FREE Bt = BREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
As at 30th June 2021 R=B=—F
AA=tH
Current RE 122,331 0.0% - 0.7% 85
Within 30 days 30 A 82,532 0.0% -2.1% 145
31 to 60 days 31-60 H 27,892 0.0% -7.7% 63
61 to 90 days 61-90 H 10,150 0.0% - 18.2% 243
91 to 180 days 91-180 H 791 0.0% - 36.0% |
Over 180 days i@ 180 H 4,445 0.0% - 100.0% 4,233
248,141 4,770

ANNUAL REPORT FE#RE 21 /22 @



Tl
: ’ | \-y

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B S ER AR B X

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(d)  Credit risk (Continued)
() Trade receivables (Continued)

The closing loss allowances for trade receivables as at
30th June 2022 reconcile to the opening loss allowances

are as follows:

3

B L b IR ()
3.1 BBEREAEE)
(d) 1EEEREE)
() EBZERK(E)

R-_ZT %A
“THHE S ER
RERE 1B B E
FHEBEERENY
BRI -

Loss allowance for
trade receivables
B RUREERE
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TET

Opening loss allowance as at Istjuly ~ RAEA—HH

FHIEIERE (4,770) (4.797)
(Provision for)/reversal of loss B RKFER
allowance on trade receivables (BfE) B E (535) 430
Currency translation differences HEHEE — (403)
Closing loss allowance as at 30th jJune  HRNA=1+HHK
FREEREE (5,305) (4,770)
Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented E 5 W EE

as net impairment losses within operating profit.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off

are credited against the same line item.

=
o

ﬁ NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« REITHERDF

B2 REEE N
W OR B BB OFE
B o Hig (a5t Al
2 3H B IR R
—HBRAARK -



-

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d)  Credit risk (Continued)

(e)

(i) Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include cash and
cash equivalent, bills and other receivables. Management
considered that these have a low credit risk and did
not make any provision for these other financial assets
at amortised cost based on the historical settlement
pattern of these other financial assets and the forward-

looking recoverability analysis of the counterparties.

As at 30th June 2022, the Company had provided guarantees
in respect of banking facilities made available to its subsidiaries
amounting to HK$382,814,000 (2021: HK$312,141,000).
Credit risk in connection with such guarantees is considered

to be minimal.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient
cash and cash equivalents and the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities.
Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses,
the Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping

committed credit lines available.
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AR B S ER AR B X

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(e)

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Group's primary cash requirements have been for
additions of and upgrades on property, plant and equipment,
settlement of borrowings, payment for trade and other
payables, and payment for operating expenses. The Group
mainly finances its working capital requirements through a

combination of internal resources and bank borrowings.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure it maintains
sufficient cash balances and adequate credit facilities to meet

its liquidity requirements in the short and long-term.

The Group measures and monitors its liquidity through the
maintenance of prudent ratio regarding the liquidity structure
of the overall assets, liabilities, loans and commitments of
the Group. The Group also maintains a prudent level of
liquid assets and committed banking facilities to ensure the
availability of sufficient cash flows to meet any unexpected
and material cash requirements in the ordinary course of
business. As at 30th June 2022, the total banking facilities
made available to the Group amounting to HK$570,548,000
(2021: HK$553,548,000) of which HK$382,814,000 (2021:
HK$312,141,000) was being utilised by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(e)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The tables below analyses the Group's financial liabilities and
net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flow, including interest payments computed using contractual
rates, based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. For the purpose of maturity analysis, the
maturity date of bank borrowings with a repayable on demand
clause is based on agreed schedule repayment set out in the
loan agreements, disregarding the repayment on demand
clauses. Taking into account the Group's financial position, the
Directors do not consider that it is probable that the banks
will exercise their discretion to demand immediate repayment.
The Directors believe that such bank borrowings will be repaid
in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in
the loan agreements. During the year ended 30th June 2022,
total banking borrowing with repayment on demand clauses
was HK$75,007,000 (202 1: HK$68,774,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A RRM
3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BIBERREER®)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BBEREAEE)
(e) Liguidity risk (Continued) (e) REBEZERE)
Within Between | Between 2
| year and 2 years and 5 years Total
—FR —ZWERN WEILFR FCk o
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THERT THERx THERT
At 30th June 2022 RZE-—FXA=1+H
Trade and bills payables B SB[ KEMNFE 87,336 = = 87,336
Other payables and HipE s kERE R
accruals 24,508 — — 24,508
Lease liabilities HEAaE 5,475 4,745 3817 14,037
Bank borrowings RITEE 395,166 = - 395,166
Total B 512,485 4,745 3,817 521,047
Within Between | Between 2
| year and 2 years and 5 years Total
—FR —EWFA  WELFA o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET TET
At 30th June 2021 RZZEZ—FA=+H
Trade and bills payables B HEN R RENEE 78,252 — — 78,252
Other payables and HiEN R RTERE R
accruals 23,522 — — 23,522
Lease liabilities HEAE 5217 4,157 200 9,574
Bank borrowings RITIEE 320777 - - 320,777
Total B 427,768 4,157 200 432,125

=
~

@ NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« REITHERDF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI ImRMIEE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HRRKREER®)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BBEREAZEE)
(e) Liguidity risk (Continued) (e) WEEZEME(E)

The table below analyses the Group's derivative financial TRBRAAEBEAE
liabilities that will be settled on a gross basis into relevant EELENTTETRE
maturity groupings based on the remaining period from B HREBNIHAE
the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. Bl BEBEHEEABER
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual Az &R 2 EE & F e
undiscounted cash flows, based on exchange rates prevailing at HEETHN ERA
the balance sheet date. BENSHEARKUR

WaRBEER LRIE

REEBEXRBERAD

ERIBE -

Within Between | and Between 2
| year 2 years and 5 years Total
—fR -EZMER WMEIFRA B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

TER TER TER TER

At 30th June 2022

Currency forward

contract

— Outflow — N 92,988 85,239 = 178,227

— Inflow —RA (93,000) (85,250) — (178,250)
Total FEEt] (12) (1) — (23)
At 30th June 2021 R-ZE-_—%XA=1+H

Currency forward BERHIEH

contract

— Outflow — N 38,740 = = 38,740

— Inflow —mA (38,750) = = (38,750)
Total Fket] (10) — — (10)

ANNUAL REPORT FE#RE 21 /22 @



<
’

r

r

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B S ER AR B X

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to

maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payments to shareholders, issue new shares or obtain new bank

borrowings.

The Group also monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. Total
capital is calculated as “equity”, as shown in the consolidated balance

sheet, plus net debt.

The table below analyses the Group’s capital structure as at 30th
June 2022 and 2021:

3

KRR EEE)
32 EBEXEBEZE

AEENESEERR 2K
EALBEREEELE  URK
RIEHEBNASEMERRE
ARENE - RAREFRED
BAEBINBIEE KA

AEBEEEEARRE  TRE
RERBENESFLRAE - B
THRBRABRELERE A%
BRI aE & B T T RR AR
B8 BITHRIESHN
RITERK -

AEENABELXEREE
AR o b e R AR PRAR S H AR A
RERGHE - BBFEREE
ERERERASFH - HE
ARzl (MGEaEEAR
KRG MBS FE ©

RIB-_—ER-_T_—FX
A=+H AEEZEELX
wm -

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000

FTET FET

Total borrowings (Note 28) wEE (FizE28) 392,827 319,708
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 24) & : & RIRE E 5 (F1zE24) (178,926) (206,579)
Net debt B FE 213,901 113,129
Total equity HarEm 659,046 620,144
Total capital 1B R A 872,947 733,273
Gearing ratio BERBELE 25% 15%

@ NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED « ZHRETHRRAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2

3.3

Capital risk management (Continued)

The gearing ratio increased from 15% to 25% as a result of increase

in bank borrowings during the year ended 30th June 2022.

Fair value estimation

According to HKFRS 7, financial instruments measured in the
balance sheet at fair value are required to disclose the fair value
measurements by level of the following fair value measurement

hierarchy:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities (level 1)

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is,

as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2)

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3)

The carrying amounts of the Group's current financial assets,
including cash and cash equivalents, trade and bills receivable and
deposits and other receivables, and the Group’s current financial
liabilities including current borrowings, trade and bills payables, other
payables and accruals approximate their fair values due to their short

maturities.

RS B IS ER AR B EE

RS EE (E)

3.2

3.3
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HEBDZ-+HRHARAKEF
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% EHemIAEEEER
RO AREBEFEFSETIA
ABEFSRERE
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s KBTIFIEBEMERENRE
Sh REBEEMAERA
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BEmis8EanE AR
FABRBA)(E3IE)

AEERBEMEEZREE
BRASERSEFHE BEHE
WHEREREE  HEREAM
FEMR - AR KB IR E S
BEREINHEERE E5EM
RN ENEE - EMBEA TR
BIRER  AREREANZH
mEEREERS -

ANNUAL REPORT FEIR%E 21 /22



@ 3
sl
A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B S ER AR B X

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BIRERERE)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AREEGEH(E)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at balance sheet date. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or
regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the

current bid price. These instruments are included in level |.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined
by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise
the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is

included in level 2.

If one or more of the inputs is not based on observable market data,

the instrument is included in level 3.

There were no transfers of financial assets between level | and level

2 fair value hierarchy classifications.

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« REITHERDF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

As at 30th June 2022, the Group's financial asset at FVOCI and
derivative financial instruments are categorised as level 3 financial
instruments. Disclosures relating to investment properties that are
measured at fair value are set out in Note |7. As at 30th June 2022,
the fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market is determined by using valuation techniques. The Group
performed the valuation of the financial asset at FVOCI by the use
of discounted cash flow model based on the market conditions
existed at balance sheet date and business forecast provided
by management. Specific valuation technique used to value the
derivative financial instruments includes using forward exchange rates
at the balance sheet date to discount back to the present value. The
key unobservable data includes the interbank forward exchange rate

and the volatility of forward exchange rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IR R I EE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BHXKERERE®)

3.3 AAEEGEH(E)
TRBREE-_ZE %A

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for

<.
4

the year ended 30th June 2022. =+tHLEFEEIESMIA
BB -
Financial
asset at
FVOCI Derivative
RAREE financial
ST AEAE  instruments
ZHEKE PTE Total
MgEE SRMIA e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx  FERT  FAR
Opening balance BRI 45 67 2,226 (23) 2,203
Net settlements TR = (292) (292)
Gains recognised in other TEE M2 E W
comprehensive income HRNEE 717 — 717
Gains recognised in profit and loss £ 18 %5 T 3R AY U & = 19 19
Closing balance LIFES S 2,943 (296) 2,647
Total gains for the year included ~ FRBEHNEBHNFERE
in profit or loss for liabilities B BREBRKRN
held at the end of the year, [HAbEsiE — F & F
under “other losses, net” — 19 19

@ NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« REITHERDF
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AR I ERARMIEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 FREREE@®
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AREEGE(E)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for LATRREBEZZE_—FXA
the year ended 30th June 2021. =tHLEFERAEIBESRT

AmEB% -

Financial
asset at
FVOCI Derivative
BAREE financial
STAEM  instruments
) g Total
MBEE SRIA k]

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TR

Opening balance B4 R 1,863 (1,246) 617
Net settlements R — (253) (253)
Gains recognised in other fEH M 2 E W

comprehensive income HRNEE 363 — 363
Gains recognised in profit and loss fE 18 5 FERR HY UK 2 — 1,476 1,476
Closing balance HisR s oh 2,226 (23) 2,203

Total gains for the year included ~FRIFEHBENFE

in profit or loss for liabilities Bl PRETEERD
held at the end of the year, [ EfhEE — F5E 4
under “other losses, net” — 1,476 1,476
3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 34 BHEHBEEENEE
As at 30th June 2022 and 2021, there were no financial assets or RZBZZFRZTZ—FRX
financial liabilities which were subject to offsetting, enforceable A=+H UE\ENMKEE
master netting or similar agreements. M BREERE  AIMTREE

ERBEMBE L RAORR o
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AR B S ER AR B X

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgement used in preparing financial statements are

continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other

factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the

related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant

risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

()

Useful lives, residual values and depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives,
residual values and related depreciation charges for its property,
plant and equipment with reference to the estimated periods that
the Group intends to derive future economic benefits from use of
these assets. This estimate is based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. Management will adjust the depreciation
charge where useful lives or residual values vary with previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or

non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives and
actual residual values may differ from estimated residual values.
Periodic review could result in a change in depreciable lives and
residual values and therefore depreciation expense in the future

periods.

4

2
L] NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED
= 4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets including property, plant and equipment,
leasehold land and land use rights and intangible assets are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The
recoverable amounts have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations or fair value less costs to sell. These calculations require

the use of judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that
may indicate that the related asset values may not be recoverable;
(ii) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and net present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset in the business; and (iii)
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management in assessing impairment, including the
discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present value used in
the impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s financial
position and results of operations. If there is a significant adverse
change in the projected performance and resulting future cash flow
projections, it may be necessary to take an impairment charge to the

consolidated income statement.

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The fair value of each investment property individually is determined
at each balance sheet date by an independent professional valuer by
reference to comparable market transactions and where appropriate
on the basis of capitalisation of the passing rentals of the current
leases based on the capitalisation rates including the outgoings. This
methodology is based upon estimates of future results and a set of
assumptions as to income and expenses of the property and future
economic conditions. Details of the judgement and assumptions

have been disclosed in Note |7.
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AR B S ER AR B X

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

Impairment of receivables

The loss allowances for receivables are based on assumption about
risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group's past collection history of each
customer, existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period. Details of the key

assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in Note 3.1(d).

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to their net realisable value
based on an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Net
realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
variable selling expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of manufacturing
and selling products of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of changes in customer taste and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycle. Write-downs on inventories are
recognised where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the value of the inventories may not be realised. The identification
of write-downs requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of inventories and write-
downs of inventories is recognised in the period in which such

estimate has been changed.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

®

Income taxes and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes
in each of these jurisdictions. There are transactions and calculations
during the ordinary course of business for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax

provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers it is
likely that future taxable profits will be available against which
the temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. When
the expectations are different from the original estimates, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred income tax assets
and income tax charges in the period in which such estimates have

been changed.

4 E
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SHBER  FIELHE - &
AEEBTAE TREETR
RBRBENXHREE - WZF
EENREBRBERBERNK
VISR EE A ERE
TEEBETAHBBRRENME
B SR FEFRIS TR A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARSI A5 SRR MY aE

5 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 5
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

BEFEHzWER
7 ERE #

2022 202
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAT

Revenue from contracts with customers BEEEHZIWA
Sales of goods HEEm

1,738,775 1,971,074

The Group derived revenue from the sales of goods at a point in time.

Liabilities related to contract with customers

The Group has recognised the following liabilities related to contracts with

AEERE-KHEMHBEREHEE

P

Hnon

=

=

Y
o

BREFEHNZEE
AEECHBATERERANZ
BfE:

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TAT

customers:
Contract liabilities, included in other BIAEMEA R ETEREA
payables and accruals ZEaHaE

9,510 8,355

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the

current reporting period relates to carried-forward contract liabilities.

TRETARESHEARBEEESL
BERANKESE -

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT TAT

Revenue recognised that was included in FAEYENEEE R
the contract liabilities balance at 2 B R

the beginning of the year

8,355 3,880

There are no unsatisfied nor partially unsatisfied performance obligation

that has an original expected duration of one year or more.

@, NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED - RHRETHRAQF

BRI E-FHIA N RE HRE
AT KB D RTKBHEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of
plastic materials, pigments, colorants, compounded plastic resins and

engineering plastic products.

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM") has been identified as
the Executive Directors of the Company. Management has determined
the operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the CODM
that are used to assess performance and allocate resources. The CODM
considers the business from the operations nature and the type of
products perspective, including the trading of plastic materials (“Trading”),
manufacturing and sale of colorants, pigments and compounded plastic
resins (“Colorants”), manufacturing and sale of engineering plastic products
(“Engineering plastics”) and other corporate and business activities
(“Others").

Each of the Group's operating segments represents a strategic business
unit that is managed by different business unit leaders. Inter-segment
transactions are entered into under the normal commercial terms
and conditions that would also be available to unrelated third parties.
Information provided to the CODM is measured in a manner consistent

with that in the consolidated financial statements.

The CODM assesses the performance of the operating segments based on
a measure of revenue and operating profit including corporate expenses,
which is in a manner consistent with that of the consolidated financial

statements.

5

RS B IS ER AR B EE

BEFEHZWER
DEBE R (&
AEBIITEBABBRE 6
BeEGH  ERAMIRSER 5

HERERRERRERARAZ
WITEF BREKREAREZERRN
SENARRE AT ERRMDA
BR -EEEERERBULERS
EEREDR BRKERRER
HEMERERAREZERK &
TREZBRHMZEE(ES ]
EEH ek ENZHERESR
(58] IRBHZHERE
BE([ITRREHMDREMEERER
mE([HAM]) -

E@EIBRE—FHEEHE
- WETRAZEBETEEE
12 HHEBERRATRSRA
PR B RO TT « ME AR R
HERENIRITEREA MR
RAFHE—H o

BERRERREBHEERRLS
A (BREEX L) EFEE
BAORNKRE - TARSAMB®R
AT ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARSI A5 SRR MY aE

5 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 5 ZEF&E82Z2WAR
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) o EBE R} (&)

BE_ZT-__FRA=+tRALFE
REGERKERREZAZIR

The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable
segments for the year ended 30th June 2022 is as follows:

EHWABMT :

Engineering

Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
] EGB IRBR Hitt X&E
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FTHET FTHERT FHET FHET FHET
Turnover B

— Gross revenue —DEHAIHE 1,163,005 356,841 285,440 — 1,805,286
— Inter-segment revenue — AR SHE (64,651) (1,669) (191) — (66,511)

Revenue from external NER R P U 55
customers 1,098,354 355,172 285,249 — 1,738,775
Operating profit/(loss) mERT, (B18E) 29,888 20,073 47,300 (762) 96,499
Finance income B s Uk 2= 158 653 87 — 898
Finance costs MEER (6,738) (620) (1,048) (64) (8,470)
Profit/(loss) before income tax B B{ AT #1,/ (E518) 23,308 20,106 46,339 (826) 88,927

-
”

@ NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« REITHERDF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 5 ZFEZWHER

AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7 EBE R ()
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable BHE_ZT-_—_FA=THLFE
segments for the year ended 30th June 2022 is as follows: (Continued) RUEGEERLERKEZ 2R

SRHARMT : ()

Engineering

Trading Colorants plastics Others Group

% Eel IREH Hir  AKH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT FTExR TER TERT TER

Other information: Hib & H} -
Additions to non-current assets 3E) )& E 1L AN

(other than financial (rEmIAR

instruments and deferred BEFHBEEIN)

tax assets) 870 19,679 6,895 151 27,595
Depreciation of property, mE - BER

plant and equipment B E 794 10,307 7,088 376 18,565
Depreciation of right-of- ERREERE

use assets 343 4,228 1,073 206 5,850
Provision for/(reversal of) FERBEEERE

impairment of inventories, (Bm) — %88

net 2,852 (80) (868) — 1,904
Provision for/(reversal of) Z S EWRERE

loss allowance on BB (BE)

trade receivables 153 510 (128) — 535
Fair value gains on derivative MEEMIA

financial instruments ~aBEERER (19) — — - (19)
Fair value losses/(gains) KEMELAEE

on investment properties &R (W) 952 (89) = (1,010) (147)

ANNUAL REPORT FE#RE 21 /22 @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARSI A5 SRR MY aE

5 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 5 ZFE8z2WER
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) o EBE R} (&)

EA—?——QE/\H —'—Elj;E'f/\: _é_
RRERREZAIZIMEDEE

The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable

segments as at 30th June 2022 is as follows:

=
~

@ NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« REITHERDF

BHAT -

Engineering

Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
g5 E6E IRBR Hity AEME
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FTHER FERT FER FTER FTER
Segment assets DEEE 508,823 378,951 197,245 142,639 1,227,658
Segment liabilities nEEE (86,677)  (50,460)  (36,422) (2,226) (175,785)
Borrowings DEEE (334,081) (9,973)  (30,159)  (18,614) (392,827)
(420,758)  (60,433)  (66,581)  (20,840) (568,612)
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable BE_ZT-_—FA=1THILEE
segments for the year ended 30th June 2021 is as follows: RELERELEARE 22K
ENEERNT :
Engineering
Trading  Colorants plastics Others Group
B9 E@B IRBH HAth REE
HK$'000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
FET FET FAET FHET FET
Turnover BT
— Gross revenue — D EPARIHE 1,402,379 376556 263,048 — 2,041,983
— Inter-segment revenue — D EEHE (68,964) (1,820) (125) —  (70509)
Revenue from external SNER R P U A
customers 1333415 374736 262923 — 1971074
Operating profit/(loss) rmERN, (B18) 61,250 30,102 39,578 (518) 130,412
Finance income B s e 178 804 155 — 137
Finance costs MBER (7,944) (1,187) (821) o (9,952)
Profit/(loss) before income tax  BRFi A& ], (E518) 53,484 29,719 38912 (518) 121,597




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEWBRRM T
REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 5 ZEFEHNZWHER
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) o EE R (&)
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable HE_Z-_—FXA=THLFE
segments for the year ended 30th June 2021 is as follows: (Continued) RUEGEERLERKEZ 2R
ENMERMT - (&)
Engineering
Trading  Colorants plastics Others Group
g5 ERE IRZH Hth REE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
THTT THETT THETT THETT TR
Other information: Hb &R :
Additions to non-current FEMEVEELE N
assets (other than financial (eI AR
instruments and deferred RIERIAEEIN)
tax assets) 14 12,172 9,644 — 21,930
Depreciation of property, mE - BER
plant and equipment B E 791 9,256 7,610 384 18,041
Depreciation of right-of- CERREERE
use assets 343 4,195 897 206 5,641
(Reversal of)/provision for FEREEEHER)
impairment of inventories, S BE - F5
net (6,803) 191 (181) — (6,793)
Provision for/(reversal of) Z S EWRERE
loss allowance on trade B (BE)
receivables 100 (444) (86) — (430)
Fair value gains on derivative MEERMIA
financial instruments NI EERS (1.476) — — — (1,476)
Fair value losses/(gains) BEMELABE
on investment properties BB (Wa) 3,607 (220) — (710) 2,677
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B S ER AR B X

5 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 5 ZEF&SHAZWHER
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) TEER (#)
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable RZEBEZ—FANA=Z+tAHREHGE
segments as at 30th June 2021 is as follows: ERERKEZ 2 MEDBE
BT
Engineering
Trading  Colorants plastics Others Group
= EEB IRBR HAith AEE
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
Segment assets DESEE 396,127 367,330 196,950 141,749 1,102,156
Segment liabilities DEEE (88,863)  (37,487)  (32.256) (3,698)  (162,304)
Borrowings DEEE (272,504) (9,524) (37,680) —  (319,708)
(361367)  (47.011)  (69,936) (3,698)  (482,012)

The entity is domiciled in Hong Kong. The revenue from external
customers from Hong Kong for the year ended 30th June 2022 is
approximately HK$785,599,000 (202 1: HK$923,925,000), and the total of
its revenue from external customers from other locations (mainly Mainland
China) is approximately HK$953,176,000 (2021: HK$1,047,149,000).

At 30th June 2022, the total of non-current assets other than financial
instruments and deferred tax assets located in Hong Kong is approximately
HK$175,233,000 (2021: HK$176,983,000), and the total of these non-
current assets located in other locations (mainly Mainland China) is
approximately HK$ 126,374,000 (202 1: HK$121,721,000).

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« REITHERDF

REBUESAREH -HEZZT
ZZFERNA=Z+HRLEFEREES
2 INER R P IR &= 49 A 785,599,000
B or(Z T = — 923,925,000
BL) MABHEMME(EZR
FEAM) 2HNBERPKREN B
953,176,000 jT(= & = — £ :
1,047,149,000 78 7T) °

RZE-_—_FA=1H K
TEARBEEBEEEINMIRESEZ
JEREE E 4 A 17523300078 7T
—ET T —4F 1769830008 5T)
R EMR(EZERFEAM)
ZULEIEMBNE E X R 126,374,000
B (ZFE = —F :121,721,000%
JT) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OTHER INCOME

SRR

HABA

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

TExT FAT

Rental income Ha WA 6,741 7,219
Other income E A 56 =
6,797 7219

Outgoings in respect of investment properties that generate rental income
amounted to approximately HK$749,000 (202 1: HK$520,000).

OTHER LOSSES, NET

AIEAHSWANKREDEZAE
& H497490008 Tt (ZFE = —
£ 520,000 7T) °

HitgiE — F58

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Fair value gains/(losses) on investment BEMENRABERE
properties (Note 17) (EHE) (FizE17) 147 (2,677)
Fair value gains on forward foreign RHEEERZRZINEERRELN
exchange contracts held for trading NABEEKR
— Realised —EER 292 186
— Unrealised —KRER (273) 1,290
Government grant (Note) AT 46 B (B =) — 451
Net exchange losses INERSIBIFRE (415) (1,529)
(249) (2,279)

Note:

During the year ended 30th June 2021, pursuant to Mainland China local
government policies, the Group received government grant amounted to
RMB379,000, equivalent to approximately HK$451,000, from Mainland China local
government authorities to support the operations in certain Mainland China regions
with no special conditions attached.

BaE

REBEE_ZT=_—FA=ZTHLFE "
RIR A B R & BT R - N E R
RETFTHRBE AR 2 &SRR
B BT R R A 379,000 A R ¥
(B 49451,000 7% 7T ) b 428 B 85 (F 7] 6 14
IR BB IR G -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE B HRRM T
8 EXPENSES BY NATURE 8 BMEETZHAX
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TAET
Cost of inventories sold excluding PEFERA(TEEEEKRAR)

manufacturing costs 1,342,641 1,538,983
Auditor's remuneration ZERT 2

— Audit services — ZBUR 2,094 2,742

— Non-audit services — EZE R 639 359
Depreciation of property, plant and M BERRENE

equipment (Note 15) (PfFE 15) 18,565 18,041
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note |6) EREEETE (M 6) 5,850 5,641
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment of FEREEERE (BE)

inventories, net — 5 1,904 (6,793)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and LEME  BMELEREZ

equipment &8 539
Employee benefit expenses, including BERAMZH(BEEZMSE)

Directors' emoluments (Note (i) and Note 13)  (MI&E (i) B 5E 13) 150,713 159,148
Operating lease rentals in respect of buildings BFreeEEle 6,830 6,125
Provision for claim related to a legal case B — EAEFLHRREE

(Note (ii)) (BREE (i) — 3,802
Repairs and maintenance expenses BIERIRERS 5,349 6,451
Transportation and packaging expenses B ERBERAY 29,183 31,300
Travelling and office expenses EREPAERL 6,410 7473
Utility expenses KERX 15,908 16,061
Other expenses HitWERA 61,664 56,698
Total cost of sales, distribution costs HEKA « DHEKAR

and administrative expenses TR LB 1,648,289 1,846,032
Representing: (A

Cost of sales HERA 1,435,641 1,623,857

Distribution costs PoR 1% 88,273 86,125

Administrative expenses T H 124,375 136,050

1,648,289 1,846,032

<
’

{ NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED « ZHRETHRRAF
4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR

ra) =

EXPENSES BY NATURE (Continued) 8 BRMHHSDZHX@)

Notes: B EE -

() During the year ended 30th June 2022, the Hong Kong Special Administrative ) RBE-_ZT-_—_FA=+HL
Region Government has launched the “Employment Support Scheme” (ESS) FE - BEFRATRR BT
providing wage subsidies to eligible subsidiaries of the Group. Government [MREEEIFHERHIEFMBE TR
grants amounted to HK$48,000 (202 1: HK$4,043,000) are deducted in the EEEEERMBAR - BUTH
employee benefit expenses. There are no unfulfilled conditions or other B 480007 T(=Z F = — % :
contingencies attached to the grants. 4,043,000 7T ) AR IR E BB F

St AT B B A B AR GE AR
BRI E b AE IR -

(i) In accordance to a judgement dated 29th January 2021 from Wenling iy WEAIERETARZERRZ
City People's Court of Zhejiang Province, the Group was held liable to E—F—-AZTNEBNHR-
pay a customer compensation amounted to RMB3,193,000 (equivalent to BEAEBEZEREPBHEINH
approximately HK$3,802,000). Full provision against such amount has been 3,193,000 A & # (% 8 49 3,802,000
made. BIL)  c AREERUEEELS

e -
FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 9 HMBKRZMEH

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT TR

Finance income: B AU 25 -
— Interest income from bank deposits — IRITE A BWA 898 1,087
— Net exchange gains on financing activities — BB B 2 INEW A FHEE — 50
898 [,137

Finance costs: MBER :
— Interest on lease liabilities (Note |6) —HEBGEZME(ME16) (345) (439)
— Interest on bank borrowings —RITEEZFE (8,125) (9.513)
(8,470) (9,952)
Finance costs, net g ER—F8 (7,572) (8.815)

ANNUAL REPORT FE#RE 21 /22 \;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B S ER AR B X

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2021:

[6.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on the
Group's subsidiaries established and operate in Mainland China have
been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the
rate of 25% (2021: 25%) except that certain subsidiaries are subject to
preferential tax rates ranging from 5% to 5% (2021: 5% to 15%) and
other preferential tax treatments. A subsidiary in Dongguan which was
certified as High and New Technology Enterprises and is entitled to a
concessionary tax rate of 15% for three consecutive years from 2020
to 2023. This subsidiary is entitled to re-apply for the preferential tax

treatment when the preferential tax period expires.

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated income statement

HIEX W
BEEFBR BB F AT ERM
BAHEREEIZTANBRA(ZE
Z—F EHEOZTAMAGER
o PBEAMBMEBDRERNEE
R E A REEZHE A
RAZARFEEMAERBRNIEZE
AZZTRH(ZEZ—F:\BHLZ
TTRIZBEHE  BREZXNTFA
NZAZED 2 TH(ZEZ—%F -
BAZHEZEES 2 TH)NERRE
K CE b B R R /9 R L B B A R A
Ghe REE—FTURREZHBA
AERBERSHMECEYAIZZ
E_EFE _ T _-—FEE=-FH
AZTHRZEBBE - LB AR
AREBERERATEEBRBLIE
BERBELHE -

MARGERZMAIHR

represents:

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAET

Current income tax: REFHRIA :
Hong Kong profits tax EBNEH 4,359 3,970
Mainland China corporate income tax F B A3 1 ZE PSR 17,324 18,504
Over-provision in prior years FEEREEE (7) (1,506)
21,676 20,968
Deferred income tax (Note 29) BIER IR (M5E29) 807 4,210
22,483 25,178

{ NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED « ZHRETHRRAF
4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10 BIEXH @)

The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the

theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong profits tax rate

A& E B B ER AT A 2 T IR B AR
ERBABAENGHR ZREMAAEZ

as follows: BmME s ZBmmT
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TAT
Profit before income tax R 56 AT A 88,927 121,597
Tax charged at a rate of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%)  IZM T 165% (T _ZT4F :
16.5%) 5t B 2 1A 14,673 20,064
Effect of different tax rates in Mainland China FREAARRE 2R 4,028 6,321
Income not subject to tax BARD WA (136) (160)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes TAIH0BE 2 T H 1,346 1,494
Tax losses not recognised RERZHIBEE 2,886 907
Utilisation of previous unrecognised tax losses ) SR R R IEE 1A (977) (1,063)
Withholding tax in Mainland China B A b TR AR A 1,644 —
Over-provision in prior years FEERREE (7) (1,506)
Tax reduction (Note) B EE (M) (974) (879)
22,483 25,178
Note: The Hong Kong Government has lowered the profits tax rate for the first MisE: HEFERBAST —FKRN

HK$2,000,000 assessable profit of one of the subsidiaries to 8.25%. Profits
above that amount will continue to be subject to the tax rate of 16.5%.
In addition, certain subsidiaries in Mainland China were subject a lower
profit tax rate at 5% on taxable income below RMB1,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,190,000), and 10% on taxable income on taxable
income over RMB|,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,190,000)
but below RMB3,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,571,000),
and thereafter at a fixed rate at 25%.

& KM B 2 5 & 2,000,000
78 or FE T B AR 80 R 15 R X
155 Bl R E=825% 0 HiZIBiB
2,000,0007% 7T & & 5 % A
Bl 5 Bl 48 B 1R 16.5% B F - It
AN - BB 5> R B A B B A R FE
R U Z LA T 8 3 1,000,000 A
R ®(% 8 41,190,000 7t )
B 2010 1R 5% B0 R Bk - FER
B Uz 25 DA = R 1,000,000 A R #
(% {E 491,190,000/ 7T ) B T~
it8 33,000,000 A R # (& E %
3,571,0007% 7T ) B 6 19 12 10%
R MR AE G5 BlE
25% B & FE B R UK

ANNUAL REPORT FE#RE 21 /22 3




P

()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SR RMEE
Il DIVIDENDS I RE
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Interim, paid, of HKI.5 cents BEIRH R E TR E @A 1581
(2021: HK1.0 cent) per ordinary share (Z2——% : 1.0/80) 5,538 3,692
Special, paid, of Nil Z:T;ﬁﬁ*-ir}nj”ﬁﬁ g
(2021: HK1.0 cent) per ordinary share —E—F BRETERKR.0BMW) — 3,692
Final, proposed, of HK2.0 cents BOR R B AR B A AR 2.0 7B
(2021: HK1.0 cent) per ordinary share ZEZ—F 1.08M) 7,384 3,692
Special, proposed, of Nil IR R Bl AR B
(202 1: HK3.0 cents) per ordinary share ZEZ—F 3.08() — 11,076
12,922 22,152

(@)

(©

(d)

O

®

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

On 25th February 2021, the Directors declared an interim dividend of
HK1.0 cent per share, totalling HK$3,692,000 for the six months ended 31st
December 2020.

On 25th February 2021, the Directors declared a special dividend of HKI.0
cent per share, totalling HK$3,692,000 for the six months ended 31st
December 2020.

On 28th September 2021, the Directors proposed a final dividend of
HKI.0 cent per share, totalling HK$3,692,000 for the year ended 30th June
2021, which was paid during the year ended 30th June 2022, and has been
reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings for the year ended 30th
June 2022.

On 28th September 2021, the Directors proposed a special dividend of
HK3.0 cents per share, totalling HK$ 11,076,000 for the year ended 30th June
2021, which was paid during the year ended 30th June 2022, and has been
reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings for the year ended 30th
June 2022.

On 24th February 2022, the Directors declared an interim dividend of HK1.5
cents per share, totalling HK$5,538,000 for the six months ended 31st
December 2021.

On 29th September 2022, the Directors proposed a final dividend of HK2.0
cents per share, totalling HK$7,384,000. This proposed dividend was not
reflected as a dividend payable in these financial statements and will be
reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings for the year ending 30th
June 2023.

RETHERDF

(@

(b)

©

(d)

(e)

R—_T-_—F-_A=-+HB &
EEMRBE_T_TFE+_A
=t+—HEANEAREFHRES
A% 1.0 » $£3,692,000 8 7T ©

R-ZZE-——F-A=+AHA =&
EEMREBEE_S=-TF+=A
Zt+—HIENEAREENKRES
B 10781l - 3,692,000 7T °

R_ZT-_—FAA=-F+NA =F
EERnBE_ZT-_—F~A=+
BIEFERERBREER .0
il » F£3,692,0007% 7T © Itk I8 IX B
ERBE-_ES-_—FXA=+H1F
FERASN  TERBEZZ==
FRAZTHLEFERZREER
AR o

RZZEZ—FNAZ+N\H &=
REAHE_TE-_—FX<A=1+
HIEFREIRERFRIREER3.0%E
iy F I,O76,0007%7_E o WIAAR B
Eﬁ/\ﬁ ’fii/\\ﬂ_‘f’aﬂi
¢FW§H WEREEZT ==
FRAZTHLEFERAZRBRF
AR o

RZEZZF-_A=-+WH" =
EEMREBEE_FT=_—F+=A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE 12

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable
to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of

ordinary shares in issue during the year.

SRR

ZRABA

-2
SREARRF TR A 7 AR A i
B A EF B BT AR 2 0HE T
B

-:ﬂ 2021

Profit attributable to equity holders of NARREE RN (TET)

the Company (HK$'000) 56,598 89,865
Weighted average number of ordinary FNEBITERRZ
shares in issue INHE ¥ 15 2K 369,200,000 369,200,000
Basic earnings per share (HK cents per share) BRERBN(FRREM) 15.33 24.34
Diluted #E
Dilutive earnings per share for the years ended 30th June 2022 and 2021 RZBEZ_Z_FRZZB-_—FXA
equal basic earnings per share as there was no dilutive potential ordinary =+H ARARUEEHEFTEN 2
share as at the years ended 30th June 2022 and 2021. TdEk At REE_T_-_—
RZFEZ—FXA=1THILMESF
B BR#EERNEERERER
BF o
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 13 EERAZH(EHE
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) EEME)
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TR
Woages, salaries and other allowances T8 - FHN & EAER 146,298 154919
Pension costs RIRE A 4,415 4,229
150,713 159,148
There were no forfeited contributions of mandatory provident funds RBE_Z__FXA=1THILF

utilised during the year ended 30th June 2022 (2021: Nil) to reduce future
contributions. As at 30th June 2022, contribution of mandatory provident
funds totalling HK$ 163,000 (202 1: HK$150,000) were payable.

[ B A w2 WE Bl A
BEM( T - —F &) BN
E-_FXRXA=+H " BAEEARE
e H 163008 (T =—
% ¢ 150,000 B7L)BRES IR °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR RE
14 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND 14 EE2NENEERSE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS EEABZHME
(a) Directors’ emoluments () EEHE
The remuneration of each of the Directors of the Company for the HEZ-_—_FA=+H1t
year ended 30th June 2022 is set out below: FEBUESEZMEOT :
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a Director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
FRES(FERANAIHMELH)
RUBEMXASRKNEHE
Other
emoluments paid
or receivable
in respect
of Director’s
other services
in connection
with the
management of
the affairs of
the company or
Salaries, its subsidiary
other undertaking
allowances Employer's ~ BERALF
and benefits contribution ~ FEMEAR
inkind  Discretionary to pension ES 3
£ bonuses Housing scheme  HtESHB
Fees A2 BfTEE allowance Bl [BUE! Total
Name of Director Esftg 2k RENAIE fied EERE BASzHX Ehwme -3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR ThR R B B THR
Executive Directors s
Mr. HUI Sai Chung (Chairman) ~ sFIt R4 (£7) 2040 2209 980 = 8 = 5,267
Mr. HUI Kiwok Kwong TEREE 2,040 2229 980 = 8 = 5267
Mr. NG Chi Ming REAEE = 1,985 465 = 8 = 2468
Mr. HUI Yan Kuen STAERE - 1,353 37 - 18 - 1,743
Mr. HUI Man Wai FREsE - 78| 183 - 18 = 982
Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey TAREE - 1,137 544 - 18 - 1,699

-
B

@ NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« REITHERDF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR

14 BEZRNBZNERRSE
EBABZHE @)

(a) EEME(E)

|4 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a Director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
FRES(FERALAZENELR)
REEBMZAIERHHE

Other

emoluments paid

or receivable

in respect

of Director’s

other services

in connection

with the

management of

the affairs of

the company or
Salaries, its subsidiary
other undertaking
REERLT
FHNEAT
ED S
HtE= R

[BLE] Total

allowances

Employer’s

and benefits contribution

inkind  Discretionary

10 bonuses

Fees B2 BiTRE

E=ft? iz REMNE WA FERR Bfez#tx  EROMHe A%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TARL FAn TR TR TR TERL TER

to pension

scheme

ExH

Housing
allowance

Name of Director

Independent Non-Executive BUkHTES

Directors
Mr, HO Wai Chi, Paul s 250 = = = = = 250
Mr. CHING Yu Lung EBmEEE 200 = = = = = 200
Mr. YU Chi Kiwong REREE 200 = = = = = 200
Total 8 4730 9,714 354 = 108 = 18076
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AR B S ER AR B X

|4 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(2) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

14

BEECABRNERZRSE
EEBAECEHE #)

() EFEMz(E)

The remuneration of each of the Directors of the Company for the

year ended 30th June 2021 is set out below:

BE-—ZT-—FXA=+AL
FESBUESZMEWT

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of  person’s services as a Director,

whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
{FAEZ(TERAARAENELR)
RERBH AL RLRHE

Other

emoluments paid

or receivable

in respect

of Director's

other services

in connection

with the

management of

the affairs of

the company or

Salaries, its subsidiary

other undertaking

allowances Fmployers ~ HERARH

and benefits contribution ~ SEMBA

in kind Discretionary to pension HEBRE

M bonuses Housing scheme  EHEZHRE
Fees Efzeh BITEE allowance By [ Total
Name of Director ESY i RENHE oy FERE  BASER i Gl 6 &8
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$000
T Fitn Titn T T T Fin

Executive Directors HrEs

Mr. HUI Sai Chung (Chairman) ~ FFIEEBSE4(£E) 2040 2205 = = 18 S 4263
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong TEREE 2040 2205 = = 18 = 4263
Mr. NG Chi Ming REAKE 1922 = = 18 = 1940
Mr. HUI Yan Kuen FAELE 1311 = 18 = 1330
Mr. HUI Man Wai FXRLE 7% = = 18 = 774
Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey TAREE 1,101 = = 18 = 119

f—
i; NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« REITHERDF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR I ERARMIEE

14 BEEZNZNERRSE
EBAEBCZEHE ®)

() EFEMz(E)

|4 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(2) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a Director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

{FREZ(TERAATRANEBAR)

RERBH A EROHE

Other

emoluments paid

or receivable

in respect

of Director's

other services

in connection

with the

management of

the affairs of

the company or

Salaries, its subsidiary

other undertaking

allowances Employers  SEBART

and benefits contribution ~ FHEMBAH

inkind  Discretionary to pension HZHRE

ZH bonuses Housing sheme  EMEERE
Fees Efp2E BfTRE allowance (=37 [iB3E] Total
Name of Director 3 e REDHE e FERN RGN EhOEE %
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
ThL TiEn TiEn ThL T L ThL

Independent Non-Executive BUkHTES
Directors

Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul Bl 250 - - - - - 250
Mr. CHING Yu Lung EmEtE 200 = = = = = 200
Mr. YU Chi Kwong REREE 200 - S S S = 200
Total &% 4730 9,500 - 108 - 14339
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AR B S ER AR B X

|4 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(2) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

No Director waived any emoluments during the year (2021: Nil).
No emoluments have been paid by the Group to any Director as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office during the year (2021: Nil).

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any Directors
during the year (2021: Nil).

(c) Directors’ termination benefits

No payment was made to Directors as compensation for the

termination of the appointment during the year (202 1: Nil).

(d) Consideration provided to or received by third parties for
making available directors’ services

No payment was made to any third parties making available the

services of them as a Director of the Company (202 1: Nil).

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in
favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such Directors

There were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
Directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such Directors during the year (2021: Nil).

;v NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« REITHERDF

14 BEEZNZNEZRSE

EEBAEZHNE ®)
() EFEMz(E)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

RAFERLBEENENRS
ZHE(ZTE=—F &) R
AEERAAEERESNTE
MEZENEAMSHKEESTH
fLzmE(—T_—%F: &) -

EEREF
REAFEEARL AR EZIRME
BRGEMN(ZZE-—F &) -
EEARIEER
RAFEATERRELRILE
EmAESRETABR(Z
To—F |
GEREEREMEE=S

R E

RAFEARL ERIEHRESR
BimmE =7 RHENEERME
TARM(ZE=Z—F : &) -

FEE SREEELHY
EANOBREZEENHEE
BESRNEY EEHAE
125 EH
RAFENLEAES - F
2% F R H R A BERZ
FHMEIREMER  ER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR MR
|4 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND 14 EEZHNENEERSE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued) EEAEBZME @)
(f)  Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements (N EFEXZ - ZHHEEH
or contracts EARZ
Saved as disclosed in Note 32 to the consolidated financial BRTIEES M BHmKME32
statements, no significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in BRIRFIHIN  REZRNLF
relation to the Group's business to which the Company was a party S IN/NS & 3 ) K G172
and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest, RAEBEZEBMARBIZE
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at FEHEAHEEEEPERAEAX
any time during the year (202 1: Nil). BHEZEERS  REHER
(ZT=—F : 8\) -
(g) Five highest paid individuals e ZEZEREFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the REER  ERUKREH A
Group for the year include three (2021: three) Directors whose T =T —F: =
emoluments are disclosed in the analysis presented above. The f)REE EME2CRNEX
emoluments paid and payable to the remaining individuals during the RIZHMHEE 8B T RS
year were as follows: ;F\FM/\:':E/Q\J:QEEZ%&M‘ Ei'%
mE -
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET TET
Salaries, other allowances and benefits in kind ¥ Bl ~ B2 R EWH = 4,529 4,577
Discretionary bonus BB TEAT 2,406 471
Pension costs RIKE KA 18 20
6,953 5,068
The emoluments fell within the following bands: e F R ME SIS RE R

Number of individuals

A

-:a 2021

Emolument bands (in HK dollar) HMgE (Er)

HK$ 1,500,000 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T - 2,000,000 % 7T

HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T - 2,500,000 7T — —
HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T - 3,000,000 7T = —
HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T - 3,500,000 % 7T I

HK$3,500,001 - HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7T - 4,000,000 7T | —
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B S ER AR B X

|4 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(g) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

No emoluments have been paid to the five highest paid individuals
(including Directors and other employees) as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of any office
in connection with the management of the affair of the Company
and its subsidiaries during the year (2021: same).

I5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14 BEEZNZNERRSE

EEBAEZHNE ®)
() BERBHMAL(E)

15 W% - BERRE

REBIER ERA (B
EERHEMEB)XNMEIE
BREMARIERRERLZ
BE(ZZE-—4%: [) -

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Leasehold Machinery and office
buildings  improvements and equipment Motor Tools and
BELH HE equipment KER vehicles moulds Total
kigF WERE  BERRE  BAERE AE IAREAR 2%
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000
TAL TEL TEL TEL TAL TAL TARL
At Ist July 2020 R=B-25+f-H
Cost BA 106,351 67,065 184,750 20881 8728 2617 390392
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (4693) (54407) (156,148) (18771) (7623) (1843) (285,085)
Net book amount REFE 60058 12658 28602 2110 1,105 774 105,307
Year ended 30th June 2021 BE-2--F
AAZTHLEE
Opening net book amount HOREE 60058 12,658 28,602 2110 1105 774 105,307
Additions #m = 253 15,789 780 ] 734 19,847
Disposals e - = (26) = = S (26)
Depreciation il (259) (5.647) 8171) (950) (503) (171 (18,041)
Currency translation differences ERER 3239 617 2018 73 73 19 6039
Closing net book amount HREREE 60,698 10,151 38212 2013 696 1356 113,126
At 30th June 2021 R=B=-£XB=1H
Cost KA 112,245 71334 207073 19950 8531 3,380 0513
Accumulated depreciation ZiiE (51547) (81,183) (168861) (17937) (7835) (2004) (309,387)
Net book amount REHE 60698 10,151 38212 2013 696 1,356 113,126
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SRR

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

15 Y% BERRE®R)

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Leasehold Machinery and office
buildings  improvements and equipment Motor Tools and
RELH HE equipment %ER vehicles moulds Total
2 £ NEEE  BERRE  BOERE RE  IAREA an
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER TER
Year ended 30th June 2022 BE-®-CF
ARZTRLEE
Opening net book amount BUREEE 60,698 10,151 38212 2013 696 1,356 113,126
Addition Em — 4953 10,234 1,242 679 n 17,481
Disposals & = = (532) ) = = (539)
Depreciation & (2,599) (5229) (9,054) (1,049) (353) (281) (18565)
Closing net book amount HREEE 58,099 9,875 38,860 2,199 1,022 1,448 111,503
At 30th June 2022 RZBZZ£XA=+H
Cost % 112,245 76,287 214991 17,084 8,504 3,748 432859
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (54,146) (66,412) (176,131) (14,:885) (7,482) (2,300) (321,356)
Net book amount REHE 58,099 9,875 38,860 2,199 1,022 1,448 111,503

Depreciation expense of HK$15,297,000 (202 1: HK$14,702,000) has been
included in cost of sales, HK$ 112,000 (2021: HK$103,000) in distribution
costs and HK$3,156,000 (202 1: HK$3,236,000) in administrative expenses.

As at 30th June 2022, the net book amount of property, plant and
equipment pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities amounted
to approximately HK$33,369,000 (202 1: HK$34,776,000).

FEEM 52970008 T( T - —
F 114,702,000/ 70 ) B B ¥E £ ¥
B A 12,0008 (=& = —
1 103,000 L) EBREEDHK
AN K% 3,156,000 T(ZF = —F -
3,236,000 70) B BIEEI T H ©

R-ZE-_—_FXA=+H &x&E
AR T F B 48 58 49 33,369,000 (=
T — — 4 1347760008 T ) 2 ¥
¥ BMERKBEEBRTRIT B
REBRERTEE -
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e B I ER AR aE
16 LEASES l6 HE
This note provides information for leases where the Group is a lessee. A FREATEEREBAZEE
ZER -
(i)  Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet () RESEEEEHEZERZ
HE

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHERT TET

Right of use assets EREEE

Leasehold land and land use rights THE T &+ b 17,879 18,653

Properties ES 12,947 8,454

30,826 27,107
As at 30th June 2022, the net book amount of leasehold land and RZE-_—_FRA=+H HEL
land use rights pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities Kot {50 PR BRTE${E. 40 4,222,000 78
amounted to approximately HK$4,222,000 (202 |: HK$4,398,000). TL(ZE = —1F 1 43980008 L) B

WTRT - REAEEEISRITEE -

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTET THET

Lease liabilities HESE
Non-current FERB 8,201 4014
Current nE 5,013 4,784

13,214 8,798

=
o
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16 LEASES (Continued)

(i)  Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement

(iii)

AR I ERARMIEE

l6 HE#)

(i)

RAEE W as R Z R

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TAET
Depreciation e
Included in cost of sales BREEHEEXAR 3,763 3,729
Included in administrative expenses BETEEH 2,087 1912
5,850 5,641
Interest expenses included in A ER
finance cost (Note 9) FEFZ (MEE9) 345 439
Expense relating to leases of FHEHEEECHEE
short-term and low-value leases 0 & A 6,830 6,125

For the year ended 30th June 2022, the total cash outflow for leases
amounted to HK$5,038,000 (202 1: HK$4,734,000).

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are accounted
for

The Group leases various offices and factory. Rental contracts are
typically made for fixed periods of | year to 5 years, but may have
extension options as described in (v) below. Addition to right-of-use
assets during the year ended 30th June 2022 were approximately
HK$9,569,000 (202 1: HK$6,452,000).

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do
not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the
leased assets that are held by the lessor. Certain leased assets may

not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

(iii)

REBE-_T-_—FxA=+A8
IHFE HERSRLBER
50380008 T(ZZT = — 4 :
4,734,000/ 7T) °

rEECHEZTEHRAEAR
y.2:n
AEBHEAEZERAERMK
FE-HEAGR—KAEA—ERF
WETHR  EREEAEE
EEEREEE RTX(WV)
N - RBEZZT__FX
A=tBLHFEZEREEE
AN 49 59,569,000 T (==
——%F : 6,452,000 7T) °

BOHARMNBEERRGEBD
E Y EBREREZTRMGR
KftE - R AREHESR
EFESEMERI  BEWHZ
TREUHROGRK - FETH
EEENSRIEERER -
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AR B S ER AR B X

16 LEASES (Continued)

|7

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Variable lease payments

Leases of the Group do not contain variable payment terms that are

linked to an index or a rate.

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of
property leases across the Group. These options are used to
maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used
in the Group's operations. The extension and termination options
held, if any, are exercisable only by the Group and not by the

respective lessor.

Residual value guarantees

The Group did not provide residual value guarantees in relation to
leases during the year ended 30th June 2022 (2021: same).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

HE @)
(v) AREENF
AEEZ RS FOEEE —

v)

(vi)

EER L RFER T

&R o

AR

FERRAILEERE

RERZIDEEEMANEE
ZIEMERREEE - ZFE
BEAFRAEEAEEER
RZEEZREEEN - AT
FEREKZIDEEE(NA)E
AHAEETE - mAARELE
ATRATHE

It B EER

REBEZE-_T-__FXA=1H
LTFEE AEEYEREE
RENMBKEEREFR( T =~
F:ER) e

BREM=

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTET TET

At beginning of the year F7) 155,013 155,292
Fair value gains/(losses) on investment WEWMEZ AABERE,

properties (Note 7) (E18) (fiFsE7) 147 (2,677)

Currency translation differences ME W 5R — 2,398

At end of the year FAR 155,160 155,013

As at 30th June 2022, the Group had no unprovided contractual obligation

for future repair and maintenance (202 1: Nil).

@ NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« REITHERDF
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17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(a) Fair value hierarchy

The following table analyses the investment properties carried at fair

value, by valuation method.

AR I ERARMIEE

REWME )

(@)

RAEEZRE
TRABEEESTIRAE
BEARNREDE

Fair value measurements at
30th June using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

RAB=1THFAEARH

FTUERBAELHN
DMAREBEEFE(FEIE)
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
Recurring fair value measurements wEMANBENE
Investment properties: KREWE -
— Industrial building units - Hong Kong —IEXRESBU-—FE 127,000 126,000
— Car park units - Hong Kong —fFEL BB 3,160 3,150
— Commercial office units — —AERREEN
Mainland China —FER 7,143 8,095
— Industrial building units — Mainland China —IRAEEMN
— R EAM 17,857 17,768
155,160 155,013
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers in/(out) of fair REBENER AN EHE Y
value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in EHFBERARNENEE - BR

circumstances that caused the transfer.

There was no transfer between Levels |, 2 and 3 during the year.

The following table presents the changes in investment properties

with fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3) for the years ended 30th June 2022 and 2021.

NABEER AR EE -

RERNALEE | - F2NE3E
LENEESE Y

TRETREBEZZZ_FK
T XAZ+HULFE
RFBAEATAIEBEREAHA
REEHFE(FEIE)NEEYD
Ey L0
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e BTSRRI R
|7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17 REWXE @)
(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (a) AAEEFEE)
2022
Mainland China Hong Kong Total
FEIR i B Y]
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
THET FHT THT
Opening balance Hi 45 B 25,863 129,150 155,013
Net (loss)/gain from fair DMRABEAR(EE)/
value adjustment e 588 (863) 1,010 147
Closing balance HRER G5 81 25,000 130,160 155,160

Total (losses)/gains for the year FN(ER) Wi -
included in the consolidated income BIEELZAWFHERH

statement, under other losses, net [EEE-—FaE]P (863) 1,010 147
2021

Mainland China Hong Kong Total

H A A9 3 BB FCk

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET THET THET

Opening balance H 4t e 26,852 128,440 155,292
Net (loss)/gain from fair DNABERAE(ER),/

value adjustment Woas 558 (3,387) 710 (2,677)

Currency translation differences fE R =58 2,398 — 2,398

Closing balance HYsR A5 80 25,863 129,150 155,013

Total (losses)/gains for the year FR(ER)WaasE
included in the consolidated income BIEHELRA WERH
statement, under other losses, net [EfbE e — F5E P (3,387) 710 (2,677)

=
~
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Valuation process of the Group

The Group's investment properties were revalued at
HK$ 155,160,000 (2021: HK$155,013,000) as at 30th June 2022
by Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited (2021: Chung, Chan
& Associates), an independent professionally qualified valuer who
holds a recognised relevant professional qualification and has
recent experience in the locations and segments of the investment
properties valued. Certain of the investment properties are leased to
third parties under operating lease arrangements, further summary
details of which are included in Note |7(e) to the consolidated

financial statements.

The Group’s finance department reviews the valuations performed
by the independent valuer for financial reporting purposes. The
finance department reports directly to the CODM. Discussions
of valuation processes and results are held between the CODM,

finance department and the independent valuer annually.

At each financial year end the finance department:

. Verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation report;

. Assesses property valuations movements when compared to

the prior year valuation report; and

° Holds discussions with the independent valuer.

Changes in Level 3 fair values are analysed at each reporting date

between the CODM, finance team and the independent valuer.

RS B IS ER AR B EE

17 BEWE @)

(b)

5 B 1151
AEENRENMERBEIZE
HEMGE R ABAER
AR ZE=Z—F HETE
ZEICFERZIFEZ—FRA
=+ H {18 A& 155,160,000 7%
JL(ZZ = — 4 : 155,013,000
BIT)  WIEERFERAR
AIEEER  WHAHENIR
B EHERN MBI R EE AT
B - S IREMEUNKE
HMERHEBTFE=F  #—
FHBEREGTB®REMTE
| 7(e) R IEEE °

REE M H AL B R B A
HEIAEMNBEETR
Ao M ERAERELR
REER - BRKEERRE
B ER R (L ERP R & & s b B
MIEMHRAER -

EEEMRFEER - S

s REHUBUMERSED
IBEEXRBEA

e HEWEGMERLEFE
HERELRTHE
g N

o  BEBFYMEETAW

REEBREEH F3BAR
BENEZPHEFELERR
- MR BB AR AT AR
M -
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17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17 REWZF#@)
(c) Valuation techniques (c) 1EEREM
Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs MAEAM T ERE AEDL
R EEFE
Fair values of investment properties of the Group are generally AEBNEEMERABE—
determined using the income capitalisation method which largely MBI EE - A E
involves the use of unobservable inputs and taking into account ZHATAEEBA - WERE
the significant adjustments on passing rentals of the current leases EREHEENEFHEHEEEE
and capitalisation rates including the outgoings (“Yields"). These HEARXHERLEER(TESR
significant unobservable inputs include: KONERRBE - LEEBRR
AERBARE
Fair value at
30th June Relationship of
2022 unobservable inputs
R=BZZf Valuation Unobservable Range of to fair value
Description ~A=1H technique inputs unobservable inputs FABEEA
it 2Dl fhER FUBERA TUBEAAEE HARBENBE
HK$'000
TER
Industrial building units - Hong Kong 127,000 Income Unit passing rents HK$10.70 - HK$11.00 The higher the rental value,
T¥AEEN-FA capitalisation BfREMEE  per month per square feet the higher the fair value,
method BYARBA 0708 T and vice versa
Yot % EI00ET  BESR AABESR:
RZ TR
Yields 3.27% - 3.53% The higher the Yields,
%5% the lower the fair value,

and vice versa

ZRXHR RAEEME-

SN

Car park units - Hong Kong 3,160 Income Unit passing rents HK$4,850 — HK$5,650 The higher the rental value,
EEf-F% capitalisation BURKAE per month per unit the higher the fair value,
method FEBSA4850ET and vice versa

W% E5es0dL HEMR AnBEYR

k2

Yields 5.74% - 5.82% The higher the Yields,

Zgx% the lower the fair value,

and vice versa
ZERYE  AABEME
RZ A

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« REITHERDF



17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(c) Valuation techniques (Continued)

-

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR I ERARMIEE

17 REWZE (&)
(c) 1EERM(E)

Fair value at
30th June Relationship of
2022 unobservable inputs
R-B-Z% Valuation Unobservable Range of to fair value
Description ~A=TH technique inputs unobservable inputs TABEHA
i ZRAEE fERE  FTRRRA FRRRAEE HAABENEE
HK$'000
Thn
Commercial office units and 7,143 Income  Unit passing rents RMB57.90 per month The higher the rental value,
apartment — Mainland China capitalisation BNRBHEE per square meter the higher the fair value,
BERAZEN-PEAL method §YHAEA and vice versa
Yozt k STOARE  HEHR AAEEES
RZ A
Yields 481% The higher the Yields,
ZB% the lower the fair value,
and vice versa
Y0%HR DABEME
RZ T
Industrial building units — Mainland China 173857 Income  Unit passing rents RMBI0.00 per month The higher the rental value,
IEREER-PERY capitalisation  ERFREHE per square meter the higher the fair value,
method GIHKEA and vice versa
WEE 000 ARY  HEES 2AEEES
R
Yields 6.81% The higher the Yields,
5% the lower the fair value,

and vice versa
ZEERYR  AABEME -
2 IR

A
ANNUAL REPORT FEE 21/22 Q

B,



1y

Sy B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B S ER AR B X

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17 REWZF#@)
(c) Valuation techniques (Continued) (c) 1EEHEMW (&)

Fair value at

30th June Relationship of

2021 unobservable inputs

WZE——F Valuation Unobservable Range of to fair value

Description ~NAZTH technique inputs unobservable inputs TABRHA

fait AR EE BT FIBRBA RERGARE HAREENER
HK$'000
TET

Industrial building units — Hong Kong 126,000 Income  Unit passing rents HK$9.32 - HK$ 1 1.66 The higher the rental value,

I¥REEM-F# capitalisation BAREHME  per month per square feet the higher the fair value,

method FYARBAINAET and vice versa

W% ElleeEr HREES AAEEES:

Rz mA

Yields 294% - 3.67% The higher the Yields,

8% the lower the fair value,

and vice versa

Y5%4E RABEYE

Rz A

Car park units - Hong Kong 3,150 Income  Unit passing rents HK$6,000 - HK$9,225 The higher the rental value,
REf-F# capitalisation BAIREHE per month per unit the higher the fair value,
method GBI G A 6000ET and vice versa

Wak 958 HEER AAEBEESE:

2 TR

Yields 7.28% - 9.66% The higher the Yields,

%8% the lower the fair value,

and vice versa
Zeks  AAEEME:
R 2

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« REITHERDF
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(c) Valuation techniques (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR I ERARMIEE

17 BEWE @)

(c) {1EERIM (&)

Fair value at
30th June Relationship of
2021 unobservable inputs
W_E-—& Valuation Unobservable Range of to fair value
Description ~NAZTH technique inputs unobservable inputs TABRBA
it PN BERG  ATERGA PBEGALE HAREEMEE
HK$'000
THER
Commercial office units and 8,095 Income  Unit passing rents RMB22.48 per month The higher the rental value,
apartment — Mainland China capitalisation BNRBHEE per square meter the higher the fair value,
HERREEN —RERM method SYIKEA and vice versa
s NABARE  BELE AAEEYE
R2 %
Yields 1.68% The higher the Yields,
ZB% the lower the fair value,
and vice versa
Y0%HR DABEME
RZ T
Industrial building units — Mainland China 17,768 Income  Unit passing rents RMB9.64 per month The higher the rental value,
IEREER-PERY capitalisation  ERFREHE per square meter the higher the fair value,
method GIHKEA and vice versa
WEE IAARY  HEES DABEES
R A
Yields 7.90% The higher the Yields,
5% the lower the fair value,

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the year.

and vice versa
ZEERYR  AABEME -
2 IR

N E R AR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR RE
17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17 REWHE (@)

(d) As at 30th June 2022, the fair value of investment properties (d RZZE-_—_FXA=+H ' %
pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities amounted to & 1) % AR ¥ 18 49 39,698,000
approximately HK$39,698,000 (202 1: HK$39,395,000). B (=T = —% : 39,395,000

BL)DERTFRT AEE
BESIRITIEE -
(e) The future aggregate minimum rentals receivables under non- (e) MEBETABENKCEEE - K
cancellable operating leases are as follows: R REWEERIBELT -
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT TR
Not later than one year —F R 5,460 3,631
Later than one year and not later than five years —F BB NMER A F 2,834 1,682
8,294 5313
18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18 |ILEE

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT TR

Technical know-how %9l 0 58
Cost BN 4,000 4,000
Accumulated amortisation Rt (2,000) (2,000)
Accumulated impairment 2EHRE (2,000) (2,000)
Net book amount BREFE — —

During the years ended 30th June 2022 and 2021, the Directors assessed REBEZZE-__R_T_—F7<A

the recoverability of the technical know-how and considered that the =TRIEFER BRI

carrying value of the technical know-how cannot be recovered through its Mz A EEETRAHEEE
future use and full provision was made. AR ERRFERAF KD - BikH

TR 2R -

P

@ NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« REITHERDF
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FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (“FVOCI”)

SRR

19 BAREFAEMEZE

Financial asset at FVOCI:
BB E
ELETBES R

Equity securities, unlisted

BRARBESAEME2EKES

WM BEE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT TAET
2,943 2,226

Financial asset at FVOCI represents a 3.6% (2021: 3.6%) equity interest in
an unlisted company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The amount

is denominated in HK dollar

SUBSIDIARIES

The details of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2022 are disclosed
in Note 34.

Material non-controlling interests

The total non-controlling interest as at 30th June 2022 was HK$33,787,000
(2021: HK$31,727,000), of which HK$34,495,000 (2021: HK$31,857,000)
was attributable to Ngai Hing Engineering Plastics Materials Limited
(“NHEPML™). The non-controlling interests in respect of other subsidiaries

were not material.

Significant restrictions

Cash and bank deposits of NHEPML of RMB15,336,000 (2021:
RMB15,774,000), equivalent to approximately HK$18,257,000 (2021:
HK$18,779,000), were held in Mainland China and were subject to local
exchange control regulations. These local exchange control regulations
provided for restrictions on exporting capital from the region, other
than through normal dividends or remittance of revenue income through

import/export companies.

BRER AR E W5
EERRREXBHARMSEM
ZHELETRBZENZ=ZFN(ZF
“RECADZZHNERD S
BUABTRELL -

20 KA E]

R XA=1+tHHNTEN
BARIMFBERHE4HE -

BARyH 7
R-BE-__FXA=THNEE

5| #E 2% 48 FE 533,787,000 T(=
T — — F 31,727,000 T ) H
FH34,495000% jT(= & = — &F:

31 857000%73)?%%111%”%#4
ARAB([REIRZER]) - HE
BB R B A B A FEIE %H%ﬁl?i
7(0

EARSH
BRETIREBHMNESRETHE
K 15336000 A R # (= T = —
115774000 A R ?i%( (& B D
18,257,000/ (= & = — F:
|8,779,ooo,%7t))ﬁﬁsz7ﬁ£ﬂhlmim '
ZEHBOINEEHFTARE o EHN
P & il PR ) 7% & < [ 1 A BIRANCGE
I B A &l iE i O QR E
Wz RIBRAI) o
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20 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Material non-controlling interests (Continued)

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with material non-

controlling interests

Set out below are the summarised financial information for the subsidiary

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B S ER AR B X

that has non-controlling interests that are material to the Group.

20 FEEL T (&)

EARH 2 E2 (E)
ABEAFZE # e r) I 8B 2 A]AY
THEYHEER

PN R ENE 2L
SR BARNRENEEFR -

Summarised balance sheet BELEREX
NHEPML
RETRBE
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER T
Current mE
Assets BE 154,533 152,47
Liabilities af& (64,390) (67,184)
Current net assets FREEE 90,143 85,287
Non-current IERE
Assets BE 42,132 45,113
Liabilities aE (2,860) (3,569)
Non-current net assets FIERBEE 39,272 41,544
Net assets FEE 129,415 126,831
ZET IR 34,495 31,857

Accumulated non-controlling interests

ﬁ_{ NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« REITHERDF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR

20 FYEELF) (&)

Material non-controlling interests (Continued) By ()
Summarised income statement and statement of comprehensive income HEW K R 2 E K
NHEPML
REIRER
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TR
Revenue Wz 285,524 263,102
Profit before income tax R 50 Al g 46,858 39,046
Income tax expense RIESZ W (10,674) (6,377)
Post-tax profit PR 1% 5 36,184 32,669
Other comprehensive income Hi2mEla — 3736
Total comprehensive income PHEW =BT 36,184 36,405
Total comprehensive income allocated to HEWBER
non-controlling interests PR FEHE il #E 21 10,604 7,626
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest AT IR SR 2 R E (7,997) (3,713)

ANNUAL REPORT FE#RE 21 /22 3
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20 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B S ER AR B X

20 FEEL T (&)

Material non-controlling interests (Continued) BRI ()
Summarised cash flows HER T REF
NHEPML
REIREHR
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Cash flows from operating activities REXBZRER
Cash generated from operations KEXBHEE RS 47,516 20,233
Income tax paid PS5 (1,934) (4,953)
Net cash generated from operating activities REXBREEZ FRE 45,582 15,280
Net cash used in investing activities KREEBKAERAZER S (7,946) (4,463)
Net cash (used in)/generated MEEB(ER)EE
from financing activities ZHERE (43,958) 8,159
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReRBRLEEZ(AL)
cash equivalents £ (6,322) 18,976
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FzREEREEH
of year 38,242 18,252
Currency translation differences MEH ZRE — 1,014
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRZESRBACER 31,920 38,242

The information above is the amount before inter-company eliminations.

B o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR

INVENTORIES 21
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THT
Trading stocks BHEBEER 265,319 111,614
Raw materials FR# 109,398 91,628
Finished goods SPX an 38,751 35,082
413,468 238,324
The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included in cost of REEE W R A HE KA
sales in the consolidated income statement amounted to approximately RERAIIFEFEREAEGHDR
HK$1,342,641,000 (2021: HK$1,539,105,000). 1,342,641,000% jo(= & = — 4F :
1,539,105,000 % 7T) °
Provision for impairment of inventories amounted to HK$1,904,000 (2021: 7N & B R F E [ 1,904,000% T
reversal of HK$6,793,000) for the year was included in cost of sales in the ZEZ—F  B156,793,000%7T)
consolidated income statement. ZTEEREERE WREGEEWREE
WA ER AR AR
TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 22 ESEWRRRERERE

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Trade receivables G 214,196 248,141
Less: loss allowance W EREURERE (5,305) (4,770)
208,891 243,371

Bills receivables e R 24,251 33,452
233,142 276,823

ANNUAL REPORT FE#RE 21 /22 Q
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22 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The carrying amount of trade receivables are denominated in the following

22 BESREWRKREREES @)
Z oK EEEN TS A

currencies: By :
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET F#ET
HK$ BT 76,978 98,843
RMB AR 111,507 117,296
usD ETT 25,711 32,002
214,196 248,141

The carrying value of trade receivables approximates their fair values.

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables

as the Group has a large number of customers.

The majority of the Group's sales were made with credit terms of 30 to 90

days. The remaining amounts are on letter of credit or bank's acceptance

bill.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on invoice date were as

follows:

BHRBRZEEELEZERAEE
HRAY

HRASERAEREZEZFE M
NESEESREBERERNET 2
[\ o

AEBRBOBEENEERLA=T
ENTH - EHBUEAMRERITEA
HERTHETT -

BESRKFIEBEZEB 2RED TN
™

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000

TERT TAET

Below 90 days 0-90 H 197,952 231,983
91 - 180 days 91-180 A 11,083 11,351
Over 180 days 858 180 H 5,161 4,807
214,196 248,141

=
o
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22 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

23

Bills receivable are mainly with maturity period of within 180 days and are

denominated in the following currencies:

SRR

22 BEFEWRREWREE#)

UEBEZIBHBEETER—ANT
B A TINEBREN

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET T T

HK$ BT 446 573
usD ETT 583 4138
RMB AR 23,222 28,741
24,251 33,452

The carrying value of bills receivable approximates their fair values and

there is no recent history of default on bills receivable.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group transferred certain bank's acceptance
bills amounting to approximately HK$12,735,000 (2021: HK$1 1,031,000)
with recourse in exchange for cash as at 30th June 2022. The transactions

have been accounted for as collateralised bank advances (Note 28).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period
is the carrying values of the receivables (2021: same). The Group does not

hold any collateral as security.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As at 30th June 2022, the Group had | (2021: |) outstanding forward
foreign exchange contracts of HK$296,000 (2021: HK$23,000) mainly to
purchase USD (2021: purchase USD). The maximum notional principal
amount of the outstanding forward foreign exchange contract at 30th June
2022 was HK$358,800,000 (202 1: HK$78,000,000).

23

RUREzEEEEEQNAEER
#) R B S R W R IR 2 HE R AR 8% o

R-ZE-_—_FRNAZ+BHAEEZ
BB R R A5 49 12,735,000 8 L (= F
—— 4 1 11,031,000 7T ) HY 8R 17 &
HEZMRFRITURDRE - B
RSB RERRRITRRE(K
F£28) o

THREEH ERARARNSRRER
AER LS HEBERRNEREG
ZEZ—F: HR)  c REETH
BEMEAEBOERS -

PTEEBTIA

R-ZZE-_—FA=Z+H A&EH
E—NN(C-ZE-—F: —P)HE
296,000/ 7L(= & = — 4 : 23,000
BIL)ZRZWIINERBRENEE
NBET(ZE=Z—F:BXEXT)°
RZEBE-Z—FRNAZ+THREXRR
WHINERBIEN AR EACRE
#$358,800,0008 (=& = — % :
78,000,000 7T ) ©
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24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24 RERREEH
(a) Cash and cash equivalents () RE2RELEH
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Cash on hand Re R 720 657
Bank balances RITHERR 178,206 205,922
178,926 206,579
Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following ReRBEeSBUTINER R
currencies: =iV
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
HK$ BT 23,634 22,725
RMB AR® 111,703 131,194
UsD ETT 43,322 52,408
Others Hit 267 252
178,926 206,579
Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank IRITAEBBIBZRARITERLZ
deposit rates. R ENF R ERERA S o
The Group's cash and cash equivalents of HK$127,876,000 (2021: rEBzBReRBAEEH
HK$148,232,000) are deposited with banks in Mainland China. 127,876,000/ 7L(= & = —
The remittance of these funds out of Mainland China is subject to 1 148,232,000 7T ) A
the exchange control restrictions imposed by the Government of Wiz R1T7ETF - BERESR
Mainland China. EHFEALESRRTER

IR B 2 SNEE AR5 o

=
o
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SR I ERRMIRE
24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 24 RERREEFH @)
(b) Restricted bank deposits (b) FRFRIMITFEH
As at 30th June 2022, RMB32,590,000 (equivalent to ZTEZZ_FXA=+H"
HK$38,797,000) (2021: RMB32,209,000 (equivalent to 32,590,000 A R ¥ (% A %
HK$38,344,000)) are restricted deposits held at bank as reserve for 38,797,000 7T )(=Z & = —
serving of debt for revolving loans provided by the bank (Note 28). 132,209,000 A R #(% &
The restricted bank deposits carry fixed interest rate at 0.3% - 1.75% #738,344,000 % 7T ) ) /5 X R
(2021: 1.75%) per annum with remaining maturity less than twelve BWIRITER - ERRIRITIER
months after the balance sheet date. RITIREBRERNEEREE

(BIsE28) ° R FBIMIRITFK
WBREFEDZTH=Z2EH
2B trRA(ZE=_—F:§F/
Mz —Hth)ZBEEMNX -
FTREEBBERBNOFKHR
SR+=M@A -

25 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 25 BEZENRREMNRE
The ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables by invoice date is as BORMNARENZBERERZALZ
follows: RECOITAT -
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAET
Below 90 days 0-90 H 85,730 76,975
91 - 180 days 91-180 H 750 367
Over 180 days HBid 1808 856 910
87,336 78,252
The carrying values of trade and bills payables approximate their fair EORNRRENER CREEHR
values, and are denominated in the following currencies: HRAABEMESE  WATIEER
B

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000

FHxT T

RMB AR 35,326 28,126
usD ETT 52,010 50,126
87,336 78,252
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26 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

26 BRAERKRAGRE

Share capital RK
Number of
ordinary Share
shares of capital
HK$0.10 each nominal value
BREE IR A EE
0.10 T2 HK$°000
ZERHE FHET
Authorised: JEEMRA
At Ist July 2020, 30th June 2021, RZE-_FTFLH—H -
Ist July 2021 and 30th June 2022 —EZ—FXA=+H"
—E-_—F+H—H
r—E-—_#,XA=1+H 800,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRHRRA
At Ist July 2020, 30th June 2021, RZZEZFTF+H—H -
I'st July 2021 and 30th June 2022 —E-—FXA=+H"
—E-F+A-BR
—E-—FXA=1+H 369,200,000 36,920
Share premium B E
HK$’000
THExT
At st July 2020, 30th June 2021, R_ZT-_TFtH—AH -
Ist July 2021 and 30th June 2022 —E-—FXA=+H"
T -F+tH-BK
ZEZZFXA=1+H 62,466

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -
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eI ImRMIEE
27 RESERVES 27 f#1E
Other reserves
Hin bt
Financial
asset at
Fvocl
reserve
Capital BAREE Exchange
reserve STAEM  fluctuation
(Note)  Revaluation 2 FEMzH reserve Retained
BARE reserve HBEE EX Sub-total eamings Total
(A1) BtRE & RDEE PNt REEA aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TR THET TR TR TET TER TR
At Ist July 2020 RZZ=ZFtA-A (3,119) 9,640 1211 12,385 2,117 345819 365,936
Profit for the year KERF - - — — = 89,865 89,865
Currency translation differences EXREE — - — 40353 40353 = 40353
Fair value gain of BAABEFAEM2AKR
financial asset at FVOCI METBEE DA BERE = = 26 = 2| = 21
2020/2021 interim dividends paid Y
ZEC-EEPERE - = = = = (7.384) (7,384)
At 30th June 202 R=ZE=—%~A=+H (3,119) 9,640 1472 52,738 60,731 428300 489,03
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27 RESERVES (Continued)

27 REE)

Other reserves

Hitfte
Financial
asset at
FvoCI
reserve
Capital BRANEE Exchange
reserve stARAt  fluctuation
(Note) Revaluation ~2HWKEH reserve Retained
e reserve HBEE ER Sub-total earnings Total
(W) EftffE R XERE Mt REER AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THAT TR TR THAT TR TR TAR
At st July 2021 RZZ=—%+A—-H (3.119) 9,640 1,472 52,738 60,731 428,300 489,031
Profit for the year AERF — — — — — 56,598 56,598
Currency translation differences ERER — — — 34 34 — 34
Fair value gain of BROABEHAEMZ AN
financial asset at FYOC| WA AR M RERES - - 516 - 516 = 516
2020/202 final dividends paid IHZ2Z%/
“E-FERERE = = = = = (14,768) (14,768)
202112022 interim dividend paid Zf=%=—/
“RoCEERERE — = = = = (5,538) (5,538)
At 30th June 2022 RZZZZ§&xA=tH (3,119) 9,640 1,988 52,772 61,281 464,592 525,873
Note: B EE -
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET THET
Capital reserve from reorganisation (note (a)) BARFHER M @) 408 408
Changes of interests in subsidiaries without TEHUR TSI B
change of control (note (b)) NERESEE (M (b)) (3,527) (3,527)
3,119) (3,119)
(@)  The capital reserve of the Group represents the aggregate amount of the (@) AEEZEXREEIRIERBRK
non-voting deferred shares of Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited and BRAA EBRZRIELERN EE
the difference between the nominal amount of the share capital issued by the ER—NNEERQAIREEES
Company in exchange for the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital BMBHEDPIET 2 RAEBEAR
of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation in 1994 (the BT B A Rl 2 IR AN {EABRE
“Reorganisation”). W EE
(b)  The balance represents the net changes in capital reserve arising from the (b) FHWRTEFAMBAREEE

change of interests in subsidiaries without change of control.

Wy
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR

28 BITHEE

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THT
Bank loans due for repayment within ER—FABEZRITEXK
one year - secured (Note 3.1(e)) —BEM(MEE3.1(e)) 75,007 68,774
Trust receipt loans due for repayment FER—FABEZET
within one year - secured (Note 3.1(e)) WERER—
BHER(FIFE3.1(e)) 305,085 239,903
Bank advances for discounted bills (Note 22) RITANRRRBR (M 22) 12,735 11,03
392,827 319,708
The carrying amount of the Group's borrowings approximates their AEERBREZREERENAEE
fair values as the impact of discounting is not significant. The Group's HE - WA TINEE RER :
borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET THET
HK$ BT 237,677 222,017
RMB AR¥ 19,878 20,555
usD e 135,272 77,136
392,827 319,708

The amounts repayable based on the scheduled repayment date set out

in the loan agreements ignoring the effect of any repayment on demand

clause are as follows:

RIRE B ip % | BB IR
FERENFIRREIEEESH

Within | year

—FR

LI
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTAT
392,827 319,708
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28 BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest rate changes and the

weighted average interest rates at the balance sheet date are as follows:

28 MITEE#)

RAERERAAEEZ HREF
ERBHABRIETHRENT ;

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT
— at fixed rates — [E7E F1) 2 374,213 319,708
— at floating rates — RN 18,614 —
392,827 319,708

2021

Trust receipt loans EREBIRE R 3.05% —
Short-term bank loans S HIRITER 2.40%  4.35%
Bank advances for RITAIR RN

discounted bills — 2.29%

HK$ RMB UsD
BT ARE XTT

3.25% 2.22% 4.50% 2.11%

— 1.78% 4.92% —

— — 3.32% —

Bank borrowings are secured by certain property, plant and equipment
(Note 15), leasehold land and land use rights (Note 16), investment
properties (Note |7) and restricted bank deposits (Note 24(b)) of the
Group.

Bank advances for discounted bills with recourse have been accounted
for as collateralised bank advances. The discounted bank's acceptance
bills and the related proceeds of the same amount are included in the
Group's trade and bills receivables (Note 22) and short-term borrowings

respectively at the end of the reporting period.

=
o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR MR
DEFERRED INCOME TAX 29 RIEBIIR
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally EBETEARITHNBEERIEBEE
enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against current ERRBEHREGGHENE  BEEMR
income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to SRS KRR —B R - B AR
the same taxation authority. The following amounts, determined after ST EERBEBEEEEE - &
appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance sheet: ABEEER S THSRNES

BERBRAIIK

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Deferred income tax assets EIEFIBEE E 9,090 8,132
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFIEBE (6,261) (4496)
2,829 3,636
The net movement on the deferred income tax is as follows: FREEMESHEENFZEMT

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET THT

At beginning of the year, as restated FH(&E5)) 3,636 7,282
Charged to consolidated income EiReWERAOR

statement (Note 10) (FFzE 10) (807) (4,210)

Currency translation differences e H Z5E — 564

At end of the year FR 2,829 3,636

ANNUAL REPORT FE#RE 21 /22 @
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29 EIEFLIE (&)
FRELCHEAERABY 28 (R
F— B [ S AR SR I T -

29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the
year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the

same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

=
o

Fair value gains on

Accelerated tax

Deferred income tax liabilities: investment properties  depreciation Withholding Tax Total
REM*
EEHEEE: DAEERE MEBH T E AEH nE
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
RCYN HK$'000 MELEXN HKE'000 WalEHUIN HK$'000 MalEXl HK$'000
v TET R THET WS THET W THT
At beginning of the year E9) 860 1747 4425 570 = — 5285 7469
(Credited)/charged to EiEaER
consolidated income statement (3t A)/ 1k (245)  (1043) 506 (1633) 1,644 — 1,905  (2676)
Currency translation differences EHZER — 156 — 336 — - — 492
At end of the year R 615 860 4,931 4,425 1,644 — 7,19 5285
Decelerated tax
Deferred income tax assets: Provisions Tax losses depreciation Total
EEHEEE EfH hBEE HEHRBRE nE
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
ELEXOOR HKS'000 MElEX0A HKF000 MalEXU0R HKS000 BalEXIN HKE$'000
sy TET WA TAET ERwid T ERwd THET
At beginning of the year, as restated S #](& &%) 6,187 7,807 519 4,657 2,215 2,287 8921 14751
Credited/(charged) to consolidated ~ EARA M@K
income statement A/ (1) 1,186 (2,115) 29 (4539) (59)  (232) 1,098  (6886)
Currency translation differences EHER = 495 = 401 = 160 —  10%
At end of the year X 7,373 6,187 490 519 2,156 2215 10,019 8921

@ NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« REITHERDF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward
to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profits is probable. At 30th June 2022, the Group had unrecognised
tax losses to be carried forward against future taxable income amounted
to approximately HK$326,277,000 (2021: HK$317,186,000). These tax
losses have no expiry date except that approximately HK$ 17,037,000
(2021: HK$11,222,000) will expire from 2023 to 2027 (2021: 2022 to
2026). The potential deferred income tax assets in respect of these tax
losses which have not been recognised amounted to approximately
HK$55,284,000 (202 1: HK$53,290,000).

As at 30th June 2022, deferred income tax has not been provided for in
the consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to unremitted profits earned by certain Mainland subsidiaries
of the Group amounting to approximately HK$389,377,000 (2021:
HK$367,260,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. During the year
ended 30th June 2022, deferred income tax amounted to approximately
HK$ 1,644,000 has been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of withholding tax attributable to unremitted profit
earned by a Mainland subsidiary of the Group that shall be distributed in

the foreseeable future.

29

RS B IS ER AR B EE

IEENIH (&)
B4 B2 A B RS B 18 T 1 R A IR AT
SHEEERRNEBIMBENESR
Tﬁ%éﬁiﬁﬂim’ﬁ%)ﬂé&ﬂ%ﬁﬁmgﬁ
Do RZEBEZZFANA=FTH K
5 B 30 4% 5t AT 45 8% LUK 8 oK SR B AR
T U 25 1O 4 75 B 18 49 326,277,000 78
TT(ZZ = —4F : 317,186,000/ 7T )
e 3R XE T 45 B 38 2= #955,284,000
B T(Z & = — £ 153,290,000/
JT) e m:%:fii—? +
F(ZEZ—F: ZFT__FZF
:E_/\EHUEHE’\]%R?I“%E?E%’U
£17,037,0008 t(Z T = — F:
11,222,000/87T) °

RZTE-_—FXA=1+8  ~%E
WARBTFHRBEAHHBRARZE
FRER R BB 3R 4 A1) #£ 49 389,377,000 %8
TT(ZF = —4F : 367,260,000 7T )
ZEREBERTEHERE AR
EEEFZELREZE 2B LR
fE LA&#T%Z%}K&#E%%
BO g Teb - REZE—
FRNA=ZTHLEEE AK;%I/&%—
FABERmHEARZENR 2
RA] BE > B B BRER K B i 0% F| /9 T8
BRVEL 41,644,000 7T 2 IE R
TR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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30 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 30 RERERMER
(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash (a) BRHAGREEEXEBEL
generated from operations: 2R -
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Profit before income tax B A& A 88,927 121,597
Adjustments for: HEIEE:
— Depreciation of property, —-ME - BEX
plant and equipment RIBITE 18,565 18,041
— Loss on disposal of property, —HEWE BEK
plant and equipment R EE 539 |
— Depreciation of right—of-use assets —EREEENE 5,850 5,641
— Fair value losses/(gains) on —INERHIEHNZ AR
forward exchange contracts BEEE (M=) 273 (1,223)
— Unrealised fair value (gains)/losses on - RERREWMEZ AR
investment properties BE(kx), &8 (147) 2,677
— Provision for/(reversal of) loss allowance ~ — & 5 B E1E
on trade receivables B (BE) 535 (430)
— Provision for/(reversal of) impairment - GFEREEERE
of inventories, net ($&E) — %58 1,904 (6,793)
— Interest income — R EWA (898) (1,137)
— Interest expense —FBEZH 8,470 9,952
Changes in working capital: BEESHEE
— Inventories —-FE (177,048) 79,725
— Trade and bills receivables, —BHRUHR KRB -
other receivables, SR E UK
prepayments and deposits BNRRZE® 26,449 (65,834)
— Trade and bills payables, —BHENRRER
other payables, 2B HENRR
deposits received and accruals BRI RTERER 3,796 15,997

Cash (used in)/generated from operations KEEB(ER) EE
ZHE (22,785) 178,214

=
-

@ NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« REITHERDF
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30 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(Continued)

Ny Y7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from
sales of property, plant and equipment comprise:

SRR

30 ZREREFRER®E)

(b) EHEREEREZA HE
Y¥E BERREHAEN
i

Net book amount (Note 15)
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (Note 8)

BREFE(KIFEIS)
HEWE. BEREZE
ZEE(MEs)

Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment

HEME - BB M&E

EIEE N

2022 202
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT TAT
539 26
(539) (1

— 25

ANNUAL REPORT FE#RE 21 /22 3
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e B EHRRMEE
30 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 30 AERERERE)
(Continued)
(c) The reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c) BEXBEEERBEH
activities is as follows: /1
Bank borrowings Lease liabilities Total
RITHEE HESE ko
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FTET THERT
At Ist July 2020 RZEBE-_ZTF+HA—H 365,377 7,019 372,396
Cash flow REMR
— Proceed from bank loans —HIIRITER 591,701 — 591,701
— Repayment of bank loans —EERITER (636,246) = (636,246)
— Decrease in trust receipt loans ~ —{E5EBUEE R D (6,771) — (6,771)
— Repayment of lease liabilities —ERHEEE — (4,734) (4,734)
Non-cash changes FREeEH
— Addition of lease liabilities —HEAFLM — 6,452 6,452
— Exchange differences —[EHERE 5,647 61 5,708
At 30th June 2021 RZZE-_—FA=1+H 319,708 8,798 328,506
Cash flow REm
— Proceed from bank loans —FIIRITER 583,778 — 583,778
— Repayment of bank loans —ERBTER (575,841) = (575,841)
— Increase in trust receipt loans — SRR EFIE M 65,182 — 65,182
— Repayment of lease liabilities —ERMEEEE — (5,038) (5,038)
Non-cash changes R
— Addition of lease liabilities —HEAFEM = 9,569 9,569
— Exchange differences —EREE — (115) (115)
At 30th June 2022 RZE-_—FA=1+H 392,827 13,214 406,041

2.
o
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31 COMMITMENTS
(a) Capital commitments

At 30th June 2022, the Group had the following capital commitments
for addition of property, plant and equipment:

SRR

31 ARIE
(a) EFERE
RZBE-_—_FXA=+H" ' &K
EEEBEVME  BERXREZ

BARPEMT
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THET
Contracted but not provided for EHENEREH 976 4,392
(b) Other commitments (b) Hftt#EE

On 15th June 2022, the Group entered into a non-cancellable
operating lease agreement with an agent of the Mainland China local
government authority to lease an industrial building premise for 5
years with a minimum lease payment of RMBI | per square meter.
During the non-cancellable lease period, the Group commits an
accumulated three years tax payment of RMB10,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$11,905,000), including the corporate income
tax and value added tax, from its business operation in the region to
the Mainland China local government authority. Any shortfall on the
committed tax payment would result in a 15% increase in monthly

lease payment in the subsequent year.

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group is controlled by Good Benefit Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands, which owns 53.3% of the Company’s shares.
The remaining 46.7% of the shares were widely held. Substantially all of
the shares of Good Benefit Limited are beneficially owned by certain

Directors of the Company.

RZE-Z—FA+HB ' &
SRR —TEREEEYWE—
HR B X 3 b 77 IBROAT X B MR
E-RHBRAFZTAIRBELES
HEAH REHEEABFRH
KITARE - RATIHUEEHE
ESEAN - AEEFBRR=F
e UMb (@ 2 7 5 S A %
H B A i T RS B A
& 1K 10,000,000 A R ¥ (& &
#911,905,000% 7t) 2 FRIE(B
BREMESBRIGER) - £
AR B2 RERIBE R BER
FHNBFAMES ELAESZ
+3# -

32 BEEBALRS

AL E H Good Benefit Limited (£
REERRBEEEMKZ 2 AR
TH HEEAAFTE P Z2AT=
B KBS 2T NE
tE#EAEZHF A ° Good Benefit
Limited BE L REH RIEBHAR T
ZEDERERFEER ©
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 32

The Directors of the Company are regarded as key management of the
Group and details of compensation paid to them are disclosed in Note 4

to the consolidated financial statements.

(a) Transactions with related parties
In addition to those disclosed in Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements, the following transactions were carried out with

related parties:

BABEAN L5 ()
AARREEFHRRAREE L
EZEWAR  HFEHFMENE
AETBRMARME 14 5 -

(a) HEBBALHXE
BRERE IS MR ST 14 TR ER
SN A LETHRZ M
T

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Lease payment to related parties: TRABA LT ZHERNK
— Build Fair Limited (Note (i)) —SBEAERAF(MEFEG)) 1,044 1,062
— Shine Systems Plastic Materials —BAEBRHERAAE
Company Limited (Note (ii)) CBRFEE i) 967 993
— Mr. Hui Sai Chung (Note (iii)) — B ER S A (M3 (iii)) 328 178
2,339 2,233
Addition of right-of-use assets: EFEE AR
— Build Fair Limited (Note (i)) —SBERAFT(MTEG)) 1,933 —
— Shine Systems Plastic Materials —BRZBRHEBRAA
Company Limited (Note (ii)) (PREE (i) 636 1,246
2,569 1,246
Notes: 5T

() Build Fair Limited is a company wholly owned by Mr. HUI Sai Chung, a

Director of the Company.
(i)~ Shine Systems Plastic Materials Company Limited is a company wholly

owned by Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong, a Director of the Company.

(i)~ Mr. HUI Sai Chung is a Director of the Company.

Lease payment made to related parties are on mutually agreed basis.

=
"4
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SRR

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Year-end balance arising from related party transactions

32 BBMALRB &)
(b) BB LXK 5 FEHRGHE

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
Lease liabilities to related parties: TREBATZHESE
— Build Fair Limited —RRBERAF 1,775 843
— Shine Systems Plastic Materials —ARZERBRHMBR LA
Company Limited 959 1,271
— Mr. Hui Sai Chung — AL A 135 447
2,869 2,561
33 ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY 33 RERERAT
The Directors regard Good Benefit Limited, a company incorporated in EERREARAZIREERRER
the British Virgin Islands, as being the ultimate holding company. Good Benefit Limited (£ 2 J& # f X
BHSEMASZZRAE]) o
34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 34 EEMEAF

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2022 and RZEBEZZFR-ZZFE-—F7-A

2021: =tHR ARBAZEEMBRFMN
™
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
operation and paid up share capital/ Ownership interest
* kind of legal entity registered capital held by the Group
Name SEMRR L4 it B ERTREE Principal activities KEBEEZ
=1 R+ EANER R, EMER EX-3 38 FrEkER
2021
Ngai Hing (International) British Virgin Islands US$100 Investment holding 100 100
Company Limited RBHEBARES 1003 7T REER
(Note b) GEDY
Dongguan Ngai Hing Plastic ~ Mainland China HK$93,200,000 Manufacture and sale of 100 100

Materials Limited
RaREEBREARAA

*wholly foreign-owned 93,200,000 47T

enterprise
REIAH
NEBELE

colorants and
compounded plastic resins
SERHERERR
EB AR
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34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2022 and

2021: (Continued)

34

Place of
incorporation/
operation and

* kind of legal entity

Issued and fully

paid up share capital/

registered capital

Ownership interest
held by the Group

Name SRR it B CRITREE Principal activities KEBEEZ
=1 R+ EANER R/ EmE R EX-3 38 FrEkER
-:ﬂ 2021
Hong Kong Colour Hong Kong 500,000 ordinary Manufacture and trading of 100 100
Technology Limited B% shares of HK$ | each colorants and compounded
BEEXARLA 500,000 X & A% El & plastic resins
BT & B HEREEEEHRK
EE AR
Ngai Hing Engineering Hong Kong 2,000,000 ordinary Manufacture of 76.2 76.2
Plastic Materials Limited B shares of HK$ | each engineering plastic products
RETRBHARAA 2,000,000 f& & AR EI B SUETIREBER
BT BB
Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary Investment holding and 100 100
Materials Limited a5 shares of HK$ | each property holding
BREBBRHABRAF L0 B EE — REEBRRFEEME
BT B
500,000 non-voting
deferred shares of
HKS$ I each (Note c)
500,000 B & A% E (B
| BT B
BT RR (P T o)
Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Hong Kong 500,000 ordinary Trading of plastic materials 100 100
Materials (Hong Kong) N shares of HK$ | each HEEBRBRER
Limited 500,000 B &A% E (B
REZBRH(FE) BT B
BR AT
NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED - RE{THRAF
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34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2022 and

2021: (Continued)

AR I ERARMIEE

34 FEWE QT (&)
RZE-_—_FR_ZT=-—F,XA
ZtH ARBZEBHBE A G M
™ (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
operation and paid up share capital/

* kind of legal entity registered capital

Ownership interest
held by the Group

Name SRR it B CRITREE Principal activities KEBEEZ
=1 R+ EANER R/ EmE R EX-3 38 FrEkER
-:ﬂ 2021
Shanghai Ngai Hing Plastic Mainland China HK$34,400,000  Manufacture and sale of 100 100
Materials Co., Limited *wholly foreign-owned 34,400,000 % 7T colorants and compounded
FEREERBRE enterprise plastic resins
BRAA A SUENHEERERER
EBELE EE AR
Tsing Tao Ngai Hing Plastic ~ Mainland China HK$10,500,000  Manufacture and sale of 100 100
Materials Co., Limited *wholly foreign-owned 10,500,000 BT colorants and compounded
EERELBRE enterprise plastic resins
BR QA REIA SUENHERERER
EBELE &8 AP
NHH Coltec Limited Hong Kong 5,000 ordinary ~ Manufacture and sale of 100 100
REEAZERR AT O shares of HK$ | each plastic products
5000 BREE  SBEREELBEM
BT BER
Ngai Hing Engineering Plastics Mainland China US$200,000 Trading of engineering 76.2 76.2
Materials (Shanghai) *wholly foreign-owned 200,000 37T plastic products
Co., Limited enterprise BEIREBER
RITRERM(LE) FEI A
BRLA EBELE
Tsing Tao Ngai Hing Mainland China US$100,000  Trading of colorants and 100 100
Trading Co. Limited *wholly foreign-owned 100,000% 7T compounded plastic resins
EEREREERAF enterprise BEEQARES
A3 A BB Bs
IEBELE
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34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2022 and

2021: (Continued)

34 XEMB AR #)
N E - —FR T —F,XA
Z+tH ARBZEBHBERF M
™ (&)

%

>l

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
operation and paid up share capital/

* kind of legal entity registered capital

Ownership interest
held by the Group

Name SRR it B CRITREE Principal activities KEBEEZ
=1 R+ EANER R/ EmE R EX-3 38 AR
2021
Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic  Hong Kong 1,000,000 ordinary Trading of engineering 76.2 76.2
(Hong Kong) Limited B% shares of HK$ | each plastic products
RETREE(FE) 1,000,000 % & A I & BEETREBEM
BRARA] BT & B
Xiamen Ngai Hing Hong Mainland China US$1,200,000  Manufacture and sale of 100 100
Plastic Materials Company  *wholly foreign-owned 1,200,000 7T colorants and compounded
Limited enterprise plastic resins
EFRBETEBRM FE A SUERHEBRER R
BRLA *NEBELE E=R=r= gl
Guangzhou Ngai Sog Hing Mainland China RMB10,000,000 Trading of plastic materials 100 100
Trading Company Limited ~ *wholly foreign-owned 10,000,000 A R #& BEEZRBRE
BMMRZEESHERLDF  enterprise
B A
*SEBERE
Shanghai Ngai Sog Hing Mainland China US$400,000 Trading of plastic materials 100 100
Trading Company Limited ~ *wholly foreign-owned 400,000 7T BEEBRRE
FEREEREBRHEBE enterprise
BRARA N
*SEBELE
NHH Biodegradable Plastics ~ Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary ~ Manufacture and sale of 100 100
Company Limited BE shares of HK$ | each biodegradable plastic
BREREREHARAF 10,000 Bt B Ak E {8 materials

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

BT EBE RERHERREB R
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34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2022 and

2021: (Continued)
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34 FEME DT (#)

%

T (%&)

RN E - —FR T —F,XA
+B  ARAIZEBHNER AW

>l

Place of
incorporation/
operation and

* kind of legal entity

Issued and fully

paid up share capital/

registered capital

Ownership interest
held by the Group

Name AR S ERTRAR Principal activities rEEREZ
=1 BAEANER RAEEREX EX-3 38 FERER
2021
Ngai Hing Engineering Mainland China HK$8,000,000 Trading of engineering 76.2 76.2
Plastic (Dongguan) *wholly foreign-owned 8,000,000 % 7T plastic products
Company Limited enterprise BEEIRZRBERM
SRITREMERRE FEAM
SEBERE
Shanghai Coltec Plastic Mainland China US$200,000  Trading of colorants and 100 100
Trading Company Limited ~ *wholly foreign-owned 200,0003E 7T compounded plastic resins
FEEEEREZBERAF  enterprise BEEEQAIRES
RE A AL
IEBELE
Monceris Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary Investment holding 84.5 84.5
EEEERAT O shares of HK$ | each HEZER
10,000 Bt & %
HE BT
BB
Monceris (Shanghai) Materials Mainland China RMB1,000,000  Trading of colorants and 84.5 84.5
Technology Limited *wholly foreign - owned 1,000,000 AR#  compounded plastic resins
2E(E)MERFE enterprise BEEZOERER
BRAA FEIA AR
HIEBELE
Dongguan Coltec Plastic Mainland China HK$3,000,000  Trading of colorants and 100 100
Trading Company Limited ~ *wholly foreign-owned 3,000,000 7T compounded plastic resins
REBEREHESBR AT enterprise BEEQARES
REIA A R BE
IEBELE
Tianjin Ngai Hing Hong Mainland China US$400,000 Trading of plastic materials 100 100

Trading Company Limited
REBRETHEERAF

*wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

B A

NEBELE

400,000 7T BEBBEY
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B S ER AR B X

34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2022 and

2021: (Continued)

34 FEWMB AT (&
RZE-_—_FR_ZT=-—F,XA
Z+tH ARBZEBHBERF M
™ (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
operation and paid up share capital/

* kind of legal entity registered capital

Ownership interest
held by the Group

Name SRR it B CRITREE Principal activities KEBEEZ
=1 R+ EANER R/ EmE R EX-3 38 FrEkER
-:ﬂ 2021
NHH Investment Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary Investment holding 100 100
RETIREBRRAA] 5% shares of HK$ | each BEER
10,000 Bz B AR
BT BB
Guangzhou Ngai Hing Hong ~ Mainland China RMB3,000,000 Trading of plastic materials 100 100
Plastic Materials Limited ~ *wholly foreign-owned 3,000,000 A R #& EZBRBRE
BN TR BT B R *Y enterprise
BRAA B A3
*SEBELE
Chongging Ngai Hing Hong ~ Mainland China RMB3,000,000 Trading of plastic materials 100 100
Plastic Materials Limited #wholly foreign-owned 3,000,000 A R #& BEERRBRE
EETRETEBRE enterprise
BRALA A
*SEBELE
Shanghai Ngai Hing Hong Mainland China RMB3,000,000 Trading of plastic materials 100 100
Plastic Materials Limited ~ *wholly foreign-owned 3,000,000 A R #& EEBRBRE
EBREITBRBIRE enterprise
BRAA F B A3
EBELE
NHH Technology Hong Kong 2,000,000 ordinary Manufacture and sale 38.86 38.86
Company Limited a5 shares of HK$| each of personal care products
BEMZERAF 2,000,000 A% &A% BEEBEAZEAm
HEIET
BB

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

RETHERDF
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34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

35

Notes:

(a)  All the subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong and British Virgin Islands are
limited liability companies. All subsidiaries established in Mainland China are

wholly foreign-owned enterprises.

(b)  Other than Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited, which is directly held
by the Company, all the principal subsidiaries listed above are indirectly held
by the Company.

(c)  The holders of the non-voting deferred shares in Ngai Hing Hong Plastic
Materials Limited (“NHHPML") shall not be entitled to any participation in
the profits or surplus assets of NHHPML and they are not entitled to receive
notice of or attend or vote at any general meeting of NHHPML in respect of

their holdings of such deferred shares.

Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited has been granted an option by
the holders of the non-voting deferred shares to acquire these shares for an

aggregate cash consideration of HK$4.

(d)  The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results of the year or formed
a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

Capital injection from non-controlling shareholders

During the year ended 30th June 2021, the non-controlling shareholders
have further injected HK$2,694,000 into NHH Technology Company
Limited.

During the the year ended 30th June 2021, the non-controlling
shareholders have injected HK$2,000 into Monceris Limited.

AR I ERARMIEE

34 FEME DT (#)

35

GEE

(@ HMBERERRABEARHSIM
KIZzWERREREREER
Al o PrE R BRI 2 KB L
A RINEREDRE

(b)y FTE L3 ZFZEME R AR Ngai
Hing (International) Company
Limited AR FIEEF A - 198
ARRBEEE -

(0 REBBRHMARAF(RE])E
REREERN < HEANEE2 A
REHN KRB EED K > TE
RERR R RF B 2 MR AE AR {7y U B R B
RARGBERHERABZRAG K

Mg ERE -

Ngai Hing (International) Company
Limited JAZR S 48 (B 478 T E SR
SRR OFEARBATEEZ
FO 2 BAE -

(d) ERIHEERRUAFERER
KERFEIBRAKEEEFE
ZEBHD 2 ARAMBLRF - E
ERRIFEI EAMME R B 215
FLEBNILE -

BFEBI MRS

FEHRRZFE
REBEE_TE-_—FA=Z1+HILF
o EEHIRERRERE AR A
A — F7F & 2,694,000 7T ©

BE_T-_—FX NA=1THL#HF
CEHRRCAZERARA
AXE 2,000 7T -

a2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R ERRMIEE
36 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 36 ERITA(ERER)
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHIT
Financial assets - loans and receivables BKEE -BERREKRK
Trade and bills receivables BEoRERREWERE 22 233,142 276,823
Other receivables and deposits Hitfr s kize 7,143 7,862
Restricted bank deposits R Hl KB RITIF K 24 38,797 38,344
Cash and cash equivalents HeMIReEE 24 178,926 206,579
458,008 529,608
Financial asset at FVOCI BEAARBEFAEMEZE
WEWHMKEEE
Financial asset at FVOCI BRASEEFTAEM
THWNENMBEEE 19 2,943 2,226
Financial liabilities - fair value through HMBEE-RAAEER
profit or loss FEiBBEEIR
Derivative financial instruments TEEMTAE 23 296 23
Financial liabilities - other financial liabilities MR EE - HMmEi
at amortised cost 8E REBHKE
Trade and bills payables BoRNARENZER 25 87,336 78,252
Other payables Hib R R EWET € 24,508 23,522
Lease liabilities HERE 16 13,214 8,798
Bank borrowings RITIEE 28 392,827 319,708
517,885 430,280

=
"4

% NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« REITHERDF
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SRR

37 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF

THE COMPANY HEE
Balance sheet BEEEEX

37 XRAFIMNEEEBERRR

2022 2021
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 FTHER THETT
ASSETS &E
Non-current asset FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries B A RRE 62,711 62,711
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries AN NGIEN 128,061 119,958
Other receivables R IGR 275 356
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEeFHE 416 258
128,752 120,572
Total assets HEE 191,463 183,283
EQUITY S
Capital and reserves attributable to AEBRREGERER #E
the Company’s equity holders
Share capital [N 36,920 36,920
Share premium I A B 62,466 62,466
Other reserve H A fE (a) 62,511 62,511
Retained earnings RE & (a) 10,340 20,682
Total equity BER 172,237 182,579
LIABILITY afE
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals TEIRE M 612 704
Bank borrowings RITEE 18,614 —
19,226 704
Total equity and liability wEZREE 191,463 183,283

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of AAFIWEEARBEEREHESEER

Directors on 29th September 2022 and was signed on its behalf —E-—EAB-t+ABHE T
REREFERE

HUI Sai Chung HUI Kwok Kwong

FritER FFEI

Director Director

EF EF
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ARSI A5 SRR MY aE

37 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Balance sheet (Continued)

Note: (a) Reserve movement of the Company

37

Other reserve -

contributed

KRN EEEERRR
BB (®)

BERMEK(A)
Mt : () AR AHEES

surplus
(Note)
Heibf#E - Retained
BB earnings Total
(BiEE) REBEF BE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT FTERT
At Ist July 2020 R-ZE-_TFtA—H 62,511 6,340 68,851
Profit for the year AR A — 21,726 21726
2020/202 | interim dividends paid IN=—T=%/
—E—FEPHRE = (7,384) (7,384)
At 30th June 2021 R-ZZE=-—FXA=7H 62,511 20,682 83,193
At Ist July 2021 RZZE=——%F+tHA—H 62,511 20,682 83,193
Profit for the year RE 7 F) — 9,964 9,964
2020/2021 final dividends paid YR=—T==F
T -FEREARKRE — (14,768) (14,768)
2021/2022 interim dividend paid ?ZH:;E:*/
ZE—FERBRE = (5,538) (5,538)
At 30th June 2022 M-_ZE-—FXA=+H 62,511 10,340 72,851

Note:

Contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference between the

consolidated shareholders’ funds of Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited at

the date on which the Reorganisation became effective and the nominal amount

of the Company's shares issued under the Reorganisation. At Group level the

contributed surplus is reclassified into its components of reserves of the underlying

subsidiaries.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed surplus is distributable

to shareholders, subject to the condition that the Company cannot declare or pay

a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if (i) it is, or after the

payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the realisable

value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its

issued share capital and share premium account.

@ NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« REITHERDF

BaE

KNQAZE A JINgi Hing
(International) Company Limited PR E 414
BAMZGARRESEARRIREE
MARBRTZBROEERE ZZ#E - A&
BrEABBRIBENBRAFRNEAR
ZHERERN -

BEARE—AN—FATE BB
BAHETRE - BIEBALIEHME
(i) 2> BB 4 AR 8. 38 e AL A 53 R 14 %
SRR A B (i) A
EEZITSREESEAMENELE®E
RE B BT AR AR 45 5 (B 4 - B
ZARATBEERENREAUERE
B e I ©



The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the last five financial

years are as follows:

F g,
4 &

2022

Five-Year Financial Summary

AEBBHBE

AEENBELEMRFESFZEE
BERABENT :

2021 2020 2019 2018

IEYON HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
FHET FAET FAET FHET FAET

Results B
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity N EIRER B

holders of the Company wmA (EE) 56,958 89,865 (6212) 7,806 46,171
Assets and liabilities EEREE
Total assets BAERE 1,227,658 1,102,156 994,839 1,019,873 1,049,595
Total liabilities BfERE (568,612) (482,012) (504,318) (507,280) (515,554)
Non-controlling interests FEFE il A (33,787)  (31,727)  (25,199)  (23,874)  (24.826)
Capital and reserves attributable to 72 &) & SR FE(L A& A

the Company's equity holders K 625,259 588417 465322 488719 509,215

&

ANNUAL REPORT FE#RE 21 /22 @



ﬂ:q_:?:-

. ¥

”

Schedule of Principal Properties

EBMER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT

As at 30th June 2022 and 2021, the Group had the following investment
properties in Hong Kong and The People’s Republic of China (“Mainland

China"):

As at 30th June 2022

REW=

.
N———

E

R-BE-—HFxXA=+H

—E-—FXNA=Z+H K
EEFEUREERTERNLZIRED

Category of Group’s
Description Addresses Usage lease term interest
gl b 31k Rz HESIE FEEER
Industrial building Factory Unit 4 on 2nd Floor, Factory Unit 2 on 3rd Commercial Medium 100%
units — Hong Kong Floor, Factory Units 7 and 8 on 6th Floor, Factory [EES /R ER
TEREEG-FHE Unit 8 on 8th Floor, Factory Units |, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7
and 8 on |0th Floor, Factory Units | and 8 on |lth
Floor, Factory Unit 3 on [2th Floor and Roof 3,
Hopeful Factory Centre, Nos. 9-15 Fo Tan Road and
Nos. 10-16 Wo Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New
Territories, Hong Kong
BB A WA AR EE9-15 5% R AR H 10-1657
BETERL2BAE 312F ¢B7R8E - 812
8BZE 1041234 56 7TR8E IR
8% - 2IB3ERKRA 3N
Industrial building Industrial premises situated in Chiling Village, Houjie Industrial Medium 100%
units — Mainland China  Zhen, Dongguan City, Guangdong Province, Mainland T HER
TEREEMN— China
PR URPEAEREREMEFHER BN ZTEX
E
Car park units — Car Parks 3, 14 and |5, Hopeful Factory Centre, Nos. Commercial Short 100%
Hong Kong 9-15 Fo Tan Road and Nos. 10-16 Wo Shing Street, [HES %2 8
B —BB Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
BB A MNP AR EE9-155% R AR H 10-1657
BIET AL 14 R ISHEFBEL
Commercial office units Units 1612, 1613, 1614, 1615 and 1616, 16th Level, Commercial Medium 100%
and apartment — Modo Nanjing Road Xintiandi Building, No. 349 [EES FRER

Mainland China
[EES NV
FR i

Nanjing Road, Nankai District, Tianjin, Mainland China
o B 79 3 K% 1 R B 8 R AR B 349 5T MODO A B
R K E 16481612 16131614 16151616

ES

@ NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« ZHETHRRAF




PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT (Continued)

As at 30th June 2021

oW 7/

Schedule of Principal Properties
EFEMER

BREY = (#)
R=®=—FXA=+H

Category of Group’s
Description Addresses Usage lease term interest
it b3t Ay HEHSE FEE#ER
Industrial building Factory Unit 4 on 2nd Floor, Factory Unit 2 on 3rd Commercial Medium 100%
units — Hong Kong Floor, Factory Units 7 and 8 on 6th Floor, Factory [EES HRER
ITHERNEBMN—BH Unit 8 on 8th Floor, Factory Units |, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7
and 8 on |0th Floor, Factory Units | and 8 on | Ith
Floor, Factory Unit 3 on [|2th Floor and Roof 3,
Hopeful Factory Centre, Nos. 9-15 Fo Tan Road and
Nos. 10-16 Wo Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New
Territories, Hong Kong
BB R B AR NI 9-15 5% R AR B HT 10-16 5%
BIETEPL2E4E  3B2E - 6B7R8E - 812
8= 1012345 6" 7TR8E IIEBIX
8FE - 1I2EB3ERKE 3N
Industrial building Industrial premises situated in Chiling Village, Houjie Industrial Medium 100%
units — Mainland China Zhen, Dongguan City, Guangdong Province, Mainland I% FHHA
ITRAREEM- China
hE A URPEAEREREMETHRA BN Z TEX
E
Car park units — Car Parks 3, 14 and |5, Hopeful Factory Centre, Nos. Commercial Short 100%
Hong Kong 9-15 Fo Tan Road and Nos. 10-16 Wo Shing Street, [GES 2 HA
BB —FB Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
BB R B AR NI 9-15 5% R AR B AT 10-16 5%
BT EAL3 S 14 R ISHEEM
Commercial office units ~ Units 1612, 1613, 1614, 1615 and 1616, 16th Level, Commercial Medium 100%
and apartment — Modo Nanjing Road Xintiandi Building, No. 349 [EES HER

Mainland China
A T —
AR i

Nanjing Road, Nankai District, Tianjin, Mainland China
AR B P b KO T R 5 [ R B 349 SR MODO R B
R KE 16181612 16131614~ 161581616

z=
=23

&
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Company Directory
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Hong Kong Head Office:

Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory Centre,
10 Wo Shing Street,

Fo Tan, New Territories,

Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2693 1663

Fax: +852 2694 0877

Website: https://www.nhh.com.hk

E-mail address: info@nhh.com.hk

Hong Kong Factory:
No. 9 Dai Shun Street,
Tai Po Industrial Estate,
Tai Po, New Territories,
Hong Kong

Tel.: +852 2660 0208
Fax: +852 2667 4831

Dongguan Factory:

Chiling Industrial Zone, Houjie Town,
Dongguan City,

Guangdong Province,

The People's Republic of China

Tel.: +86 (0) 769 8558 8755

Zip: 523940

Fax: +86 (0) 769 8558 1756

No. 113, Siheng Road, Zhuanyao Industrial Zone,
Wentang, Dongcheng District, Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province,

The People's Republic of China

Tel: +86 (0) 769 2316 6636

Zip: 523121

Fax: +86 (0) 769 2316 3608

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -« REITHERDF

BRETHERAH
(REREZBATZERAF)
ERAREE

&t

58N

REEH 1057
HETEFRLCIEIE

BEE ¢ +852 2693 1663

{EH : +852 2694 0877

484 © https://www.nhh.com.hk
BFEFHAE ¢ info@nhh.com.hk

BRI

B

AR

KITET
KIEET 9 5%

TaE - +852 2660 0208
fBHE : +852 2667 483

R

REE AR HFE

REm

EHERETHRER

BTk +86 (0) 769 8558 8755
BERAR SR © 523940

{55 : +86 (0) 769 8558 1756

SEYNEF Il

BRA

R RIS R

P T X [m IR | 1358
TRE ¢ +86 (0) 769 2316 6636
T ARSR ¢ 523121

EE : +86 (0) 769 2316 3608




Guangzhou Office:

A1806, Center Plaza,

No. 161 Linhe Road West,
Tianhe District,

Guangzhou,

The People’s Republic of China
Tel.: +86 (0) 20 3831 0226
Zip: 510620

Fax: +86 (0) 20 3831 0223

Shanghai Office:

Unit E, 16th Floor,

Zhao Feng Universe Building,

No. 1800 Zhongshan West Road,
Shanghai,

The People's Republic of China
Tel.: +86 (0) 21 6440 3351

Zip: 200235

Fax: +86 (0) 21 6440 0373

Shanghai Factory:

No. 8100, Songze Ave,,
Qingpu Industrial Zone,
Shanghai,

The People's Republic of China
Tel: +86 (0) 21 6921 3333
Zip: 201707

Fax: +86 (0) 21 6921 5555

Qingdao Factory:

Haier (Jiaozhou) International Industrial Zone,
Jiaozhou ECO & TECH Development Zone, Qingdao,
The People’s Republic of China

Tel: +86 (0) 532 8727 3100

Zip: 266300

Fax: +86 (0) 532 8727 3110

Company Directory o
AFEm

BEMNRER
hEARLFE

BN

R

MATEE 161 5%

W 2R B R 55 A 1806

EEE © +86 (0) 20 3831 0226
FRERARSE - 510620

{EHE : +86 (0) 20 3831 0223

EEMER
PEEAREFE
Eagm

AL PR 1800 5%
JKEIRBR K=
|6 1L E 2

BEE 1 +86 (0) 21 6440 3351
B4R ST - 200235
EE : +86 (0) 21 6440 0373

EiEmgt

AR AFE

iabieni

SHIXER

FAE KB 81005

B:E 0 +86 (0) 21 6921 3333
T ARGE - 201707

fEE : +86 (0) 21 6921 5555

BB
hEARKAME

FEBMNEBERMAEE
R (M) TEE

T : +86 (0) 532 8727 3100
FEILARGE - 266300

{BH : +86 (0) 532 8727 3110

&
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Chengdu Office:

Room 2919, Building B,

Longhu 3000 Constellations,

No. 2 Jianshe North Road Section 3,
Chengdu City, Sichuan Province,
The People’s Republic of China

Tel.. +86 (0) 28 8328 5026

Zip: 610051

Fax: +86 (0) 28 8328 5126

Xiamen Factory:

No.16-4 Putou Road,

Haicang District,

Xiamen City, Fujian Province,
The People’s Republic of China
Tel: +86 (0) 592 609 321 |
Zip: 361027

Fax: +86 (0) 592 609 3600

Tianjin Office:

Units 2204-2206, Tower A, Ronghui Plaza,
Nankai District,

Tianjin,

The People’s Republic of China

Tel.: +86 (0) 22 8752 8026

Zip: 300073

Fax: +86 (0) 22 8752 8109

Chonggqing Office:

Room 3601, Yingli International Financial Center,

No. 28 Minquan Road
Yuzhong District, Chongging,
The People’s Republic of China
Tel.: +86 (0) 23 6382 0020
Zip: 400010

Fax: +86 (0) 23 6382 0090

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED -

RETHERDF

v W/

REBRSBRE
REE AR FEFE
P9Il A EP T
BRI =R 5

=T 2R

BEE2919 5%

EEE : +86 (0) 28 8328 5026
FRERAR IR - 610051

{EH : +86 (0) 28 8328 5126

E R

PEEAREFE
rEEEMT

AR

HERRS 16-4 5%

T : +86 (0) 592 609 3211
FRERAR SR - 361027

fEH : +86 (0) 592 609 3600

REWERE
hEARKME
RAET

L]

b 5 A BB 2204-2206 =
T % - +86 (0) 22 8752 8026
FIARSE - 300073

{BH : +86 (0) 22 8752 8109

EERER
PEEAREFE
EEMATE

IR 28 5%

EHN RS FA 03601 F
EEE © +86 (0) 23 6382 0020
FRERAR SR - 400010

{EHE : +86 (0) 23 6382 0090







Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
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